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Our driving ambition

is to enrich the lives of our
customers so that they can
experience retirement
living to the full
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Strategic and
Operational Highlights

40 years

49 years since the opening of the first McCarthy
& Stone retirement development at Waverley
House, New Milton, in October 1977

75 sites added
to the land bank

75 high-quatity development sites added to
the land bank (FY16 65 sites). Total land bank
of 9,967 plots (FY16: 10,186 plots), equivalent
to 4.3 years' supply (FY16: 4.4 years' supply)

Access to
the growing
rental market

New strateg(c relationshup with PP Capitalt
allowing access the growing rental market

Workflow on track

Warkflow on track to support growth strategy
and deliver ¢.80 new sales releases in FY18
(FY17 52 sales releases)

Graphicremoved

Jmoge:

The Laureates,
ghom
1 PfP Capital 1s a fund management business of Places for People

2 McCarthy & Stone plc

Five Star rating

Awarded fuli Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction by the Home Builders Federation
(HBF) for the twelfth consecutive year - the
only UK housebuilder of any size or type to
achieve this accolade

3,000 units
medium-term

Sufficient fand under control and operational
platform now fully In place to deliver strategic
objective of building and selling mare than
3,000 units per annum over the medium-term

15 Quality Awards

15 Quality Awards (FY16 10 awards), 7 Seals

of Excellence (FY16' 2 Seals of Excellence) and

1 Regional Winner at the 2017 National House
Building Councit (NHBC) Pride in the Job awards
underpinning exceptional build quality
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Financial
Highlights

Revenue Legal completions’ Average selling price?

£660.9m 2302 £273:
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Tangible net asset value? Return on capital employed? Year-end net cash/(debt)?

£676.4m 16% £30.7m
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Our Business

Retirement living to the full

Graphicremoved

We are the sector leader with
more than a 70%' share of the
owner-occupied retirement
housing market

1 Bosed on 4,778 regisirotions of coss-tenure properties specifically
designed for the elderly with the NHBC during 18 month period ended
30 june 2017, of which 3,684 were registered by McCarthy & Stone

6 McCarthy & Stone plc
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STRATEGIC REPORT

We place our customers’ and homeowners’
needs at the heart of everything we do and have
an unparalleled understanding of our market

as the only listed national housebuilder to focus
exclusively on the needs of older people

Our model

Our modet s based on buying land,
securing detalled planning consent and
then building and selling tugh-quatity
retirement developments importantly,
we then take on the management of our
developments and provide a range of
praperty mamtenance, support and care
services to help ennch the lives of our
homeowners

Our customers

Our customers are looking to maintain
their ndependence with private home
ownership but also want companionship,
a httle more assistance with everyday
tasks and the knowledge that support

is on hand should it be needed By
providing well-designed and well-loccated
housing with on-site support Services,
we are able to cater for 3 wide range of
needs and help our customers live
healthver and happier lives.

-

]

Graphic removed
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Customer satisfaction

In March 2017, we again receved

the full Five Star award for customer
satisfaction for our products and
services In the independent survey

by the HBF and NHBC We are the anly
housebuilder of any size or type 1o
have achieved this accolade for twelve
consecutive years The HBF's yearly
questionnaire is one of the largest
customer surveys, totalling 52,290
purchasers of 3 new home in 2016,
More than 90% of the 1,433 customers
who completed the survey were happy
to recommend us,

We are pleased that almost nine out

of ten of our customers also feel that
moving to one of our developments
has improved their quality of life.

As well as the general lifestyle we
prowige, this 1S testament to our sales
approach and management services
offering that ensures homeowners and
their families are supported and guided
through the purchasing process and
recewe all the support they need while

hving with us.

Graphic removed
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Case study

Mr and Mrs Price recently

left their life in Wales behind to
move closer to ther family in the
West Midiands. Since moving (o
McCarthy & Stone's Algar Court
Retirement Living development in
Wolverhampton, there have been
smiles all round as they spend miore
time seeing their grandchildren
Erow up.

Commenting on the decision to
relocate, Mrs Price said, “We visited
Algar Court with our son, daughter-
in-law and grandchild and we
nstantly feli n love - we felt the
high-guality hving and beautful
gardens were definitely something
we could get used to. We were
pleasantly surprised at how simple
and stress-free McCarthy & Stone
managed everything - the estate
agent and removal fees were

all included in the price of the
apartment and our House
Manager was realfy helpful vath
the transition, she even showed

us the local area and sorted our
bus passes.”

As well as more quality time with
family, the couple were also seeking
companionship and security, as Mrs

Price comments,s “While we have”

cnly been here a short time, we
already feel right at home among
the fantastic community at the
development. We can go to the
homeowners lounge for a coffee
and there will always be someone
to chat to. Everyone has been really
welcaming - our family visit a lot and
join in the social events with us and
our grandson has been a hitwith
the other homeowners!”

MccCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts
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Our Business continued

Our 40th year

i—_ "“l 2017 marks 40 years since the opening of
McCarthY & Stone’s first reorement development
at Waverley House, New Milton, in October 1977
We are proud of our subsequent record of
Graphic removed achievements and success, which gives us
unrivalled expertise in this sector.

McCarthy & Stone ploneered the retirement
L __I housm%\sector for homeowners after seeing a
gap in the market, and we have since enriched
the lives of tens of thousands of older people
and their families We have built and sold over
54,000 apartments across ¢ 1,200 developments

Graphic removed

| For more information on our partnershup with RYS gnd how o donate
o the compaign, please visit www mecarthyandstone ¢6 uk/rvs

Graphic removed
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To celebrate our 40th anniversary, we have
partnered with the Royal Voluntary Service (‘'RVS')
for 2017, which also has a iong history of
supporting older pecple Qur staff have raised
more than £200,000 for this worthy cause during
2017 via a wide range of activities from dragon boat
races anc charity balls to parachute jumps in Dubai
We intend to continue this fundraising into FY18

we would like to thank our dedicated employees,
as well as our homeowners and our supphers who
have helped us reach this milestone

DiD YOU
KNOW?

54,000

We have built and sold over
54,000 apartments across more
than ¢.1,200 developments
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Our awards

Our position as the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder and our
ambition to enrich the lives of our
customers and homeowners are further
evidenced by the awards that we have won

[ ]

Graphic removed

L _

The unily housebuilder to receive the 2016 Management Today - Featured
r _| full Five Star rating from the HBF for . in the list of Brita's Most Admired
Graphic removed 12 consecutive years Graphicremoved Companies

L

1

] 2017 ARMA ACE awards - Highly

HBF/Housebwider awards - Best
Commended for On-Site House

Retirement Scheme for Ramsay Grange Graphic removed

:
|

Graphicremoved and Lyle Court in Edinburgh, and Best | ] Manager of the Year
‘_ _J Customer Satisfaction Initiative
— ] Pride inthe Job - 15 site managers won —| Building Safety Group (B8SG') awards
Graphicremoved the coveted Pride in the job Award from - Three national awards, including the
L 1 the NHBC, a 50% increase on last year Graphic removed Innovation Award

In addition, 7 site managers won Seals _I

of Excellence and 1 Regional Winner

1

. 1 WhatRouse? awards - Bronze in the
raphic ’e"‘°"‘il Best Retirernent Scherme category
for Constance Place, Knebworth

Mo

Imoges
1. Ook Grange, Hortford

2. Housebuilder Awards, [-R Dowrd Andges, Group Marketing & Customer
Expenence Director with the Soulh Eost regronal team recening the
Housebuider Award from octar james Nesbiit

McCarthy & Stane plc Annvual Report and Accounts 9



Chairman's Statement

On track to deliver our
medium-term growth objective

{_i _’ Revenue

£660.9m

(FY16: £635.9m)

Graphicremoved
Dividend, pence per share

5.4 pence

{FY16: 4.5 pence)

L. |

John White, Group Non-Executive Chairman | am pleased 1o present our second set
of full year results since re-joining the
Landon Stock Exchange in November
2015 The Group delivered a solid
performance this year notwithstanding
the headwinds expernenced as a result
of increased polticat and economic
uncertamty Revenue Increasedtoa
record £661m (FY16" £636m) and the
Group continued 1o capitahse on the
attractive demographic opportunity
and structural shortage of supply
of retirement housing in the UK. As
previously announced, trading in the
first six manths of FY17 was constrained
oy the lower forward order book
brought into the year impacted by the
market uncertainty following the EU
Referendum, Trading in the second half
of FY17 saw an improvement due to
an increased weighting of completions
from newer higher rmargin sites,
reflecting the guality and location
of the developments McCarthy &
Stone 1s now bringing to market.

Profit Befare Tax reduced from £93m in
FY16 €0 £92m in FY17 with Underlying
Profit Before Tax reducing from £105m
1N FY16 to £94min FY17. This reduction
In profitabilicy was mainly driven by the
age and mix of units sold, increased

10 McCarthy & Stone plc



incenuve costs, build cost increases
offset by pricing improvements, some
additional land renegotiation costs as we
repositioned our land bank in the face

of more challenging market conditions
and our continued investmentn
regional operational infrastructure

to support our growth strategy.

The Group remains the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder with a greater
than 70% share of the owner-aoccupied
market Our strength of brand and
continual striving for operational
excellence ensures that we can continue
to deliver solid results in a challenging
market without any support from the
Government Help To Buy scheme

We have a strong and experienced
management team that 1s focused

on delivening the Group's sirategic
objectives, a high-quaiity land bank, a
robust balance sheet and the necessary
operational expertise and infrastructure
In place to deliver our medium-term
growth strategy of building and selling
mere than 3,000 units per annum,

We continue to lead the housebuillding
sector on customer satisfaction, we
are the only housebuider of any size

or type to have recewved the full Five
Star rating 1in the Home Builders
Federation customer satisfaction
survey for twelve consecutive years, n
which mere than 90% of our customers
would recommend us to a friend

Outlook

The wmprovement of forward sales
experienced throughout the year has
continued into FY18 with total forward
sales including legal completions since
1 September 2017 standing at £277m
at 10 November 2017 (FY17 £250m)

Economic and

political environment

The underlying housing market
continues ta be supported by low
interest rates, good mortgage availabiity
and low levels of unemployment.

The market for retirement housing
also remains highly attractive,
underpinned by strong demand, albenr
the secondary market was impacted
by political and economic uncertainty
Research by the Department for
Communities and Local Government
(DCLG) recognises that around 74% of
household growth in the LUK to 2039

is expected to come from those aged
65 and over' and McCarthy & Stone
remans uniguely placed to capitalise
on this unprecedented demographic
opportunity in which demand continues
to dramatically exceed supply

STRATEGIC REPORT

Dividend

The Group's sohd performance this year
has enabled the Directors to propose
afinal dividend of 3.6 pence per share.
This follows the interim dwidend of 18
pence per share, giving a total diwvidend
for the year of 5 4 perice per share
(FY16: 4 5 pence per share pro-rated for
period since hsting), which represents
20% growth on the FY16 dividend and
1S 1n line with our progressive dividend
policy as stated at the tme of our Imitial
Public Offering {1PO).

Board changes
There were a number of Board changes
during the year

On 6 January 2017, we were pleased

to announce the appomntrnent of
Rowan Baker as the Group's Chief
Fingncial Officer. Rowan was previously
Group Financial Controller and has
worked for the Group since January
2012 She took over the role from

Nick Maddock whose resignation

was announced on 11 Qctober 2016,

On 1 june 2017, we announced the
appointment of John Tonkiss as the
Group’s Chief Operating Officer This
role has been created [0 help drive
the Group’s growth strategy A key
part of the role will be overseeing the
contuinued development of the Group's
nine regional operations across the
UK John joined McCarthy & Stone in
2014 and was previously the Group's
National Operations Director.

In addition to this, John Carter joined
the Board on 1 October 2017 John
i1s currently Chief Executive of Trawis
Perkins plc, which owns many of the
pulding industry’'s most popular
brands and spans the trade, home
improvernent and DIY markets John
joined Trawis Perkins in 1978 and held
a number of senior strategic roles
within the business before being
appointed as Chief Executive in 2014

Finally, on 9 November 2017 we were
pleased to announce the appointment
Paul Lester CBE as a Non-Exacuuve
Director and Chairman Designate

He will join the Board on 3 January
2018 and, subject to his election by
shareholders, will take over from me

as Chairman at the conclusion of the
Company's next Annual General Meeting
(AGMY) 1N January 2018 Paulis currently
Charrman of Essentra plc and Forterra
plc and was formerly a director of
Invensys plc. Previously, he was Group
Managing Director of Balfour Beatty plc
before becoming Chief Executive

1 The Department for Communiies and Loco! Government

{DCLG) household profections England (fuly 2016)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DID YOU
KNOW?

3,000

Our medium-term strategic
targetis to build and sell
3,000 units per annum

image 1 Birch Court, Morrision

of support services company VT Group
plcin 2002 Paul was also Chairman of
John Lamng Infrastructure Fund untit
September this year

We are very pleased that Paul will be
joiming the McCarthy & Stone Board
and succeeding me as Chairman
McCarthy & Stone 15 a great business
and | am proud to have served on the
Board during a transformational period
for the Company, culmmating in its
successful IPO 0 2015 While market
uncertainty following recent political
events has acted as a stern test for
our business model, | am pleased that
our high-guality product and excellent
team fed by Clive Fenton have proved
McCarthy & Stone’s resilence

The Company remains uniquely-placed
to capitalise on the substanual growth
opportunity In retiremerit housing,
driven by a rapidly ageing population,
and the team can lcok to the future with
confidence The Group has made solid
progress towards achieving its strategic
objectives this year and my thanks go to
alt employees, the management team
and my fellow Board members for the
significant contributicn they have made

John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman
13 November 2017

L
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Our Market
Attractive demographic opportunity

Graphicremoved

There is a structural shortage of

suitable housing options for older

people and more retirement

housing is needed for the UK's [— _I
rapidly ageing population

Graphicremoved

Imoges

1 Chestrut Court, Bridhington |
2 Homeowners ot Elm Tree Court, Huntingdon
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Our market

The UK population stands at its rughest
ever at £65.6m' and continues 1o get older
There are currently 11 Bm* people aged
65 or over,nsing to 173m2 by 2037 -3
47% increase For those aged 85 or over,
the increase will be larger, from 1.6m!

to 3.0m? by 2037, an increase of 88%?2.
This will place increasmg pressure on
the housing system and care providers.
The DCLG estimates that 74% of all
household growth to 2039 will come
from purchases made by older pecple?.

Structural shortage of supply

There also remains a structural shortage
i the supply of specialist housing for
older people Just 4,778 registrations of
retirement properties were made with
the NHBC during the 18 month period
ended 30 June 2017, and there have only
ever been ¢ 157,000° units of owner-
occupied retirement housing built » the
UK 10 date. Property consultancy Knight
Frank estimates that the UK s building
Just € 5,500 units of retirement housing
across all tenures each year, and yet the
sector has the capacity to grow ta

€ 30,000 units per annum®.

This undersupply 1s in part due to the
very high barriers to entry i this sector,
meaning few providers operate at scale
As a result, we continue to maintain our
€.70% share of the owner-accupied
retirement housing market?®

This 1s set against the backdrop of
awider housing shortage In total,
153,3707 new homes were started in
England during 2016 (a 5% increase
year-on-year), although estimates
suggest that up to 300,000 new homes
are needed per year®?, creating a
yearly shortfall of half thvs amount

Downsizing

There are also a significant number

of older people locking 1o downsize
Research by YouGov for McCarthy

& Stone in 2017 found that 38% of
older people are looking to move to

a smaller property, and an additional
10% would be encouraged to move
with a stamp duty exemption, equalling
48% - a rise of 4% from the prior year?

1 Office for Natronal Statistics (ONS), Overview of
the UK popultation (fuly 2017)

2 ONS, 2017 (2016 bosed) populolion projections

3 Deportment for Cormmmunities and Local
Government (DCLG), 201 49-bosed household
projections England, 20714-2039

4 Based on 4,778 registrotions of cross-tenure
properties specifically designed far the elderly
with the NHBC during 18 month period ended
30 june 2017, of which 3,684 were registered
to McCorthy & Stone

STRATEGIC REPORT
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Demand driven by strong fundamentals

UK population:
65.6M people’

ofwhich 11.8m

are 65 years old or over’

Of which 29%, or 3.4M
have equity of £250k-£500k"°

A 4

Of which 38%, or

<1.3m

are considering downsizing®
- our target demographic

Compares with just

157k

owner occupied retirement
properties built in the UK5

With a 47% predicted increase
in those aged 65 or over by 20372

5 EAC dato besed on owner-occupred retirement
housing (2017)

& Kmght Frank. Retirernent Housing, 2016
7 DCLG, 2017, Housing starts hit 9-year high

8 The House of Lords Ecanaric Affoirs select
committee 2016, England needs to build
300.000 homes a year

8 YouGov. 2017, research provided by YouGov
Jor MeCarthy and Stone

10 ONS, tolol housing weolith by regron ond age
group (2013)

11 Our rarget demographic group is discussed further
m Our Products and Our Lifesoule’ on pages 16-25

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 13



QOur Market continued
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Government support

Pasitively, the Government continues to seek ways to longer and reduces costs to the health and social care system.
encourage the rebrement housing sector The Housing tt also notes that helping older people to move at the right time
White Paper, ‘Fixing our broken housing market,’ published in and in the right way improves their quality of hfe and frees up
February 2017, recognises that offering older people a better more homes for other buyers including those much needed

choice of accommodation helps them to ive Independently for  for families

Housing White Paper in summary

The White Paper contained a number ,_ _]
of positive proposals for our business:

» Ageneral commitment to explore ways to stimulate
the market to deliver new homes for ocider people -
recognising that this sector is worth supporting

= A new statutory duty on the DCLG Secretary of State
to produce planning guidance for local authorities on
meeting the housing needs of older people
Graphic removed
a For the first time, it is now official Government
policy to look at incentives to help older
homeowners move

QOther positive measures included:
» Clear drive to support housebuilding
s Strengthening the presumption in favour of developing
brownfield land
w Greater support for small 'windfall’ sites
s Support for higher density development in urban
locations well served by public transport
» More pressure on local authorities to meet their I_ J
housing targets
imoge

Chigf Executive Officer, Cive Fenton and Secretary of Stote
[for the Department of Communities and local Governmend, the
Rt Hon Sajid Javid MP with harmeawners ot Biberry Place Bromsgrove

DID YOU
KNOW?

160,000

Since the 1970s, there have been an
average of 160,000 new homes built
each year in England. We need to build
€.225,000to ¢. 275,000 or more homes
per year to keep up with population
growth and start to tackle years of
under supply’

1 Fixing our broken housing market. Department for
Communities ond Locol Government, 7 February 2017

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 15



Our Products

Graphicremoved

Three unique housing options,
catering exclusively for older people

We offer well-designed apartments

in stunning locations, where every

detail has been carefully thought Graphic removed
through with our customers’

needs in mind, from access to locat

amenities to internal layouts and

fixtures and fittings, and combined

with just the right level of service

L

Images
T Dorroch Gale, Blairgowrte
2 Bowes tyons Court, Poundbury
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i N Independence with peace of mind
Retirement Living o Mo age 60
For more info see pages 18-19 * Typicat number of apartments per site 30-50
" FY17 completions. 1,722 (75% of total completions in the year),
* (FY16 1,511, 66%)
= Land bank- 5,684 units (57% of total land bank at the year end),
(FY16 6,303 units, 62%)
= House manager and shared facilities, including homeowners' lounge
and guest suite

v

|

Ml Retj rement Livin g Plus A retirement apartment you own with flexible care and support
o h _ o & Minirnum age 70

¥ (previously Assisted Living) = Typical number of apartments per site S0-70

: For more info see pages 20-21 = E:F\%'%cgg;?geéxqz;ws 479 (21% of total completions in the year),

o

= Land bank 3,598 units (36% of total land bank at the year end),

(FY16: 3,094 units, 30%)

Simitar services to Retirement Living, but also includes full estate
management team, restaurant or bistro, domestic support and flexibie
care packages, among ather facilties and services

R
[

ou

i s Downsize for your leisure years
Lifestyle Living = M g2 5
{previously Ortus Homes) s Typical number of apartments per site' 20-40
For more info see pages 22-23 - ;f;{y‘g:;gg%gﬁt;ons 101 (4% of total completions in the year),

= Land bank 685 units (7% of total land bank at the year end),
(FY16 785 uniis, 8%)
= Visiting hotise manager

[ -

Graphic removed

L ]
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Our Products

Retirement Living

Independence
with peace
of mind

Graphicremoved
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Our Retirement Living developments
provide high-quality apartments for
homeowners aged 60 and over

Key features

B For those aged 60+

B On-site house manager

# Homeowners’ lounge

B Guest suite

B Extensive landscaped grounds
B Lifetime Hornes Standard’

M Typically 30-50 apartments

Apartments feature one or two
bedrooms, spacious lounges, fitted
kitchens, lifts to all floors, level access,
extra starage, en-suite bathrooms
and, typically, private outside space
in the form of balconies, terraces or
patios. Every aspect is specifically
designed with our custormers in mind,
from the slip-resistant flooring in the
bathrooms, and the lever taps for
easier operation, to the electric plug
sockets at waist height.

In addition, the developments have
camera-door entry and a 24-hour
emergency call system with pendant
alarms. They also feature a large
armount of communal space to help
build comparnionship, including a
shared lounge, guest suite to
accommodate visiting family and
friends, and landscaped grounds.

Our site-based house managers
provide help and assistance for
homeowners and are responsibie
for the day-to-day running of
each development.

image
1 Eim Tree Court, Huntingdon

-

The Lifetime Homes Standord 1S

o sertes of sixteen design critero

mntended to make homes maose easily
odoptable for Iifetime use af mimmal cost

36

New Retirement Living
developments sales
released in FY17 {FY16: 49)

1,/22

Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 1,511)

c.57%

Of land bank (FY16: 62%)

Graphic removed

Case study

“Regaining our independence

was a really important factor in
Qur relocation, as getting out and
about was becoming a bt difficult
where we lived before. Now, we
have easy access i and out of

owr home whether were meeting
friends in the homeowners' lounge
at Churchmead Court or heading
into town.

“We have the most amazing House
Manager, Tina. She has become

a good friend to us and is always
happy te help us at any time of
day. Tina organises lots of events
ta get everyone together including
weekly coffee mornings and tnps
to the local theatre, and she's
currently organising trips to York
and Skegness, which we are really
looking forward to.”

Mr and Mrs Towers
Churchmead Court, Hinckley

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts



Our Products

Retirement Living Plus

A retirement
apartment you
own with flexible
care and support

Graphic removed
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Our Retirement Living Plus developments
(previously Assisted Living) are designed
exclusively for customers aged 70 and over

Key features

@ For those aged 70+

W Estate manager and on-site team
B Homeowners' lounge

M Restaurant/bistro, well-being suite
B Wheelchair Accessibility Standards
B CQC'registered, 24-hour support
W Typically 50-70 apartments

Our Retirement Living Plus developments
offer a retirement apartment with
management services, domestic
assistance and personal care. Itis an
attractive alternative for people seeking
additional support whilst maintaining
their independence.

Developments are similar to Retirement
Living but have a number of additional

features, including a full table-service ! See page 158 for giossary of erms

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

restaurant or bistro with meals freshly
prepared on-site, a function room,
laundry, and secure mobility scooter
store rcom.

12

New Retirement Living Plus
developments sales released
in FY17 (FY16: 10)

There Is also a dedicated estate
management team on-site 24 hours

a day, 365 days a year, which is led

by the estate manager. They provide
extra support if and when it is needed,

whether it is shopping, cleaning or
more care services. Tailored and
flexible care and support packages
mean homeowners only pay for the
addiuonal help they use.

479

uUnits sold in FY17 (FY16: 697)

C.36%

1 Sydney Court, Sidcup Of land bank (FY16: 30%)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Case study

“ viewed the development with my
daughters and son-in-law, and was
shown a south-facing one-bedroom
apartment, which | was immediately
taken by. | was impressed with the
beautifui décor and wide range of
facilittes, and was delighted | would
be able to bring my 13 year-old cat
with me.

I really enjoy being part of the acuve
comimunity here, and everyane has
been so friendly and welcoming. I've

always been a scciable person, so
it's lovely that there are always other
people around and lots of activities
to get involved in, hke the coffee
mornings, Nlm nights, and of
course, the art classes”

Rowena Hamptaon

Bowes Lyon Court, Poundbury

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts
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Our Products

Lifestyle Living

Downsize for
your leisure
years

22 McCarthy & 5tone pic
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Lifestyle Living (previously Ortus Homes) is
our product for customers aged 55 and over

Key features
B Forthose aged 55+

M High-quality, low-maintenance

B Prestigious locations, 2/3 bedrooms
8 Increased space and car parking

W Open-plan living

B Visittng manager on-call

B Typically 20-40 apartments

Lifestyle Living is our product for
customers aged 55 and over looking
to downsize into modern, high-quality
and low-maintenance apartments in
prEStI%IOUS locations. Developments
typically have fewer, but larger,
apartments than our other core
products, with mare car parking.

They are intelligently and attractively
designed to future-proof later living.
Features are incorporated discreetly

to achieve an ageless design and
developments typically feature an
enhanced lobby area and an open-plan
feel, with fewer shared facilities. Each
apartment has two or three bedrooms,
a fully fitted kitchen and bathroom, plus
an en-suite bathroom and a walk-in
wardrobe,

As homeowners tend to be more
independent, developments have a
visiting manager who is also on-call.

Bungalows

As part of our Lifestyle Living range,

we will shortly deliver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 units at
wymoendham, Norfolk, with construction
startingin FY18.

image’
1 Ocean House, Carlyon Bay

There is a growing need for
low-maintenance and well-
situated bungalows among
the older population and the
appropriateness of this form
of housing in later life1s
well-proven. The supply of
bungaiows in the UK has also
been in steady dechne, with
only 2,210" new bungalows
registered with the NHBC

in 2016, in companson to
26,408 in 1986. The particular
shortage of bungalows and
other houses for older people
means they are likely to attract
a prermium compared to
standard housing.

As of 31 August 2017, we had

222 bungalows in our land bank.

1 NHBC, New Home Statrsecs Review 20716
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4

New Lifestyle Living
developments sales
released in FY17 (FY16: 5)

101

Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 88)

7%

Of land bank (FY16: 8%)
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Case study

For Martin and Marion Irving

Stamfoid Bridge, the key to a happy

marriage and indeed a happy and
active retrement isn’t having his
and hers TV remotes, but rldmg

in perfect harmony on their
tandem brke.

“We love to go on adventures
together and see where we end
up”, says Martin.

"There's nothing better than being
out on the bike and it's amazing the
things you can discover and some
of the beautiful places it can take
you. We've had our bike for over

10 years now and iU's one of the
best things we've ever done”

Having recently moved to a new
apartment at McCarthy & Stone’s
Lifestyle Living development,
Sovereign Court in Stamford Bridge,
the couple have been able to enjoy
even mare of the cycling they love.

"We were aftracted to the
development because of its
beautiful rural setting, which was
perfect for our love of spending
time outdoors”.

Martin and Marion Irving
Sovereign Court, Stamford Bridge

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts
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Our Lifestyle

Management and
Care Services

Providing peace
of mind that we
will look after our
customers and
their properties

24 McCarthy & Stone pic
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Our in-house management and
care services are 3 key part of how
we seek to enrich our homeowners’ lives

Rehable and cost-effective management
and maintenance services are important
to our homeowners. Our team provides
homeowners with peace of mind that we
will support them and look after their
properties over the long term. Thisis a
key part of how we seek to enrich our
homeowners' lives.

Providing an in-house management
services solution allows us to establish a
unigue relationship with gur customers,
providing personal and efficient services
that not only help them, but also support
the point of sale and allow us to deliver
industry-leading standards of custormer
satisfaction. It also links together our
expertise in housebuilding and property
management.

Our property management business
provides praoperty management,
support and care services across our
two development products, Retirement
Living and Retirement Living Plus. They

lht;a@
' m@m@&;_

MEREEING R CER
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ﬁ‘.ﬁ@ develepment whllst

_
h

YourLife Management Services
('YLMS) s owned 50/50 by MSMS
and Somerset Care Group, a

leading not-for-profit care provider.

it provides managernent services,
domestic assistance, catering,
personal care and additicnal
support in our Retirement

Living Plus developments.

Each developrment is run by an
Estate Manager who leads a
tearn of staff members to deliver
these services, 24 hours a day,
365 days a year.

-~ €.14,600

Homeowners (FY16: 12,000+)

312

Developments under
management {FY16: 264)

10,860

Additional care and demestic
hours per month (FY16: ¢.8,400)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Graphic removed

Case study

Don and Brenda decided it was ume
to downsize when the upkeep of
their family home started to become
too much trouble. Don said, “While
cur children both flew the nest many
years ago, my wife and I remainedin
the family hoime. When taking care
of the maintenance of the house
and especially the garden - started
to become a real hassle, we decided
the time was right to downsize to

a low-maintenance two-bedroom
apartment.

Homeowners at Squire Court can
relax in the homeowners launge, as
well as the development's beautiful
landscaped gardens. Should friends
or relatives wish (o stay over, a guest
suite is available to ensure all visitors
enjoy a comfortable rest. Brenda
commented, “"We didn't want to lose
our abifity to have our children stay
over when they visit us, so having the
guest suite isdeal.

Our House Manager, Maria Stratton,
is always coming up with ideas for
fun activities and events and there is
always something fun going on. Living
in alow-maintenance apartment
means we have so much moere free
ume to enjoy ourselves”

Don and Brenda Rhodes
Squire Court, South Molton
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Chief Executive's Statement

Operational Review

!4 _‘l Average selling price

£273k

(FY16: £264k)

Graphic removed
Build activity commenced on

/3 sites

(FY16: 54)

_J B ) _ _Land bank equivalent ~ — -— —

Clive Fenton, Group Chief Executive Officer 4 3
D years

(FY16: 4.4 years)

“Momentum is rebuilding,

Qur results

u nderpi nned by SOou nd The Group delivered solid progress in its
. . first full year of trading since re-jomning
foundations. Workflow is the Main Marke of the London Stock
* . Exchangg In Novemberrgms. Trading
H improved consistently throughout the
in place to su pport dellvery yegr notw:thstandungythe mcreasekd
H L uncertainty n the secondary market
Of 31000 u nlts per annum following the General Election in june

2017, and the Graup made good
progress in rebuwlding its forward order
book and progressing its workflow

Revenue increased by 4% to £661m
(FY16; £636m) pnmarity driven by an
increase in average selling prices from
£264k to £273k, reflecting a conunuing
improvernent i sates mix and quality
of sites Legal completions were slightly
ahead of prior year levels at 2,302 (FY16
2,296) despite a weakened forward
order book brought into the year and a
lower level of just 49 first occupations
during the year (FY16: 63) Thisyear's
volurmes benefited from accelerated
off-plan sales rates which improved to
$39% (FY16. 50%) and the bulk sale of
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126 apartments to PfP Capital as part
of & new strategic relationship allowing
us to access the growng rental market.

Consistent with previous guidance,
underlying operating profit decreased

by 10% to £96m (FY16 £107m) at a gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16: 21%), an
underlying operating profit margin of
15% (FY16. 17%) and an operating profit
of £94m (FY16 £95m). The reduction

in profitability was mainly driven by the
age and mix of units sold, increased
Incentive costs, build cost increases
offset by pricing improvements, some
additional land renegotiation costs as we
repositioned our land bank in the face
of more challenging market conditions
and our continued investmentin
regional operational infrastructure

to support our growth strategy.

PEP Capital

Over the course of the financial year,

we sought to diversify and enhance

our business model by developing a
strategic relationship with PfP Capital.
This represents an exciung new
opportunity to access the growing rental
market and has the potential to improve
capital turn' and enable land investment
in new, previously untapped locations.
This strategic relationship resulted in
the sale of 126 apartments (ncluded
within the total legal completions of
2.302) across 27 sites to be held within
a specialist retirement Private Rental
Sector (‘PRS) Fund being estabhished
and managed by PfP Capital, the fund
management business of Places for
People The apartments will be offered
for private open market rent PfP

Capital ams to grow its assets under
management from £150m to more than
£750m over the short to medium-term
by ecquiring residential uruts and we
are well placed to provide them with
access to the retirement housing sector.
wWe intend to develop this relauonship
further over the corming financial year.

Investment and growth strategy
We continue to pursue our strategy

of creating an effrcient and scalable
business, capable of building and seling
more than 3,000 units per annum over
the medium-term. There is significant
demand far our praducts and we are
confident that we have put in place all
the necessary elements that will enable
us to achieve our planned growth. We
have a respected brand with 40 years’
experience, a high-quality land bank,

a strang batance sheet with a robust
capital structure and the necessary
organisational capability and platform
Our experienced managemert team

15 focused on achieving this goal.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Market demand

The structural imbalance between
supply and demand within the housing
market continues 1o provide us with

an exceptional market opportunity.
Despite the recent growth in
hausebuilding activity, there remains

a significant and growing shortage of
housing supply in the UK. This imbalance
15 particularly acute in the market for
retirement housing, and McCarthy &
Stone stands alone among the national
housebuilders as the onily one that
focuses entirely on this market.

During four decades as the retirernent
housing market leader, the Group has
formulated a taillored approach to sales,
site acquisition, design, securing detaited
planning consents and canstruction
that mainstream housebuitders have
been unable to rephcate We also ensure
that our customers receive the highest
standards of ongoing support through
our management services offering The
migh barriers to entry in gur market
ensure that we maintain a unique
position as the only housebuilder
capable of meeting the naticnwide need
for high-quality specialist housing for
the growing number of older people
who are looking to move 1o propertes
more suited 1o their needs and lifestyle

Land bank

In total, .£472m (FY16 £468m) was
invested in land and build during the
year. We added a further 75 h:?h-quality
sites with attractive embedded margins
into the land bank (FY16. 65), equivalent
1o ¢.3,164 addinonal plots (FY16: ¢ 2,614),
with terms agreed on a further 1,355
plots (FY16 ¢ 1,700 plots)in ine with our
narmal land buyiné model The land was
secured with a hugh level of optionality.

At the year end, our land bank

stood at 9,967 plots (FY16 10,186),
equivalent to 4 3 years’ supply, of
which 2.6 years had detailed planning
consent As a result, the Group now
has sufficent land unger control to
deliver all targeted sales to FY20,

We secured 64 detailed plannin
consents (FY16 60) and started build
on 66 addiionat sites (FY16 42) There
1s detailed planning in place for 100%
of FY18 planned first occupatians and
71% of FY19 planned first occupations.

The market for land remains berign
and competition for our typical
brownfield sites remains %ghly
fragmented Our business continues
to maintain operational focus and
disopiine in the assessment of our
land purchases to ensure that returns
continue to flow 1o our shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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DID YOU
KNOW?

£127k

Our build initiative has
identified savings to the value
of £127,000 per development

image:
1 Humphrey Court, Stafford

i See page 158 for glossary of rerms
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Chief Executive's Statement continued

Operational infrastructure

and capability

Qur newer regional offices established
i North London, South West, East
Midlands and North West contnued to
drive the momentum of thewr workflows
during the year We have high-calibre
senior management teams in place,
combining McCarthy & Stone experience
with volume mainstream housebuilder
operational expertise

Hawing established these new offices,
we have now commenced the roll-out
of a new Divisicnal’ operational
structure, to manage our nine regions
The three Divisions, under John Tonkiss,
our Chief Operating Officer, will 2ach
consist of three established regions

This operational structure is similar to
many naticnal volume housebuilders
and will provide the framework to run an
efficient business at scale Our existing
nine regions will be clustered into a
North Owision, covering Scotland, the
North West and North East; a Central
Division, covering East Midlands, West
Midlands and South West, and a South
Duaistan, cavering Naorth Landan, Sauth
East and Southern. We expect to fill

28 McCarthy & Stane plc
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all the new positions from internal
candidates. The establishment of
these new divisions will complete
the platform required to deliver
our planned operational growth.

Strategic initiatives

Our conunued facis on ackieving
operational excellence by accelerating
our working capital cycle has allowed
us to deliver further improvement

in our three key strategic initiatives:
improving sales rates, reducing time
taken between securing land and
starung bulld and implementing

build programme efficiencies

Sales initiative

The sales initiative, launched in FY15,
sets out to consistently deliver off-
plan reservations of 50% or more by
the date of first occupation, and then
to reserve out all remaining urits
within an average 12 month pertod

Our sales initiative continued to make
%ood progress durning the year The mam
ocus has been on enhancing the early
part of the customer journey via website
improverments and the development of
early relatienships with enquirers prior

DID YOU
KNOW?

3%

We achieved an average
of 53% off-plan sates rate
from the 49 sites that
first occupied in FY17

imoge
1 Swift House. Maidenhead



“Workflow on track to
support growth strategy
and deliver c.80 new sales
releases and more than 65
first occupations in FY18”

STRATEGIC REPORT

to site sales launches. New relationship
management teams are now In place in
ali regions and are working well. These
improvemnents have contributed to
anincrease in the off-plan sales rate

t0 53% (FY16: 509%) from the 49 sites
(FY16 69) that first occupied in FY17

A number of sites achieved significantly
more than 53% of the off-plan sales
rate, for example Jameson Gate,
Portobello, Edinburgh which sold

100% off-plan A further five sites

sold more than 80% of apartments
off-plan ttis particularly pleasing that
we have been able 1o achieve these
accelerated sales rates in a challenging
market whilst also improving pricing

The Group continued to be impacted
by the challenging secondary housing
market with the average time to sell
out shightly higher than in the prior
year This average now stands at

19 months (FY16- 18 months) for

all sites sold out during FY17

During FY17, we worked closely with our
thurd-party part-exchange prowders (0
improve the terms of the part-exchange
offering In addition, we successfully
piloted an in-house part-exchange
scheme on 163 transactions n which
dependent properties are temporarily
taken onto our own balance sheet
pending onward sale This resulted

i a cost saving of . E1moin relation 1o
the 49 properties re-sold during Fy17,
when compared to the costs associated
with using third-party part-exchange
providers As at 31 August 2017, we held
114 properties on the balance sheet

at 3 net carrying value of £319m

Development initiative

Our development iniative, also
launched in FY15, aims to reduce

the time taken between securing

land and build start This involved

the implementation of a number

of process improverments with
particular focus on ‘ways of working’,
the planning process and iNcrease
standardisation This enables the
business to bring forward profitable
developments, accelerate growth plans
and improve capital turn The inative
15 now embedded i &l reglons and is
beginming to produce positive results

A number of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were impiemented
duning the year In particular, we have
focused on local consuitations within
the planning process and implermented
our new Datum ool to support product

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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and design standardisation and value
engmeermﬁ Our target for reducing
the time taken between land exchange
and starting build 1s 16 months for
standard sites achieving a firstume
detailed planning consent. During FY17,
we saved an average of four weeks per
scheme, with the total time taken from
land exchange to build start averaging
¢ 181 months (FY16' ¢19.1 months)

Duning the year, a Product Approval
Group (PAG') was established to
enhance our product offering and
identify and resclve persistent

issues The PAG 15 made up of senior
management team members with
representatives from Sales and
Marketing, Management Services,
Development, Construction,
Procurement, Customer Services, and
Health & Safety The PAG meels regularly
to achieve greater standardisation
across the Group, optimise product
selection and improve design

Build initiative

The build initiative, launched in FY15,
continued to drive impraovemenis to

the build process during the year, to
accelerate build timescales, reduce
build costs and enhance margins
Specific focus has been placed on
supply chain management to maximise
savun%s as well as driving towards longer
term benefits via the increased use

of modern methods of construction.
The Group's framework of critical
controls introduced last year 15 now fully
ernbedded across all our reglons and

is drving improvements to build cycle
umes and budgets. This initiative has
delivered a ¢ four week (FY16 cthree
week) time saving from build start to first
occupation and has identified savings
opportunities 1o the value of £127k per
development in relation to materials
and labour which will help to mitgate
the irmpact of build cost inflation

Our product ranges
During the year we repositioned our
product branding in order to capitalise
on our existing strong McCarthy & Stone
brand recognition This will now be
used in a unified way across our three
Eroducts our Assisted | ving product
as been rebranded Retirement Living
Plus and our Ortus Homes product
has been rebranded as Lifestyle
Living. This also atlows us to opumise
our marketing spend and create
consistency acrass our product names
As part of our Lifestyle Living range,
we will shartly deliver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 units at
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I Prime Miruster Theresa May with CEQ Cive Fenton at Swift House, Mardenheod

wymondham, Norfolk, which 1s now
under construction, There I1s a growing
need for modern, low-maintenance
and well-connected bungalows
among the older population and the
appraprateness of this form af housing
in later life 1s well-proven. The supply
of bungalows in the UK has also been
in steady dechne, with only 2,210 new
bungalows registered with the NHBC
in 2016, n comparison to 26,408

in 1986 The particular shortage of
bungalows and other houses jor
older people means they are hkely

to attract a high level of demand.

we are also explaring the provision

of bungalows and cottages on

larger schemes, opening up exciting
new possibilities for maximising
development potential on certain sites,
as well as providing for cormpletely
new land cpportunities As of

31 August 2017, we had 222 (FY16
127} bungalows within our land bank.

Our Management Services business
The rapid growth of our Management
Services business continued during the
year, adding 48 new developments to
its portfolio, which now total 312 (FY16.
264) managed developments Providing

30 McCarthy & Stone plc

our own management services allows
us Lo estabhish a unigue relationship
with our customers, providing personal
and efficient services that not only help
them, but also suppert the point of sale,
and allow us to deliver industry-leading
standards of custormer satisfaction.

Our customers

We are pleased to report that we have,
once again, achieved the full Five Star
rating in the Home Builders Federation
{HBF) custorner satisfaction survey this
year This marks the twelfth consecutive
year in which more than 90% of our
customers have sawd that they would

be prepared to recommend us to 2
friend. We are the only housebuilder

of any size or type to win this award
every year since it was introduced in
2005 This sustained recognition by
our custamers of the quality of product
and service we deliver s a stron
endorsement of our continued desire
to design, build, sell and manage the
very best retwement developments

Quality

The Group was also pleased to achieve
15 Quality awards, 7 Seals of Excelience
and 1 Regional Winner ir: the 2017
NHBC Pride in the Job awards, marking

|

3 50% increase in awards from 2016.
The scheme 15 dedicated to recognising
construction site managers who achieve
the highest standards in housebuilding
and has been instrumental in driving up
stardards in the sector tor 37 years

Our employees

Our performance this year would

not have been possible without the
dedication, enthusiasm and expertise of
our people We are building a culture of
excellence that provides opportunities
for development and recognises
achievements by regularly celebrating
those employees who go the extra mile
for a customer or colleague through
our instant, quarterly and annual

PRIDE awards [ am also detighted

o report that, in our mast recent
employee survey, B7% (FY16 89%) of
our employees confirmed that they are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone,

Health and safety

| am aisa pleased to report that we
have continued to make good progress
with developing a culture of excellence
in health and safety across the Group.
Our vision is not just to achieve health
and safety compliance but to iead our
sector with a robust and consistent
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DID YOU
KNOW?

312

Our Management Services
business has 312 developments
in their portfolio (FY16: 264)

image
2 Woimsley Ploce, Bishops Waltham

safety culture across our organisation
Our internal Monitoring regime 1s
supported by a rigorous, ndependent
site inspection programme including
regular reporting updates to the
Board. Duning FY17, we received

three BSG Health and Safety awards,
including one award for Best Use of
Technclogy for cur proneering work
using drones for roof inspection to
reduce the need for work at height.

Housing White Paper

In February 2017, we welcomed the
Housing White Paper “Fixing our
broken housing market”, the country’s
first housing strategy for six years
It proposed a number of measures
to support housebulding and we
were particularly pleased (o see a
number of positive references to
the need to Increase the provision
of specialist retirement housing

1 NHBC New Hame Storstics Review 2016
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The White Paper notes that the
Government will explore ways to
stimulate the market to deiiver

new homes for older people and I1s
introducing a new statutory duty,
through the Neighbourhood Planning
Act, on the Secretary of State to
produce, for U firsLime, gudance
for locat plarnning authonties on how
their local development documents
should meet the housing needs of older
people. Guidance produced under
this duty will set clearer expectations
about planning to meet the needs of
older people, including supporting
the development of such homes near
local services, and we understand
this wall be published shortly

in addition, the White Paper notes the
Government’s new commitment 1o
explore ways to help older people move
at the nght time, including passible
future Incentives We are working

with the Government to provide mare
nformation on how this incentive might
work, including a possible one-ume
Stamp Duty exemption for clder people
downsizing Such policies would help
oider people to move, which would also
in turn help first time buyers onto the
housing ladder and encourage further
demand for retirement housing

Government consultation on
ground rents

In June 2017, the Government also
launched a consultation on tackhng
unfair practices n the leasehold market
with particular reference to leasehold
housing and unfair escalation clauses
for ground rents We understand and
support the need for action in this area.
Our ground rents are on fair and stable
terms as they are fixed for {fifteen years
and increases are linked to the higher
of 2% or Retail Price Index {'RPI'). There
have undoubtedly been cases where
the systerm has been abused by some,
including with ground rents that double
every ten years, and we understand
why DCLG Is constdering taking action
to protect homebuyers We welcome
this, but have raised concerns about
the further proposals around reducing
ground rent income for all leasehold
properties to a zerc or peppercorn rent.

Leasehold is a common and widely
accepted form of tenure for apartment
Iving and has tradibonally been

used as an efficient way of managing
apartment blocks and managed estates

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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that contain a number of residents on
the same site, often with competing
voices With best practice and proper
gurdance 1n place, it can work well, and
has done for a number of years, and
the vast majority of apartments are
on fair terms. Ground rent helps to
keep the freeholder actively involved
in the development and is a key part
of this system. We have responded
accordingly to the Government'’s
consultation and we await its cutccme.

Qutlook and current trading

The workflow of the business remains
on track to support our growth
strategy. Build actmity commenced
on 73 sites during FY17 (FY16 54) and
of the .80 sales releases which the
Group plans to deliver in FY18 (FY17:
52), 96% are now under construction.
During the first 10 weeks of the year
17 new sites (FY17: 13) have been
successfully launched and this has
contributed to an improvement 1N our
forward order book, which currently
stands at £277m (FY17: £250m). First
occupations are planned to increase
to more than 65 in FY18 (FY17, 49} and
are expected to be weighted towards
the second haif of the year due to the
tlmln% of our build programmes We
therefore expect the delivery profile
of the Group’s profits between H1
and H2 to be similar to that in FY17.

We have started the new financial
year with a hugh-quality lanc bank,

a strong net cash position and an
experienced management team in
place. We also have the necessary
re%lonal infrastructure and strength
of brand that ensures that we are
uniquely placed to capitaiise on the
significant demographic opportunity
avallable to us. We remain on track
to deliver our strategic growth
objective of building and selling more
than 3,0G0 units per annum and
continue ta target a Return On Capital
Employed (ROCE') of 25% when the
business achieves scale

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer
13 November 2017
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Qur Business Model

The Group has a proven business model of buying land,
securing detailed planning consent and then building, selling and
managing high-quality developments across the UK that are
specifically designed to meet the lifestyle needs of older people

Our customers
Our distinct and growing customer base is at the heart of everything we do

s Target customer age' over 605 in Retirement Living, over 70s a Those who wish to maintain ther independence

in Retirement Living Plus and over 55s in Lifestyle Living with support on-hand if, and when, required
m Older owner-occupiers who are keen to downsize into a Addressing undersupply of homes dedicated to
attractive and secure housing with shared benefits the needs of our customer base

and companionship

1. Targeted
\and buying

We buy land and secure detailed
planning consents in locations
where we Xnow our customers
would be happy to live

We provide Our apartments
afirst-class . . are high quality
customer Our driving ambition and designed
experience, is to enrich the lives around the
enhanced by of our customers. If we needs of older

our specialised
services
offerings

succeed in this aim we customers
will maximise long-term
value for our .
stakeholders and
shareholders

Our developments are We build our products
marketed to attract efficiently in a safe
older homeowners environment, using 40

looking to downsize years of experience

The principal risks and uncertainties associated with our Business Model are described,
together with the mitigating actions on pages 56 and 57.
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Core elements of our business model

1. Targeted land buying

We buy land in appealing locations

The sites are typically brownfield locauons, well-located relative 10 essential services
in towns and cities, and attract less competition from other housebuilders

2. Effective planning
and design

Our in-house planning team, the ‘Planmng Bureau’, aims to obtain the best possible planning
consent as quickly as possible by applying directly for detailed planrming permission

High-quality apartments designed around the changing needs of older customers

3.Industry-eading
constnuctionin a
safe environment

Efficient and cost-effective construction using 40 years’ expertence
Industry-leading health and safety standards

4. Unique sales
and marketing

Marketing with a focus on consistency and transparency ensuring that the customer journey
15 as straight forward as possible

Sales process focused on supporting our customers and their farrulies from initial enguiry
through to legal completion

5. Customer-focused
management services

-

Providing the highest quality property management, care and support services in response
to cur customers’ and homeowners’ changing needs

-

Graphicremoved

_
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Strategic aim

We aim to identify sufficient high-quality land opportunities to meet our growth plans over the

medium and long term

Key performance indicators
(KPIs)

New sites exchanged

/5

(FY16: 65)

Land bank units

9967

(FY16: 10,186)

Number of years' supply
within our land bank

4.3

(FY16: 4.4)

Investment in land and build

£0.5bn

(FY16: £0.5bn)

KP!I - Land bank {units)

—

Graphic removed

]

31 August 2017 31 August 2016

Owned and unconditional land bank 1,620 2,287
Condimonally contracted land bank 4,509 4,504
6,129 6,791

Construction work in progress 2,699 1,883
Fintshed stock 1139 1,512
Total owned and controlled land bank 9,967 10,186
Number of years' supply based on completions in the financial year 4.3 years 4.4 years

image | Willoughby Ploce, Bourton-on-the-Woter
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Investment in
land and build

Investment in land and build

FYi6 FY17
£0.5bn

£0.5bn

In FY15 we announced the strategic am

of investing £2 Sbn inland and bulld

over the four years to FY19in support of

our strategic growth objective

Medium-term target

£2.5bn

We have continued to make good
progress with our target of £2.5bn
investment in land and build with a
further £472m invested in land and
build during the year {FY16 £468m),

Further information on this strategic pricrity is provided on pages 48 to 51

Highlights in the year
New sites exchanged

75 high-quahty sites with attractive
embedded margins added to land
bank in FY17 {(FY16. 65), equivalent to
€ 3,164 additional plots (FY16 ¢.2,614
plots), a 15% increase in the number
of sites, and a 21% increase N the
number of units

Land secured with a high level of
optionahty (71%)

The market for land remains
relatively berign and competition

for our typical brownfield sites is

stilt highly fragmented

The business continues (o mantain
operational focus and discipline in
the assessment of Its land purchases
to ensure that returns continue to
flow to shareholders

Land was secured across all
three products

-

Graphic removed
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Land bank

e Theland bank as at 31 August 2017
was 9,967 units (FY16 10,186 units)

e« Total owned and controlled land bank
as at 31 August 2017 represents 4 3
years supply (FY16 4 4 years)

There I1s detailed planning consent in

place far

= 1009% of FY18 planned first
occupations

a 65% of FY19 planned first
occupations

Case study: Engagement on planning issues with local communities

Ocean House, Carlyon Bay

Development:
32 Lifestyle Living apartments

The story:

We signed a 24-maonth option
agreement to purchase the site of
this former hotel in October 2014

This gave us time to address the
planning 1ssues relating to the ioss of
the hotel and employment, and to
arrive at the ngnt quality of design
required for such a sensitive location

Extensive engagement with local
community, interest groups and the
media meant that the benefits of
providing specialist retirement
housing were balanced against any
concerns regarding the loss of the
existing use.

Consequently, plans for the 17 acre
site were successfully approved on
the first time of asking by Cornwall
Council's Planning Cormmittee

Cpened in July 2017, Ocean House,

Carlyon Bay s a development of 32
high specification two bedroom

-

apartmenits, less than 300 feet from
the bay itself, giving fantasuc views
and access to the beautiful outdoors
Each luxurious Lifestyle Living
apariment has been carefully
designed to provide the best of
comfortable, modern hving for the
over 55s

-

Graphic removed

|
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Qur Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Background to our land buying

Our sites are typically centrally
located within towns and cities

Sites range from 05 to 30 acres
In size

Less competition for our sites
from traditional housebuilders,
who tend to be interested in
larger, usually greenfield,
locations

Limited on-site affordable
housing requirements and
mitigated impact of Section 106
angd Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL)' payments

Experienced m-house planning
team, ensuring a consistent
approach to subrmssion and
negonation of planning
applications

Optimised development density
thraugh reduced on-site parking
and amenity space requirements

1 See poge 158 for glossory of terms

McCarthy & Stone pic
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Gary Day, Land & Planning Director
“Our differentiated land

model ensures that

we adopt clear land
acquisition criteria and

a strict approval process”
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Effective planning
and design

Strategic aim
Qur aim is to operate an efficient and effective planning process and to design
great homes to meet our customers’ ever changing needs and improve their quality of life

KPIs r j

Detailed planning consents

64

(FY16" 80)

First time planning consents

7 5 % Graphicremoved

(FY16: 699%)

Successful planning appeals

64%

(FY16: 42%)

Retained customer
satisfaction rating

Five star HBF | _l

Lifestyle Living annual legal ’—_
completions

101

{FY16: 88)

Graphi d
weeks saved per scheme raphicremove

from land exchange to
build start

c4

(FY16: ¢.17 weeks) I— _I

fmages 1 Colwco Court, Glossop 2 Bloke Courl, Bridgwarer
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QOur Business Model continued

Effective planning
and design

Graphic removed

Case study: Shortening development cycle

Tenterden, Kent

The main factors that helped shorten
the development cycle were,
Desigring the building using our

[ N

Development:
36 Retirement Living apartments

Graphic removed

L |

Jadon Silva, Group Product and
Development Director

“Our aim to deliver products

The story:

= Contracts exchanged (subject
to planning) 29 February 2016

» Achieved planning perrmission.
14 September 2016 {local first
tme consent in 28 weeks from
land exchange)

s Achieved build start' 5 June 2017
{66 weeks or ¢.15.3 months from
land exchange)

standard apartment types and
standard details to simphfy the
design process whilst producing
an external design that was
strongly influenced by the local
vernacular and percewed by the
local commuruty to be in keeping
with the local style

The site-enabling works were
simplified through improved
collaboration {i.e underground
drainage, car parking design,

tailored to our customers’
needs has led to a number
of formal product reviews,
offering significant
aesthetic enhancement”

retaining walis) to ensure we could
move quickly from site acquisiiion
to the construction of the new
development

3a McCarthy & Stone plc
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O,

Operational efficiency:
Development initiative

Development cycle
Y16 FY17

€.19.1 months

The development inttiative, introduced
in F¥15, aims to reduce the ume taken
between land exchange and build start
A number of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were implemented,
focusing on the planning process,
improved local consultations, increased
product and design standardisation and

¢18.1 months

Medium-term target

16 months

value engineering. Our target for
reducing the ume taken between land
exchange and starting build is 16 months
for standard sites achieving a first time
detailed planning consent Durning FY17,
a further c four weeks per scheme have
been saved from land exchange to build
start, averaging at ¢ 18 1 months

Yo\
Q&

Continued product
innovation

(i) Customer satisfaction
The aim s to retain pur Five Star
HBF customer satisfaction rating

The Five Star H8F customer
satisfaction rating was retained
for the 12th consecutive year

Lifestyle Living units sold as a percentage of total completions

FY16 FY17

3.8%

{ii) Expand customer base
Grow Lifestyle Living to ¢.10% of
annual legal completions

4.4

Medium-term target

10 %

Lifestyle Lving continued to grow durin
FY17 to 4 4% (FY16 3.8%) of annual lega
completuons, despite a lower number
of sales releases in the year four
compared to five sales releases in FY16

Further information on these two strategic priorities 1s provided on pages 50 and 51

Highlights in the year

Planning consents

s FY17 was another strong year for
planning, with detaited planning
consents achieved on 64 sites,
representing ¢.2,473 units {FY16. 60
sites, representng ¢ 2,449 units)

a Dunng N'Y17 we achieved 75%
success on first time planning
consents (FY16. 63%) and won rune
appeals (¢.329 units) representing a
64% (FY16 42%) success rate This
compares favourably against the
naucnal average rate of 32%’

Product Approval Group

During FY17, a Product Approval Group
(PAG") was established to enhance our
product offering, and identify and resolve
1Issues Members of PAG includes seruor
managers from Sales and Marketing,
Managerent Services, Develcpment,
Construction, Procurement, Customer
Services, and Health & Safety. It meets
re§ularly to deliver optimum product
selection and design decisicn-making
PAG has led to greater standardisation
across the Group

1 Pionming Inspectorate Stolistics (PINS), August 2017,
based on 11,052 appeais during the year ended
30 jure 2017, with 3,578 appeais oflowed

Continuous product improvements
Our aim to deliver products talored
to our customers' needs has led 10 a2
number of product improvements,

» A Bistro concept kitchen has been
introduced into Retirement Living
Plus, prowviding a2 more flexible
dining experience

s Our bathrooms have undergone
a significant makeover, offering
significant aesthetic enhancement
Through impraved purchasing
agreements, bathrooms have not
only been enhanced in Ime with
changing trends, but significant
savings have also been identified,
€ £20 5k per developmeryt

» Electric car charging points have
been iIncorporated Into the design
concept for our sites

a Improved kitchen design, making
better use of space

Standardisation

The Group uses the integrated Blv
{Bulding Information Management)
tocl Datum It contains all our standard
information ranging from apartment
plans to specifications for indvidual
butlding components.

This mformation 1s stored alongside
specific project information, including
architectural drawings, 30 models,
and specfications The system enables
a full cost plan t¢ be compiled for each
project from the early development
stages This helps to ensure greater
predictabiity of project costs from the
outset. It has been refined during the
year, primarily focusing on increasing
the content and its functionality

it has enabled the Group to further
standardise the product, improve
rebate curnpliance, and speed up the
development cycle,

More efficient development cycle
During FY17, ¢ four weeks per scheme
has been saved from land exchange
to budd start This was achieved by
focusing on the planning process, in
particular, local consultations, increased
product and design standardisation,
and vaiue engineering

Quality of products

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
November 2016 we were pleased to again
receive Best Retirernent Scheme for Ramsay
Grange and Lyle Court, our combined
Retirement Living Plus and Lifestyle Living
development in Barnton, Edinburgh
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Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

Strategic aim
We aim to deliver exceptional build quality whist maintaining industry-leading health and safety standards

KPIs [ ]

Build starts in the year

66

{FY16: 42)
Reduction in build cycle

C. 4 weeks eraphic removed

(FY16: ¢.3 weeks)
Gross profit margin

20%

(FY16: 21%)

Graphic removed

image
T Savoy House ond Tudor Rose Court, Southseo
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Operational efficiency:
Build initiative

Our build nitiative continues to drive
improvements to the buid pracess, to
accelerate bulld tmescales, reduce build
costs and enhance margins. Specific
focus has been placed on supply chain
management to maximise savings as well
as driving towards longer-term benefits

Build cycle
Fri6

C.15.3 months

During FY17, the average buitd cycle was
further reduced by ¢ 4 weeks, down from
15 3 months in FY16, to 14.4 months

Gross margin was reduced in the year
however, from 21%n FY16 to 20% in FY17,

C14.4 months

via the increased use of modern methods
of construction. The Group's framework
of critical controls introduced last year

ts now fully embedded across all our
regions and 15 driving improvements

to build cycle times and budgets.

Medium-term target

1 2 months

impacted by the age and mix of units
sold, increased incentive costs, bulld
cost Increases offset by pricing
impravements and some additional land
renegotiation Costs

Further information on this strategic priority Is provided on page 50

Highlights in the year

Pragress on build activity

FY17 saw a 57% increase in the number
build starts, at 66, compared with

42 in FY1o

During FY17, 33% of build starts

were non-traditicnal build techniques
(1 e Porotherm blocks and hghtweight
steel frame} contributing to an average
build cycle reduction of four weeks

Health and Safety
Health and Safety remains a top priority
for the Group Arecalibration of the
scorning critena for the BSG audits in
FY17 resuited in lower average scores
dunng the year, but now provides
more meaningful feedback than before
For FY17 we achieved a score of 86%
against the new scoring criteria Dunng
the year a number of improvements
have been made:
w Health & Safety Commuttee now
established, chaired by our Chief
Operaung Officer

New pioneering processes have

been introduced

a The education and involvement
of our subcentractors in Health
and Safety

s Thentroduction i a new
apprenticeship scheme

a Designinitiative a national traiming
programme ralled out to our
designers so they are equipped to
design risk out of bulldings before
they are built

» Drones are being used for rooftop
Heatth and Safety inspections

m Every region now has their own
dedicated Health and Safety Adviser

= Defibrillators are now fitted at every
new site

Pride in the Job awards

The Group was also pleased to win 15
awards at the 2017 NHBC Pride in the
Job awards, markang a 50% increase
nwinners from 2016 In addiuon,

7 site managers also won Seals of
Excellence and 1 Regional Winner

The scheme 15 dedicated to recogrising
construction site managers who achieve
the highest standards in hogusebuilding
and has been instrumental in driving up
standards in the sector for 37 years

BSG awards

= We won three BSG Health & Safety
awards in FY17 BSG Best Use of
Technolcgy for Heaith & Safety award
for our proneering work using drones
for roof inspection to obviate the
need for work at height

s Two Site Manager of the Year awards

Procurement

Good progress was made with cost

saving initiatives dunng the year

» Total rebates of c.£3 Om invoiced
in FY17 (FY16 £1.8m), as a result of
negotiating more favourable suppler
terms and improving compliance for
meeting rebates targets

a 22 procurement tenders completed,
dentfying a savings opportunity of
£127,000 per development
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Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

[ T

Graphicremoved
Graphic removed
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F _l Case study: Shortening build cycle (build time reduced to 55 weeks})
Freeman House, Canterbury, Kent

Development: To overcome the various issues

54 Reti t Livin surrounding the complex build of this
etiremen § apartments development, we changed the build

Graphic removed

|_ _l The story: technology to Porotherm hght weight
Freeman House, Canterburr, was a ¢lay blocks with a /zmm bed joint.
john Tonkiss, Chief Operating Officer complicated four-storey build, facing This technolo%y was known to be
. . R the cricket ground, with various uicker to lay, lighter to construct and
The build initiative balconies to adll uhnlts,dsteel frame gld not absorb as much rain during
- : apertures and shared access withthe  the inclement weather, As a result,
_Cont'nues to drive cncket club and the local Sainsbury's we delivered the scheme one month
improvements to lngaéfdmon, v;e had tc()j accommogate ahead of programme taking first
. ays’ proeductton down-time due occupations on 17 july 2077, resultin
the build P"Pcess- to cricket matches during the season.  1n Ssaotal weeks or c)1’2‘8 maonths &
accelerate timescales The build cvl gl from build start to first occupation
) e build cycle commenced in June
and reduce costs 2016, with a forecast first occupation
date of 14 August 2017
imoges

1 Lancoster House. Ickenham
2 Freeman House, Canterbury
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Unique sales
and marketing

Strategic aim
We aim to make our sales process as easy as possible for our customers ensuring
that they are fully supported from the initial enquiry right through to legal completion

KPls r _|

Legal cornpletions (units)

2,302

{FY16: 2,296)

Average selling price (£k)

£ 273k

(FY16: £264k}

Off-plan reservation rate (%)

53%

(FY16: 50%)

Maonths to reserve out
from first occupation

19

(FY16; 18)

Graphic removed
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Our Business Model continued

Unique sales
and marketing

443

Graphicremoved

Case study: Accelerating off-plan reservations
Jameson Gate, Portobello, Edinburgh

Development:
42 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

In order to maxirmise the strong database we had for Jameson Gate, we ensured
our sales team was fully inducted and provided with the tcols required to sell
with confidence, We opted to do an initial survey of gur database, which prowvided
our teams with a detaited insight of the prospects allowing custormers to move
quickly through the quaification process to booking home appontrments, from
which reservations were secured This, alcng with events for our reservists and
industry networking, helped towards achieving 100% off-plan reservations at
Jamesan Gate.

MecCarthy & Stone plc

- ]

Graphicremoved
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David Bridges, Group Marketing & Customer
Expenence Director

“Our continued investment
in improving the customer
journey, together with
introducing the new
Relationship Manager role
across all regions has had a
significant positive impact
on off-plan sales rates”
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In FY15 we announced the
strategic target of seling more

Unit sales
FY16

At

=ull
Sales growth

2'296 FY17

Tota! legal completions were shghtly
ahead of the prior year despite

ASP
FYie

FY1?

£264k

2,302

£273k

thar 3,000 units per annurm by
FY19 at an ASP of ¢ £300k

Medium-term target

3,000

delivering just 49 first occupations
(FY16. 69)

Medium-term target

£300k

Increase in ASP reflects a continuing improverment in sales mix and quality of sites

Our sales initiative was introduced in
F¥15 to achieve more than 50% off-
plan reservations and then reserve

Operational efficiency
Sales initiatives:

Average % sales off-plan

FY16 FY1?7

50%

(i) Achieve greater than 50%

off-plan reservations

Qur sales mitiatve continued to make
good progress during the year The
main focus has been on enhancng

the early part of the customer journey
via website improverments and the
development of early relationships with

Average time to sell out

FY16 FY17

18months

(ii) Reserve out remaining apartments
within 12 months of first occupation
The average time to sell out was shghtly

19months

out remainiNg apartments withun
12 months of first cccupation

Medium-term target

53% 50%

enquirers prior to site sales launches
New Relationship Management teams
are now In place in all regions

These teams have contributed to the
improvement in the off-plan sales
rate to 53% n FY17, compared with
50% 1n FY16; our second half levels
being particularly strong at 58%.

Medium-term target
12months

hI%her than in the pricr year due to the
selling out of clder sites. Only cne site
now remains from FY14 and earler years

Further information on these twao strategic priontes s provided on pages 49 and 50

Website redesign

Our website has been redesigned to
Improve our customer journey and
achieve better search functionalty

A new digital agency was also appointed
1o support search engine optimisation,
pay per chick and online display activity
to improve our online efficiency

Hiihlights in the year
Rebranding

We refreshed our product branding
during the year in order to capitalise

on our strong brand which will now be
used in a unified way across our three
products Qur Assisted Living product
was rebranded as Retiremnent Living Plus
and our Qrtus Hormes product was
rebranded as Lifestyle Living Thus will
allow us to capitalise cn our existing
strong brand recognition, optimise our
marketing spend and create greater
consistency across our preduct names

Improved marketing materials

A more consistent creative style was
implemented during the year to deliver
stronger customer response to media.

Outsourced call handling now fully
embedded

Ventrica, our outsourced call centre, is
driving improved conversion rates to visits

A natonal brand bullding TV carmpagn
to be launched in the New Year

Continued investment in sales training
We have delivered high-impact training
to Area Sales Managers who are critical
to sales performance and have setup a
new national training academy

Part-exchange (PX)

Duning FY17, we worked closely with ocur
third-party PX providers to improve the
terms of their part-exchange offering,
resulting in an estimated saving of

¢ £1m in addition, we successfully
piloted an in-house part-exchange
scherme where McCarthy & Stone
purchases the customer's property
This has resulted 1n a cost saving of

¢ £imn relation to 49 properties
resold during FY17, when compared

to the costs associated with using
third-party part-exchange providers
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Our Business Model continued

Customer experience
and property management

Strategic aim

We aim to enrich the lives of our customers by providing the highest quality property management,
care and support services in response to their changing needs

KPis

-

Number of managed
developments

312

Meals per month

c.60,500

(FY16: c.43,200)

(FY16: 264)

Number of homeowners

c.14,600

(FY16:¢.12,000+

CQC score {rated "Good")

98%

(FY16: 98%)

Retained five star customer
satisfaction rating

Five star
HBF

Highlights in the year
Customer satisfaction
As the business continued 1o grow, cur
management services division remained
committed to maintaining s customer-
focused approach, ensuring its speed of
growth never comprormised the quality
of service it provided The positive
results from a recent customer
satisfaction survey demonstrated this
ethos of excellence 4,258 homeowners,
In apartments first built and sold more
than 18 months ago, responded to an
independent survey in 2017. Nine out
of ten said they were satisfied with the:
s management services on offer
a attention to detall undertaken
u desire to deliver innovative
new services which allowed
homeowners 1o enyoy a safe and
secure, ndependent lifestyle at
the developments looked after by
our management services division

46 McCarthy & Stone plc

Additional care and
domestic hours per month

c.10,860

{FY16: ¢.8,400)

L

Improvements in the

handover process

Over the last year our management
services division has been improving
and aligning the handover process
from the construction teams to provide
a much enhanced customer experience.
All the regrons have now implemented
a new phased occupation protocol,
which looks at the development from
our customers’ perspective.

CQC score

98% of our Inspections have been
rated “Good” We are always laoking
to develop our people and improve
our processes tn order to provide a
high-quality service

Our focus 1s on evidencing that we
pay attention to the detail to make a
difference to homeowners' hves and
being able tc demanstrate that we
always go the extra mile

Graphic removed

Our awards

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
November 2016 we were pleased to
receive Best Customer Satisfaction
Imitiatrve for our approach to ensuring
that we deliver a five-star service

for our homeowners The Group has
also won "Best Retirement Scheme”
at the annual Housebuilder Awards

in 2016

McCarthy & Stone’s comrmitment to
quaiity and customer service continues
to be recognised by homeowners.

In March 2017, the Group received

the fuil Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction from the HBF for the

12th consecutive year - making «t the
only UK housebuilder, of any size or
type, to achieve this accolade.
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Case study: Providing care and support to our homeowners

Sharon Gratton, House Manager

Location:

Rockhaven Court, Horwich, Bolton
Development:

45 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

Sharon was a finahst in the On-
Site Staff Member Category at the
ARMA ACE 2017 awards, which
was a fantastic achievement
Despite not winning, she was
“highly commended”

| N

Graphit removed

Sharon 1s a shining beacan of what
our House Managers and Estate
Managers do on a daily basis From
the day she welcomed her first
homeowner, Sharon has made it her
primary objective to ensure everyone
feels welcome and quickly settles
inta ther new living efvironment
that promotes independence,
companionship and security Sheis
the first to say that it's been the most
rewarding role in her career so far

L ]

Mark Riddington, Managing Director
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Lirruted

"Qver the last 12 months
our management
services division has been
improving and aligning the
handover process from
the construction teams
to provide an enhanced
customer experience”

Whilst sustaining an active and
stmulating activities calendar
for homeowners to enjoy seems
straightforward, the amount of
planning involved should not be

underestimated, especially when
factoring in peoples’ different health
and rmobility needs For Sharon,

it's more than just a Job title. It's

& deeply felt vocanon to ensure

the welfare and happiness of the
homeowners under her care.

whether organising a programme

of stimulating social activities,

dealing with emotional distressing
crcumstances, rautine development
issues or Just being a "good
neighbour”, Sharon's professionalism,
empathy, attention to detaif and
sense of fun shines through Sheis
loved by her homecwners, respected
by her peers and recognised by
visitars for the outstanding job she
has done for the past five years

[ ]

Graphic removed
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Our Medium-Term Strategy

Creatingan e

and scalable business

Icient

_/.|'| Sales growth

Our medium-term strategy is to create an efficient
and scalable business capable of building and selling
more than 3,600 units per annum

To deliver this, we focus on four strategic priorities

T

(

Increased

investment in
jand and build

We aim to invest £2 5bn
n land and build over
four years from FY16

to FY19 to support

growth and capture

alarger share of the
retiree market

|
OO

Operational
efficiency

We aim to create a
more efficient and
scalable business by
shortening the working
capital cycle across our
core actities sales,
development and build

Q

\n
Continued

product
innovation

We aim to meet our
customers’ changing
needs and expand our
customer base through
ncreasing capacity and
capabifity and ensuring
oNgoing Innovation
across our products

Focus on financial performance

We operate with financial discipline and an appropriate capital structure
in order to maximise margins and return on capital employed (ROCE')
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progress in FY17 for FY18
Build and sell | Legal 1,923 2,296 2,302 » Total legal completions u Delver strong
/ more than campietions . . . maintained at FY16 levels upward momentum
_.|I 3000units | (units) units units units despite delivering just 49 in forward order
— per anaum first occupations this year book supported by
Sales atan average compared to 69N FY16 anincreased level
growth Z?L“'E%ggﬁe » 126 apartments sold (o of sales releases
- PfP Capital as partof a s Continue to secure
Build and sell new strategic relationship completion chains
rmare than 3,000 allowing access ta the via effective use
LAItS per annum growing rental market of part-exchange
ntheMedium | e e e T e e ] when required
term ASP £245k £264Kk £273k » 3% improverment in ASP
(EK) reflecting a continuing u Deliver ¢.BO new
improvement in sales rmex sales releases
and quality of sites and c 65 first
--------------------------------------------------------------------- occupations
Revenue £485.7m | £635.9m | £660.9m |= Achieved 4% revenue growth | - oo Erow
(Emy} despite aweakened forward rental opnortunt
order book brought into PP o
the year and fewer first
occupations
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progressin FY17 for FY18
£2 5bn Cash £0.4bn £0.5bn £0.5bn |wConbnued to invest inland m Target land and
investment In finvestment in and build throughout the bulld spend of
land and buitd | land and buld year despltekseasonat cash ¢ £0.6bn - ¢.£0.7bn
by F¥19 (Ehny availability skewed towards » Continue 1o target
Investment the second half of FY17 (h:%ht»quahty Iangde
in land and « FY17 land and build spend in accordance
build of £0 5bn was on target with our strict site
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" purchase criteria,
£2 5bn investment Land bank 10,087 10,186 9,967 » Land bank stands at 9,967 secunng contract
inland and (units) units units units units and represents conditionality where
build over four 4 3 years supply appropriate
years to F¥19 to a There 1s detalled planring
support growth N place for 100% of FY18
a'nd capture @ planned first occupations
larger snare of the and 65% of FY1S planned
retree market first occupations
Sites acquired [ 99 65 75 m 75 sites acquired during
sites sites sites FY17, reflectng continued
momentum within our land
acquisiticn strategy and the
avatlability of tugh-quality
sites
w Terms agreed on additional
1,355 units, representing a
further 0 6 years supply
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Our Medium-Term Strategy continued

Performance

Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 FY17 ProgressinFY17 for FY18

Improve Capital turn 1.0x 1.2x 1.1% m The decrease In FY17 u Continue tomprove
a capital turn underlyng operacung profit off-plan sales

o in order o together with an increased rates and targetin

maxirmise level of Investment in land excess of 50% off-

0perationa] ROCE and buld has ledto a plan reservations
Ffici reduction in capital urn across all Fy18 first

efficency 10 V1% (FY16 1 2%) occupations

Create an even
more efficient
and scalable
business o
support planned
investment and
targeted growth

Sales initiative

w Exceeded our target 1o
achieve greater than 50%
off-plan reservations,
with 53% off-plan sales
achieved in FY17 Intotal, 26
developments of the 49 FY17
first occupations exceeded
the 50% target, with six
developments exceeding
80% off-plan sales rates

m Average time taken to sefl
out Increased shghtly to
19 months due to the final
seil-out of glder sies

Development initiative

= Time taken between land
exchange and build start
reduced by ¢ four weeks for
standard sites. Build actwty
commenced an 73 sites
dunng FY17{FY16 54)

Build initiative

u Datum platform is now
in place to support
standardisaton, value
engineenng and cost
management

& £3m of rebates invoiced
NFY17 (FY16 £18m)

m 22 procurement tenders
completed dunng
the year, delivering a
savings opporiunity of
£127k per development

= Target furcher
reductions intme
o sell put

= Continue to roll out
our development
inthiative and target
further reductions
In average ume
taken from land
exchange to buildg
start

a Focys on tighter
rmanagement
of buld cycle
by embedding
consistent working
practices and rolling
out Datum platform
across all new-build
starts in Fy18

» Continue (¢ adopt
modern methods
of construction in
order to reduce
build times further
and pursue
further margin
improvement

= Ensure maximum
rebate cormphance
1S rmaintained across
all developments
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPl | FY15 FYt6 FY17 Progressin FY17 for FY18
n Customer Customer 5 star 5 star 5 star m Five Star HBF customer m Retain Five Star
Q sausfaction satisfaction satsfaction raung retained HBF customer
\} Retain ranng for 12th consecutive ycar satsfactn rating
. Five Star HBF = Successfully ncreased m Continue to
Continued customer capaaty and capability of increase capacity
product satisfaction OuUr Management services and capability
i i rating business to ensure that of management
Innovation we can meet the needs services business in
Meet our of customers at all new order to keep pace
custormers’ developments. Volume of with growth in new
changing needs developments managed developments
and expand our increased from 264 to 312
customerbase | .t e e e e
Expand Lifestyle Laving | 1.0% 3.8% 4.4% = Lifestyle Living now u Grow Lifestyle
customer base{ completions represents ¢ 7% (FY 16 8%) Living to c.10%
Grow Lifestyle (%rﬁrt'o;aln ) ofland bank of land bank
Living to ¢ 100 | COMPIEHIONS @ 101 (FY16 88) Lifestyle Living | m Continued
of annual legal units sold during FY17 with innovation in our
completions four new Lifestyle Lving core products
developments released for ensuring that we are
sale N FY17 (FY16 five) meeung the needs
of our customers
= Continue 1o expand
our customer base
through Private
Rental Sector (PRS)
opportunities and
our Lifestyte Living
‘Bungalow’ product
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KPt | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progress in FY17 for FY18
Improve Underlying £95.3m |£107.2m | £96.2m |=£112m (2ppts in operating = Continue to target
underlying operatng margin) decrease as d result high-quality land
operating profit’ (Em) of the age and mix of units with attractive
profit and and underlying| 20% 17% 15% sold, ncreased ncentive costs| margms
Focus on maximise operating and build cost increases offset
financial margins profit margin by pricing simprovements, . gﬁﬁggg;tsae;’g: <
Target (96) some additonal land via the build
performance oy groved renegotiation costs and our \ntiatve
Target top- ROpCE (25% continued investment in our
quartiesector  frargen | b b fegonal infrasiructure [ mMaintain strong
margins ;n”ga l ROCE (%) 20% 20% 16% = 4ppts ROCE ergsion as 3 and focus on cash
retu P result of a decrease in the management
Y17 underlying operating
profit together with an s Business growth to
increased level of investment | 3chieve operational
inland and buld leverage
Net (debt) (E44.4m)| £52.8m |£30.7m |=Mantaned strong net cash
cash (Em) positton due to a disophined
approach to fand and
builld spend

1 Underlying operoting profic has been reconoled within note 6 to the Consohidoted Financiol Stetements
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Financial Review

Graphic removed

L |

Rawan Baker, Chief Financial Officer

“The Group balance sheet remains
strong with net cash of £31 million
at the year end to support future
investment in land and build”

1 Underlying operating profit has been reconciled within note 6 to the Consoldated Financral Stoements
2 See poge 158 for glossary of terms
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Operating profit

£94.2m

{FY16: £95.1m)

Underlying operating profit’

£96.2m

(FY16: £107.2m)}

Net cash?

£30./m

(FY16. £52.8m)

TNAV2

£676.4m

(FY16: £626.8m)

Our performance

McCarthy & Stone has continued to
make progress towards achieving its
medium-term strategic objective with
significant focus placed on investment
in land and build and keeping the
workftow of the business firmly on track.

Revenue

Revenue increased by 4% this year (o
£661m (FY16 £636m) primarily driven by
an increase in average selling prices from
£264k to £273k reflecting a continuing
improvement n sales mix and qualit

of sites. Legal completions remawne

in hne with the prior year at 2,302

units (FY16 2,296) despite a weakened
forward order book brought into the
year and Jusk 49 first occupations during
the year (FY16: 69) Volumes benefited
from the accelerated off-plan sales

rates improvement from 50% in FY16

to 53% in FY17 and the bulk sale of 126
apartments to PP Capital as part of the
new strategic relationship allowing us

to access the growing rental market



Profit

The Group achieved an underlying
profit before tax for the year of £94m
(FY16 £105m)and a statutory profit
before tax of £92m (FY16 £93m)

This was achieved at a gross profit
margin of 20% (FY16 21%)and an
underlying operating margin of 15%
(FY16 17%) This reduction in operating
profit margin was driven by the age
and mix of stock seld, an increase In
incentives offered to customers to
close out completion chams in liEht

of the increased uncertainty in the
secandary market, build cost increases
offset by pricing iImprovements, some
additional abortive land costs as we
sought to reposition our land bank
and our continuing iNnvestment In
regional operational infrastructure

1o Support our growth strategy

The overheads i the business
continued to be weill-contrelled with
total administrative expenses for the
year of £37m (FY16. 33m), excluding
exceptional items and amortisation
of brand They remain at broadly the
same proportion of revenue as last
year of 6% (FY16: 5%) and reflect the
investment being made to dehlver
the strategic growth of the business

Capital structure and interest
we closed the year with a tangible

ross asset value (TGAV'?) of £646m
FY16 £574m), which was a year-on-
year increase of 13%, primarily due (o
the continued level of land and build
nvestrment during the year Similarly,
our tanglble net asset value increased
to £676m (FY16 £627m) The Group
continued to maintain a robust financial
postion with 3 net cash balance of £31m
at 31 August 2017 (FY16 £53m)and
ner%atlve gearing of 4% (FY16, 8%). This
reflects management's ongoing focus
on disciphined cash spend in response
to continuiNg economic uncertanty
and was achieved notwithstanding
the negative cash impact of our new
IN-house part-exchange tool which
resuited in £32m part-exchange assets
being held on the balance sheet at the
year end (FY16. £nmil) We maintained a
strong balance sheet and appropriate
headroom aganst our £200m revolving
credit facility (RCF) throughout the year.

The Group incurred net finance
expenses of £2m during the year

{FY16 £2m), benefiting from a full

year of lower interest costs under the
Group's amended RCF and the annual
revaluation of s shared equity debtors

Exceptional costs

There were no exceptional Costs
incurred during FY17 Total
exceptional costs recogrised within

STRATEGIC REPORT

the Consohidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income during

FY16 were £10m, of which £9m

related to IPC advisor fees and
associated costs and £1m related to
managementincentives, restructurng,
redundancy and refinancing costs.

Taxation

The effective tax rate was close to

the statutory rate during the current
financial year The total tax charge

for the year was £18m (FY16 £19m)
which represents an effective tax rate
of 19% (FY16. 21%) based on a profit
before tax of £92m (FY16 £93m).
Reductions in the rate of corporation

tax 10 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17%

from 1 Aprit 2020 were substantively
enacted on 18 November 2015 and
6 September 2016 respectively.

Earnings and dividend

Adjusted underlying basic earmings per
share decreased by 12% to 14 2 pence
(FY16 161 pence) reflecting the lower
level of profit after tax achueved this
year Basic earrungs per share for FY17
were 13 8 pence (FY16 13 9 pence)
Detals of the calculation of earnings
per share can be found in note 12 to
the consohdated financal statements

The Directors are proposznﬁa firal
dwidend of 3 6 pence per share

Thus follows the interim dividend

of 1.8 pence per share, giving a total
dwidend for the year of 5 4 pence

per share, The proposed final dvidend
reflects our progressive dividend policy
as stated at the IPO The propased
dividend 1s covered 3 umes by earnings
Subject (o shareholder approval at

the AGM, the dividend will be paid

on 1 February 2018 to shareholders

on the register at 5 January 2018

The total cost of the final dvidend
15 £19m, resulting in a total dvdend
cost refating to the year of £29m
{(FY16 £24m)

Risk management

The Group mantains a robust risk
management framework, providing
a clear link between strategy ang the
strategic, operational and financial
risks faced by the business The
approach to risk is set by the Board,
which maintains a close involvement
in dentifying and mitigating nsk and
monitars certain key risk indicaiors at
Board meetings on a regular basis.

As part of managing the financal sk

in the business, the potential impact of
a downturn in the housing market or
the broader UK econormic environment
Is regularly evaluated and we have

a number of key risk indicators that

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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are used at Board level in order to
assess thus Our national reach and
diversified portfoho of land ensures
that we are not averly dependent on
particular lacal markets or indmdual
developments. In addition, our distnct
business modet helps to insulate our
business frorm a downturn, with land
acquisition normally centracted subject
to planming and also often subject to
commercial viability or by way of option,
enabling us to review land acquisition
decisions in light of planning outcomes
and latest market conditions pror

to committing significant capral.

Target returns

Our continuing investment In land and
buld n order to deliver future growth
together with the lower underlym%
aperating profit deliveredin FY17 led
to a decrease in RQCE by 4 ppts to 16%
(FY16: 20%} and a reduction in capital
wrn to 1.1x (FY16. 1 2x). These metrics
will recover, however, once our growth
plans begin to deliver results The
warkflow of the business remains firmly
on track as a result of our continuing
investrment for growth and allows us to
target future increases i both margin
and ROCE with the am of achieving a
ROCE of 25% over the medum-term

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer
13 November 2017
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Risk Management

How we manage the
risks to our business

Effective management of risk Our risk management process

is integral to t_he SucceSSfUI 1. identify risk 2. Determine 3. Treat, 4. Menitor risk 5. Review risk
Implementatlon of our risk appetite tolerate or

corporate strategy. Risk is transfer risk

managed through a five-step > > > >

risk management process,

led by the Board B e B ey K T Aswance

McCarthy & Stone’s governance

Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation
at Board level

Executive
Leadership Team
First line of defence:

Divisional and regional A
management operational co_ntrols
and reporting

Site/development
management

Functional Second line of defence:
support pollcaes and procedures
Thurd Ime of defence
Risk and Internal Audit internal and external audit

The maintenance of formal nisk registers, the identification of key control frameworks, the monitoring of key risk indicators and the
pursuit of a broad assurance programme provide alt levels of management with a clear framework within which to cperate.

The Group’s risk management = Anskin relation to Government The Board has downgraded the nsk
framework requires the maintenance legislation has been increased as associated with build programmes
and regular update of Group risk a result of the recently announced and build eosts as further progress has
scorecards and regional risk registers to gavernment consultation on been made in tightening the controf

identfy the risks to our business medel
and strategic plan, with the major risks N
reviewed by the Board in the context

$r0und rents ervironment around build costs

he Board has also recognised an
mcreased risk in relation to the timing  The risk scorecards and registers

of the Group's appetite for risk Since of legal completons and profit being are supported by frameworks of key
the beginrung of FY17 the Board has skewed towards the year end, which operational and financial controls that
recognised an increase in the following increases the risk N respect of enable risks to be (reated, tolerated or
risks: forecasting accuracy and the uming transferred to third parties

of cash receipts required to fund

further growth
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The nisk scorecards and registers are
complemented by the monitoring of a
set of key risk indicators approved by
the Executive Leadershup Tearn, which
provide early warning of potential issues
and enable ranagernent to react
accordingly Those risk indicators
estahlish the risk appetite for each

risk and are monitored at Group and
regional levels.

Assurance s provided over the effective

design and operation of the risk

framework through a formal programme

of assurance activity This s structured

around three lines of defence.

1 management assurance, through
operational controls and reporting

2 funcuional support in the form of
formal pehcies and procedures

3 programme of assurance activity.
inctuding internal and external audit

During FY17 internal audit reviews have
focused on the following key areas of the
business and identified ways of
enhancing the control environment
e The selling processes post
first occupation
a Bulding in line with budget and
programme including the
implementation of new commercial
and construction key controls
a Customer satsfaction
a [T project governance in relation
to new INitiatives

Overall oversight is provided by the
Board, with individual members of the
Board and the Executive Leadership
Tearn sponsoring each of the key risks

Monitoring key business risks

The Directors have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or guidity

Key business risks are formaily
identified, reviewed and updated

by the Executive Leadership Team
every six months using a risk scoring
methodology Each risk s categonsed
based on likelihood and potental
impact. Once agreed with the Executive
Leadership Team, the risks are plotted
on a risk heat map and submitted to the
Risk and Audit Committee for approval
and subsequently to the Board

STRATEGIC REPORT

The risk appetite is established by a
bi-annual review of the risk heat map

by the Executive Leadership Team. This
rewview confirms whether the relative
position of risks is acceptable and if not
what actions need to be taken to reduce
the likelihood or impact. Arating is given
to each risk that defines whether the risk
1s within the risk appetite and requires
no further attention, if the rnisk 1s
crystallising and therefore action should
be taken before the nsk appetite is
breached or whether the risk s already
beyond the risk appetite requiring
immediate action. The status of each
key risk indicator 1s reviewed for all risks
beyond the risk appetite and reparted
to the Executive Leadership Team and
the Board As part of this review, the
txecutive Leadership Team will review
the actions required and ensure that
progress 1s being made and conclude
whether the proposed actions are still
sufficient

The risks attributed to each land
acquisition opportunity are assessed
by local regional management using
predetermined criteria and form
part of the regional submission (o
the Group Investment Committee,
which approves each land purchase
Following land acquisiticn, the
construction and commercal risks
and opportunities are recorded i a
development risk register A range

of worst-case to best-case potenual
out-turn costs are monitored and
managed throughout the construction
phase, allowing risks to be formally
managed and opportunities realised

Internal control environment
The core elements of the Group-wide
internal control environment are
organisational structure, culture and
values, corporate strategy and a key
controls framework.

Qrganisational structure

The Group's organisational structure

1s established around clear diwsions of
responsibilities between the Board and
the Executive Leadership Team. The
Board 1s respensible for the operationat
control of the Group, including all
strategic, financial, orgarusational, legal
and regulatory matters
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The Executive Leadership Team

15 responsible for the day-to-day
management of the operational
actvities of the Group. Each member
of the Executive Leadership Team has
a'teadership teamy of direct reports,
who are cotlectively responsitle for
the overall system of internal control
across the business.

Culture and values

The Group has developed a values
framework which cansists of five
cornerstone principles: passion,
responsibility, iInnovation, deterrmination
and excellence {PRIDE). These are used
as a guide to conduct business from
key decisions ta day-tc-day actwities.

These values are widely communicated
across the business to ensure
ahgnment with strategic aams and

to actwvely encourage a culture that
promotes teamwork, involvernent

and empowerment at all levels of the
Group These values play a key role

in recruitment across the business.

Corporate strategy

The corporate strategy principally
focuses on nvesting £2 Sbnin land and
builld and on increasing the size of the
business over the medium term The
strategy has been well documented
and communicated both internally

and externally To support ths strategy
the Group has identfied five strategic
priorities, as discussed on page 48

Key controls framework

The key controls framework defines the
Group’s most important internal
controls on which it places key reliance
in the management of (s core business
and reporung on its performance and
progress towards strategic objectives
The Group cperates consistent financal
management, regorting controls and
processes across Its nine regions These
are monitored by the Group Financial
Controller and her team in order to
ensure their effectiveness The key
controls framewaork 1s reviewed and
tested annually with the results
presented to the Board, and is also
subject to internal audit review.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainttes facing the Group include, but are not limited to

Risk area

Risk descripuon

Mitigating actions

Economic
conditions

Housebuilding 1s cyclical and reliant on the broader
economy Adeterioration in the economic outlook,
including economic growth, inflation, interest rates and
buyer confidence, could have a significantimpact on the
Group’s financial performance and abiiity to sell both
reurement apariments and the properties acquired as
part of the recently introduced «n-house part-exchange
scheme

The uncertainty In the economy and specifically the
secondary housebulding market following the resul
of the EU Referendum and General Election is likely
to continue in the short to medium-term as Brexit
negotiatons continue

The Group closely monitors wgustry indicators and
assesses the potential impact of different economic
scenarios Decisions to allocate new capital to land and
build are managed centrally through the Group investment
Commitiee The Group aims to mamntain a natignal and
product spread of developments to ensure that it 1s not
rehant on one particular locality or product type

The operation of in-house part-exchange scheme
introduced during the year 15 subject to strict controls and
regional limits

in addivion, over the course of the last financial year, the Group
has soughi to enhance the robustness of its business model
by developtng a strategic relauonship with PfP Capital to
access the growing rental market This wall help to offset any
potential impact of a downturn in the secondary housing
market

Reputation
and customer
satisfaction

©

The Group constructs and sells a qualty product to an
ageng and sometimes frail cusiomer base and provides
ongong management and personal care services. Any
issues with the preducts or services the Group provides
could impact on repytation or customer satisfaction to
the detriment of the Group’s business model

Adverse national publicity with respect to re-sales,
especially older non-managed properties and those sold
Just prior to the housing market crashn 2008, can resukt
n lower resale values, which in turn can adversely impact
our ability to sell new retrement apartments

The Group enforces strict procedures over the handover of
developments for occupation and the handover of specific
apartments (o Individual customers Ongoing management
and personal care services are provided within a robust
framework of controls which s closely monitored. The
business has a dedicated customer services team and
tracks custarmer satisfaction through NHBC, HBF and
nternal surveys

A new in-house estate agency has been established to
support the re-sales process for customers i our managed
developments on the private market, with the aim of speeding
up the sales process and maximising value on resale,

Sales
performance

©

The Group’s growth plans assume that it can sell ts
products at attractive prices Any volume shortfall or pricing
weakness could have a sigrificant impact on the Group's
financial performance,

Detailed reporung enables the Group to monitor sales
and pricing at a site and unit level and regularly review
performance against expectation with regional
management A strict approval process has been
introduced during the year for awarding discounts and
incentives in excess of certain thresholds.

Workflow
management

I~

The Group has historically suffered from s ias towards
achiewing the majority of its compleuons and profit in the
second half of each financial year Hence, any political
uncertainty or adverse market canditions dunng thrs pertod
could adversely impact the Group's annual performance.
This was evidenced by the EU Referendum result in 2016
and to a lesser extent the General Election autcome in 2017

The Group Is taking action to spread the workftow more
evenly throughout the year, which is likely 1o take effect
from FY19 cnwards, and continues to seek ways in whrch
to improve this Workflow s clasely monitored by regronal
management and the Board

Government
legistation

Like any other business, the Group I1s affected by changes in
Government legistation It is possible that the outcome of the
recent Government consultation on unfair leasehold pracuces
could adversely impact the Group’s business model

The Group closely monitors Governmery proposals and
consultations and seeks alternative solutions, including
iobbying Government, submitting consultation responses,
and combining views with other companies in the sector
to mitigate any potential adverse impact on the business
model The Group has recently carried out animpact
assessment of lower and no ground rents and reviewed
its land appraisal process accordingly

Build
programmes
and build
costs

The Group’s finanaal performance is depengent onits
ability to deliver build programmes on ime and on budget
Build programme or cost over-runs could result in slower
sales or reduced margins,

Buitd progress and costs are reviewed regularly by
dedicated regicnal commercial teams, as weil as being
reported to regional, divisional and Group management
Independent assurance 1s provided through a dedicated
commercial Internal audit resource. Framework agreements
have been established with key subcontractors and
supptiers to provide greater certainty of price and supply In
addhtion, the Group has recently implemented a tighter controt
framework over higher risk more complex developments
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Risk area
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Miugating actions

Employees

The Group’'s employees are central to the achieverment

of the Group's objectives Failure to recruit and retain
sufficient staff resource of the nght quality could constran
growth plans

The Group has put In place attractive reward mecharisms
and provides extensive opportunities for personal
development and training, beth of which are regularly
reviewed aganst peer housebuilders and other employers
n tocal markets Resource requirements are assessed agamst
annual budgets and recruitment processes are designed

to ensure talent actractron to delver the Group's plans

Carrying value

of land

©

The net realisable value of land owned by the Group may
decline due to changes in the property market or other
conditions, or the Group being unable to secure detailed
planning consent on land purchased unconditionally

Whenever possible, contracts to purchase fand are via option
agreement or are conditienal on the Group obtaning
detalled planning consent and contamn a commercial viability
clause The Group performs impairment reviews in line with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’)
requirements

Health &

Safety

Construction sites are inherently risky, and could expose
empioyees/contractars to the risk of serious injury/fatality

Homeowners In the developments the Group manages are
ageng and sometimes frail, with the risk that they can be
maore suscepuble to injury

The Group strives for excellence in health and safety and
considers it to be a top priority The Health & Safety
Operations Director reports directly to the Executive
Leadership Team, \dentifying areas of concern, near misses
and acodents This 1s supported by a nigorous, independent
site inspection process which routinely assesses and
reports on standards During the year, the Group also
established a Health & Safety Committee, charred by our
Chief Operatung Officer

Land

acquisition
and planning

Poor-quality iand and/or location could result in
programme/cost over-runs and difficuity in selling Failure
to obtain timely planning permissions will adversely affect

workflow, resuloing in faliure to meet targeted growth rates,

Regional land buyng teams are in place across all regions
providing local knowledge and expertise These teams are
targeted on fand exchange and completion as part of their
bonus structure

future sales and/or cash flow

We acquire land with a high-degree of conditionality

Regional planning teams have the support and oversight
of the Graup Investment Committee

The Group maintains central IT systems and has in

place a fully tested disaster recovery programme This s
supplemented by regular reviews to seek to reduce the sk
of successful cyber-attacks and a General Data Protection
Regulation (‘GOPR') programme to ensure comnpliance

Cyber/data Failure of any of the Groups IT systems, in particular those
relating to customer data, surveying and valuation, could

o adversely mpact the performance of the Group

Change .

Increased

Viability statement

In addiuon to making a gong concern statement, the
Directors are alsg required to make g longer-term viability
statement to comply with prowvision € 2.2 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014

In response to that, the Directors have assessed the
prospects and financial viability of the Group, taking into
account both its current positicn and circumstances, and
the potential impact of its principal isks The Directors
consider a three-year period was appropriate for this
assessment as our capital cycle from land completion 1o
final sell-out of a development, for FY17 build starts, 1s
approximately three years Our land pipeline also provides
us with sufficient land under control to meet sales targets
for the next three years Accordingly, we consider it

0 No change 0 Decreased

appropriate that our viabllity review period is broadly aligned
with the expected longevity of our owned land supply

The Group 1s subject to & number of principal risks (as
set outin more detal above, and the Directors’ viability
statement review considered the impact that these risks
might have on the Group’'s abtlity to meet its targets This
was undertaken through the performance of 2 single
downside case sensitvity, which reflects a severe but
plausible impact assuming that appropriate steps are
taken to mitigate the impact of the downside

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group will be able to continue \n cperatien and
meet its habilities as they fail due over the three-year
assessment period
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

A responsible housebuilder

Graphic removed

Our focus on enriching the lives of

our homeowners and employees
influences all of our activities,

from identifying and buying [—
suitable land to designing, building,
selling and managing high quality
age-exclusive properties
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introduction

Thus, our second Coerporate Social
Responsibility (‘CSR') report, since
re-joining the London Stock Exchange,
encompasses all the operations from
the land aquisition, planning and
design stage through constructicn

to management of our occupled
developments It explans how we
interact with our stakeholders, namely
our employees, our Customers, our
homeowners and the communities
Inwhich we gperate

As the UK's leading retirement

housebuilder, our driving ambition

across our business 1s to ennch

the lives of our homeowners and

employees We aim to deliver this by.

= Creating a great place to work
which 1s both safe and mspiring
for our employees

= minimising the ervironmental
impact of our actmiuies

= engaging positively with the local
commmunities in which our
developments are built

s building a culture of excellence in
health and safety across all our
business activities

s bulding safe and wibrant
developments to help older people
tead healthy independent lives
ensuring that they experience
retirement Iiving to the full

Our CSR Committee meets quarterly
and is chaired by Gary Day, our
Executive Land & Planning Director

it includes representatives from
across the business - Land & Planming,
Procurement, Construction, Regional
Management, Health & Safety, HR,
Communications, Management Serwices
and Legal The Committee reports
directly to the Executive Leadership
Team and indirectly to the plc Board

Our priorities for FY17 and Fy18

The main priorities of the

Committee in FY17 have been

» establishing KPIs

» amplementing a framework for
greenhouse gas emission reporting

During FY18 the Commuittee will focus on

w contnuing to improve our CSR
performance

s refining our CSR reporting framework

STRATEGIC REPORT

Planning and design

We understand that our homeowners
want to remain active within their
community and near to local amentties
and public transport hnks. On average
our homeowners move no more

than five miles from their current
home into 2 McCarthy & Stone
apartment, so our developments

are clearly helpmg to meet a critical
and growing tocal housing need

We have strict critena when purchasing
land tc ensure the location will suit the
needs and aspirations of customers
Our developments are typically built

on centrally located, urban, brownfield
sites which were previcusly developed
or had an existing estabhshed use.

Examples of sites we have purchased
include local authonty surplus car parks
or buildings, police and fire stations,
garages, pubs, care homes and hotels
In FY17 92% {(FY16 94%) of our tand
exchanges were brownfield sites

We always seek to optimise the
development density of our sites. This,
combined with a relatively low level of
car ownership and usage amongst our
homeowners, means that we deliver a
highly sustainable form of development

Community consultation

We consult with local communities,
businesses and other refevant
stakeholders on every new planring
application we bring forward (bcth pre
and post-subrmission), iIncluding holding
one-to-one meetings, discussions
with affected parties and public
exhibitions This gives neighbours and
other interested parties a platform

to voice their opinions, many of

which help to inform our designs

and approach to construction

Ouring FY17, over 92 (FY16 133)
consultations ang exhibitions were held
with 84 4% (FY16. 79 6%); of attendees
advising that they found them informative.

Construction

We are aware of the impact that the
construction phase of our activities can
have on the local community. All of our
sites must comply with internal pohcies
around levels of noise, cleanhness and
presentation and some of aur sites

are accredited under the Considerate
Constructors Scheme (‘CCSY

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Minimising our impact on the
environment

There are clear environmental and
business benefits to designing energy
efficient homes, using responsibly
sourced and efficient matenals, and with
the minimum of waste sent to 'andfill

Having a clear understanding of where
our money s being spent and how much
waste we create during the construction
and operation of our developments
allows us to make better informed
business decisions whilst ensuring we
rrunimuse our environmental impact

We are comimitted to reducing the level
of waste generated by our construction
sites year-on-year as this will bring both
financial and environmental benefits

Qf the 18,821 tonnes of waste generated
on our construction sies n FY17, only
17% (320 tonnes) went to landfill, the
rest being recycled We cantinue to work
with our waste management COmpanes
to further improve this figure, as well

as with our suppliers to reduce waste
further up the supply chain

DID YOU
KNOW?

93.3%

Waste recycled in FY17
(FY16: 94.4%)
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Greenhouse gas emissions reporting

This section has been prepared in
accordance with our regulatory
obligation to report greenhouse gas
{GHG) emissions pursuart o Section
7 of the Comparies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report)
Regulations 2013. As a newly listed
company, this 1s the first year we have
reported our GHG emissions i our
Annual Report

During the period from 1 September
2016 to 31 August 2017, McCarthy &
Stone emitted 2 total of 16,382 tonnes
of Carbon Dioxide ef}uwalent {tCOe)
from combustion of fuel and operation
of fachties (Scope 1 direct) an
electricity purchased for our own use
(Scope 2 indirect. location-based)

The table below shows our GHG
ermissions for the year ended
31 August 2017

Greenhouse gas emissions in tC0e

7

Combustion of fuel and

operation of facilities {Scope 1) 8,681
Electnaty, heat, steam and

coolng purchased for our own

use (Scope 2 location-based) 7701
Electricity, heat, steam and

cooling purchased for our own

use (Scope 2 market-based) 2,661

Scope 2 emissions calculated using the market-based
approach using suppher specific emission factors are
calculated and reported in 1£O,

Methodology

We quantity and report our
organisatonal GHG emissions
according to the Greenhouse Gas
Protacol Qur sustainability consuttant,
Carbon Credentials, performed the
calculations to convert our activity
data into CO, equivalent usmg the UK
Government 2017 Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the recent
amendments to the GHG Protocol's
Scope 2 Guidance, we have therefore
reported both a location-based and
market-based Scope 2 emissions
figure The Scope 2 market-based
figure reflects emissions from
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electricity purchasing decisions that
McCarthy & Stone has made

When guantfying emissions using the
market-based approach we have used
a supplier specific emission factor
where possible_ If these factars were
unavailable, a residual mix emission
factor was used. This approach 15 in line
with the GHG Protocol Scope 2 Data
Hierarchy.

We have also chosen to report our
emissions per number of managed

developments (312},
Greenhouse gas emissions in tCO,e
Locaton- Markat-
based based
approach approach
17 {7
Total Scope 1 and 2 16,382 11,341

tCO,e per Managed

Development 52.5 36.4

The emissions intgnsity calculation 1s based on a ligure
of 312 managed developments for the year
1 September 201610 31 August 2007

Reporting boundaries

and limitations

We consolidate our organisational
boundary according to the operationai
cantrol approach. Emisstons for all
significant sites have been disclosed,
which includes our offices, construction
sites and developments.

The GHG sources that constitute our
operational boundary for FY17 are

= Scope 1: Natural gas combustion
within boifers, diesel combustion
within generators and road fuel
combustign within vehicles

= Scope 2: Purchased electricity
consumption for our own use

As this 1s aur first year of reporting we
have been unable to gather sufficient
information on refrigerant consumption
across the organisation, therefore this is
excluded from our disclosure,

B ]
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Assumptions and estimations

As this is the first year we have reported
our GHG emissions, our data collection
processes have not been fully
operational across afl areas of reporting.
We have therefore used some
a3ssumptions n order (o estimate our
activity data. For example, we did not
have records of vehicie fuel consumption
avallable for management services’
ermployees or cormpany vans Therefore,
estimations were made using available
data frorm other parts of the business,

In addition, accurate records of

diesel combustion in generators at
construction sites were not available
intime for reporung Therefore, an
estimation was used based on average
desel consumption at each site as well
as available records from procurement

In some cases, missing data has been
esurmated using extrapolation of
available data from the reporting penod.

Improving performance

We montor energy CONSUMpIon on
the developments we manage in detail
to identify opporturities to improve
energy performance. We have now
begun the process of collecting more
accurate data for construction sites
and offices Tros will help us to
understand more about our
consumption and energy use, and to
reduce our emissions gaing farward.
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Efficient homes At 31 August 2017 the Group employed
We design our developments ta 2,264 people (FY16. 2,094) This figure
maximise the performance of the excludes subcontractors and agency DID YOU
fabric and matenials of the building. workers, Some 59% of employees in KNOW?
The "fabric first” approach 1s used the main business are employed on )
for a number of reasons: sites or at developments or as House
s It prionitises the largest item of Managers with the balance besed in
energy consumption in homes our regional and central offices
maintaining a comfortable internzl
temperature Employee communications >
» Theenergy efficency s integrated We communicate with our employees i
intc the bulding and does notrequire  through a vanety of channels including )
occupants to operate complex regular updates and the Group's Online and face-to-face
systems or change their behaviours quarterly staff newsletter Group-wide training courses
business updates led by our Chief completed in FY17
We employ a range of methods across Executive Offtcer on the business (FY16: ¢.8,200)
our “fabric first” approach including strategy give employees an opportunity
s Maximising air tightness to provide feedback to management.
= Instalhng insulation in walls and
Ioft spaces
= Optmising solar gain through
openings and shades Employees: as at 31 August 2017 sl Famal .
= Optimising venulation and usrn% e = otal
the thermal mass of bulding fabrics Directors of the Board
s Addiion of photovoltaic cells to - actual number 5 2 7
buildings where practical - percentage 71.4% 28.6%

Employees in senior management positions

Customer feedback £
{including Directors of subsidiary companies)

We zlso listen and respond to customer

feedback Our current work an - actual number 103 27 130
improving kitchens 1s a good example - percentage 79.2% 20.8%
of this Around 20% of our negative or
Total employees of the Group
neutral feedback on the NHBC New
Homes Survey was related to kitchens, (exduding Non-Executive Directors)
with storage space the most common - actual number 756 1.508 2,264
criticism, As a result, we have improved - percentage 33.4% 66.6%
utr:ialsepr?\grﬁtceaélgz g;gt;:i:gdchdeer:gint% At the end of the financial year 66.6% of all employees were female and 42 7%
make better use of the storage space were over the age of 50
Engaging with the community
We do not just consult with local Emplayee survey
communities at the planming stage Our latest all-employee survey was carried out in October 2016 The response
- we also engage with them during rate was 86% and, as shown in the table below, demonstrated that our employee
the construction phase. Activities engagement scores continue to be significantly higher than external benchmarks.
include visitting tocal schools or
Crganising wisits to our sites to External benchmarks for the employee survey are provided by the external supplier,
encourage children to understand and are based an responses to the same question from other survey participants
the dangers of construction sites
Creating a culture of excellence ) External
and a great place to work 2017 Employees survey mq: F\i& benmma;:
Our people are wital to the continued
growth and success of our business 1am proud to work for McCarthy & Stone 87 89 63
We recognise that attracting and I would be happy to recommend McCarthy &
retaining employees is only possible Stone as a place to work 29 81 74
f we provide the nght working
environment, appropriate reward and I feel a sense of belonging at McCarthy & Stone 77 76 54
recognition schemes and opportunities i feel valued for the work | do 24 74 44
for personal development and training
I am clear about how my rote contributes to
McCarthy & Stone’s success 90 9N 62

McCarthy & Stone ple Annual Report and Accounts 61



Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Our values are:

Passion
Responsibility
innovation
Determination
Excellence

Recognition of achievements

Our values, which were chosen by our
employees, are the standards to which
we hold ourselves accountable and
reflect the way we work, the way we
cammuncate and the way we act,

DID YOU
KNOW?

PRIDE awards
inFY17
(FY16:572)

We celebrate and recognise empioyees
who go the extra mile for a customer
or colleague through our quarterly and
annual PRIDE awards. Qur progress

is illustrated by our most recent
employee survey, which ident:fied

that 87% of our employees are proud
to work for McCarthy & Stone

Any staff member can nominate a
colleague for an instant PRIDE award
which is judged by our regional PRIDE
champions. Each quarter, instant

PRIDE winners are then put forward for
quarterty awards with overall winners
being judged on an annual basis During
FY17, 674 PRICE awards were presented

fmage.

1 Chidren ond teachers from Hucknall Day Nursery
wisit Whyburn Court, Nottingham

62 McCarthy & Stone plc
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NHBC Pride in the job awards

We are extremely pleased that our
standards are recogrused externally

In 2017, 15 of our site managers were
awarded NHBC Pride in the Job awards,
an impressive 50% increase over 2016

NHBC Pride in the job 1s the ingustry's
maost prestigious awards programme,
the awards recognise site managers
who achieve the highest standards of
housebudding and who demonstrate
the highest qualites of workmanship,
leadership, technical expertise and
heaith and safety awareness. 7 of

our site managers have received an
NHBC Seal of Excellence Award

Apprentices and trainees

We offer aspirng site managers the
opportunity to learn hands-on skills on
our construction sites whilst studying
towards a NVQ qualification such as Level
4 Diplorma in Construction and Building
Services Management, and Superwvisions
and Technical Certificate Level 4 NHC in
Constructior and the Built Environment
We also partiqpate in a Shared Trade
Apprentice Scheme, partnening with
South West-based subcontractors, and
varioys colleges. We hope that, once
guahfied, the apprentices will continue
working for the Group, thus helping

|

to alleviate national shartages in
skilled labour

We have also offered trainee
contracts in other departments
such as Sales, Finance and Legal,

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment to
traiming, and personal and professional
development. Performance againist
objectives is formally reviewed on

an annual basis As well as setting
chyecuves, the process includes the
tdentificauon and implementation of

3 tailored personal development plan
Improvement programmes focusing on
quality, efficency and customer serwice
provide an opportunity for all employees
to be involved in the development

of our business and products.

Student placement scheme

The Group 15 also developing the
next generation of houseburders
through a student placement scheme
run in conjunction with Northumbria
University. As part of the scheme,
which has been running since 1991,
students studying for the BSc Hons
in Construction Project Management
have the opportunity to spend a
year working at McCarthy & Stone.



This works well for both the students,
who gain on-site experience,

and for McCarthy & Stone, with

many students competing for
placements and choosing to become
employees after they graduate.

Four new students started their
placement years with us In August
2016 In total, over 130 people have
completed the scheme with us since
it was launched with several scheme
participants continuing to work for

us after completing their degrees
Some have risen to senior roles in the
organisation, induding two who are
now regional managing directors

Employee involvement

Employees are encouraged to
participate 1n the success of the
Group We currently have twe share
schemes which are open to all
employees - a Sharesave plan ('SAYE')
and a Share Incentive Plan ('SIP"). The
SAYE savings contracts are for either
three or five years Neither scheme 15
subject to performance conditions

Diversity and Inclusivity

We are committed to promaoting policies
to ensure that our employees are
treated equally, regardless of status,
gender, sex, age, colour, race or ethnic
origin

We grve full consideration to applications
for employment from peagple with
disabilities where the requiremernts
of the job can be adequately fulfilled
by a person with a disability Should
any employee become disabled, it is
the Group’s policy, wherever possible,
to conlnue the employment ot that
person Itisthe Group's policy to
prowide equal opportunities far the
training and career development

of employees with disabilives.

Woe have recently revewed and updated
our Equality and Diversity Policy

Human rights

We support the United Nations’
Universal Declaraticn of Human Rights
and have polcies and processes in place
to ensure that we act 1n accordance with
principles in relation to areas such as
anti-corruption, diversity, whistleblowing
and the requirements of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 All suppliers are
required to confirm compliance with

our Modern Slavery Policy which

was adopted during the year

STRATEGIC REPORT

House Manager & Estate
Manager of the Year awards

Two years ago we introduced our
House Manager and Estate Manager
of the Year awards to recognise the
amazing work that our pecple do

1IN Managing our developments
These awards recognise the House
Manager and Estate Manager who
have excelled in therr role and gone
above and beyond to enrich the
lives of colleagues and homeowners
alke In June our House Manager
and Estate Manager of the Year

for 2017 were announced

[ ]

Graphic removed

| |

Katring Andre ws, House Manoger of the Yeor 2017
and Richord Wilson, Estate Manoger of the Year 2017

Building a culture of excellence

in health & safety

Health & safety continues to be one of
our top priorities In FY17, we relaunched
our Health & Safety Comrmittee, which
meets guarterly Members of the
Committee include representatives
from Health & Safety, Construction,
Legal, HR, Marketuing and Management
Services and 15 chaired by john
Taonkiss, our Chief Operating Officer

The Committee has oversight of all
aspects of the Group's health and
safety management policies and
procedures, as well as regulatory
Issues and best practice

In addition, the Health & Safety
Operations Director reports directly

to the Executive Leadership Team

As well as the central team who
deterrmine our health and safety
strategy, we have a Group Construction
Health & Safety Manager and

regional Health & Safety advisers

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Katrina Andrews, our House Manager
at Coppice Gate, Dibden Purlieu, has a
long background in customer service
and care, and was appointed as
House Manager at Coppice Gate
when it first opened in August 2016,
Nominations for Katrina commented
on how supportive she s to everyone
arcund her, how fun she is and how
she has & real passion for working with
peopte She commented on how
coming into work was not like work at
all, and that to make a difference to
people’s lives was the best possible
Job satisfaction

Richard Wilson has worked for
YourLife Management Services since
March 2014, and recerved countless
nominations for Fus fantastic

work, enthusiasm and positrvity

as welf as always being farr and
approachable o both colleagues
and homecwners. On accepting his
award, Richard said how lucky he feit
to have a job he enjoyed so much

On-site, we emphasise a proactive
appreoach to health and safety as well as
reinforcing the individual responsibihity
that every site worker has for their, and
their colleagues’ health and safety All
staff (both employees and coniractors)
are required to have adequate heaith
and safety qualifications before starting
work on one of our sites and ail
contractors are required 1o hold a vahd
Construction Skills Certification Scheme
Card Thts evidences that the contractor
has the relevant skills required for therr
role, including understanding the heatth
and safety imphcations of the work they
perform

We require all of cur site managers
and assistant site managers to hold
Construction industry Training Board’s
(CITB') Site Management Safety Training
Scheme gualifications and to be
qualfied first aiders There must be a
qualified first ader on-site at all bmes
and alt incidents must be reported
internally We believe our rigorcus
reporting standards provide us with a
very honest portrayal of our acadent
statistcs.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

During FY17, we reported 23 incidents
under the Reporting of InC:dents
Diseases and Dangerous Cceurrences
Regulations (‘RIDDOR’} to the Health

& Safety Executive. We have been
actively encouraging transparency of
accident reporting and we beleve that
the increase in RIDDOR reporting this
year is a reflection of the greater level
of scrutiny placed by the Group on
this area.

We employ the BSG to undertake
mndependent audits of our construction
sites throughout the year and it visits
each site every three weeks during the
build process Although a recalibration
of the scoring criteria for the BSG audits
in FY17 has resulted in lower average
scores, It also provides more meaningful
feedback than before During FY17

our average score was 86 1% against
the new scoring critera (FY16 98 7%)
These audits help the Group move
closer to its goal of achieving a culture
of excellence in health and safety

Since 2015, the Group has entered 1is
sites for the NHBC Health and Safety
Awards These have been running for
eight years, and recognise and reward
the very best in health and safety, with
the aim of driving up standards, and
showcasing and sharing best practice

During FY17, we recerved two NHBC
Health and Safety commendations
and won three BSG Health and Safety
awards, We won the BSG Best Use
of Technology for Heaith & Safety
award for our prioneering work using
drones far roof Inspection 10 obviate
the need for work at height. We also
wor Lwo Site Manager of the Year
awards in BSG's South west and
Midlands regions respectively

All our house managers and estate
managers have basic first aid training
and are gualified to make intal
assessments of minor trips and falls
Any incident involving a homeowner
on ane of our developments merits a
full enguiry performed by our Health
& Safety team with a view to ensuring
that the incident is not repeated.

Key figures from our 2017 Homegwners Sausfaction Survey

From August 2017, all of aur new
developments are being fitted with
automatic external defibrillators

All offices have a qualified first

aider whose training 1s refreshed
annually All staff are also required to
complete a desk-based questionnaire
concerning their desk space ard
seating arrangements

In 2014, we brought our health and
safety training in-house, allowing us

to taillor the courses to our needs We
have introduced training for staffto
enable them to becormne increasingly
self-supportive 1IN their management

of health and safety During FY17, the
Group delivered 355 m-house trainng
courses for employees and 178 in-house
training coeurses for contractors. in total,
563 people attended safety workshops
and 12 B5G safety surgeries were held

Living in a McCarthy & Stone
development

Our Retirement Living and Retirement
Living Plus developments have a house
manager of estate manager on-site
during working hours or up to 24
hours a day, respectively Since 2010
these services have been provided in
all new developments by our in-house
management services businesses
Therr role 1s not only te help deal with
any ssues that our homeowners may
have but also to help create a friendly
and communal environment where
the homeowners can, if they wish, seek
comparmonship and make new friends.
To support this, the Group has set

up a ‘community fund’ which can be
spent at the House/Estate Manager’'s
discretion with the aim of engendering
a sense of community within the first
year of each new development

We are very proud of the work that
our management services businesses
do in promoting secial interaction
armong our homeowners More than
27,600 social events were held in our
managed developments during FY17,
averaging more than seven events
per development per month.

Agreed Disagreeg

| feel safe and secure in my property 96% 2%
My property is easy to maintain 94% 1%
My property is easy to live in / suitable for my needs 93% 3%
! have good access to local amenities and faciliies 91% 3%
| feel ‘at home' in my property 89% 3%
i find the communal areas homely and welcorming 85% 5%
| make use of the communal areas to socialise 80% 5%
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Social events are organised in our
homeowners’ lounges and range from
coffee mornings, film and quiz nights,
Music evenings, exercise and cratt
classes to local interest talks and events

Our homeowners have been especally
supportive of our 40th year celebration
RVS fundraising challenge, holding coffee
mornings and bake-off competitions,

DID YOU
KNOW?

27,600+

Social events held in our

developmentsin FY17
(FY16: 16,500 for 8 months)

Our homeowners tell us what
they think of McCarthy & Stone
In August 2017 we commissioned our
second hameowners’ satisfaction
survey, contacting homeowners in
our developments which have been
open for at least 18 months We
undertook the survey to see how
our scores compare (o the NHBC
surveys, which are undertaken at
eight weeks and at mine months,

Qver 4,200 homeowners (51%)
responded and the resulis compare ver:
favcourably with the NHBC survey Overaﬁ
satisfaction had improved slightly from
85% to 86% Feedback around the
quality of life In our developments was,
on the whole, positive as indicated by

the responses shown in the table belgw

We witl use the feedback from

the survey to inform discussions
across the business on how we
canimprove the design, layout and
management of aur developments

Helping our homeowners to
reduce their carbon footprint
During 2016, we began a rofl-out

of smart electricity meters across
our developments. These allow us
to monitor usage on a reat-time
basis, both in terms of kWh and cost
of electncity used within shared
areas on a half-hourly basis. As at

31 August 2017, 98 developments
had these srmart meters installed,
representing approximately 31% of
the Group's managed developments,



The data from the new meters has
been received enthusiastically by
homeowners with energy savings
already starting to be seen Some of
the benefits include laundry facilities
being used outside of peak hours
when electricity is cheaper; windows
and doors beng kept shut when the
heating 15 on; and the heating being
turned down when not required.

We will start our roll-out of smart
g4as meters across the Group’s

Retrement Living Plus developments
which use gas, during FY18.

B ]

Graphic removed

Graphic removed

I_Graphic removed
| N _

I

Graphic removed

B

STRATEGIC REPORT

Becoming Dementia-Friendly
In March 2017, we welcomed the
publication of the Dementia-
friendly housing charter that has
been introduced to infarm housing
organisations, corporate bodies
and sector professionals on how
housing, its design and supperting
services can help improve and
rnaintain the well-being of pecple
affected by dementia

The charter, which we played a role in
drafting, 15 an important and influential
document that will inspire the housing
sector to make a valuable contribution
to support people with dementia

We have already identified areas
where we can improve our products
to make them more demenua-friendly
and we have made it a priority to
continue to make key changes across
our orgamsatlon to help improve the
lives ot peapie iving with dementia
We have introduced "Designing

for Dementia” guidance for our
architects and intenor designers

In October 2016 we cwculated our
own Becoming Dementia-Friendly
- Achieving Exceltence in our
Developments document to all our
Reurement Living Plus developments
Our aim s to encourage staff and
homeowners to commit to working
together for pecple with dementia,
and to provide the famifies ang friends
of people with dementia access to
more structured and personalised
support for theyr loved ones

-
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1 Prime Miister Theresa May chatting with harmeowners ol Swaft House, Mardenhead
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Our subsidiary, YourLife Management
Services Lumited, YLMS, is 2 member of
the National Dementia Action Alhance,
which brings together organisations
and indwiduals across England
committed to improving health and
social care outcomes for people hiving
with dementia, and those who care
for them YLMS has produced an
action plan representing our stance
nationall?/ to achieve better standards
for people iving with dementia.

We are striving to ensure that ali of
our developments, both existing and
new builds, will incorporate etements
and principles of demenua-friendly
design. We have developed a McCarthy
& Stone guide that promotes a
technology solution for the needs

of our homeowners: this includes
the new "Care Clip’ that can enable a
person 1o leave a development safe
in the knowledge that we can track
therr whereabouts as needed.

The more our business knows about
dementia, the more we can do to
help and understand the disease
Appropriate traiming 1s therefore vital
and we have redesigned and lengthened
the dementia awareness course
offered to our estate management
teams and our house managers to
help them understand the basics

of dementia, and the response
needed to support people iving with
dementia in our developments

Awvirtual dementia tour has been
delivered to all of our estate
management teams The aim of this
traimng 13 for individuals Lo experience
what it is like to have dementia and
put that learring into practice in thew
developments by improving standards

We are encouraging all of our staff to
become Dementia Friends to learn

a httle bt more about what it is ke
to ive with demenuia and then turn
that understanding into action.

Our overarching aim 1s to meet the
challenge of supporting pecple with
dementia and therr family members
Through this challenge, we am to
create an environment that s inciusive,
accepung and promotes quality of

Iife for people living with dementia.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Our RVS fundraising challenge
Our desire to support and enrich
the lives of older people has been
the driving force behind our 40th
Anniversary chanty partnership
with RVSin 2017, Events have been
held across the business to raise
money for RVS to support the
fantasuc work it does in helping
clder people live better at hcme

Our employees have participated
in cycle nides, chanity walks,
sponsored events, marathons ang
even 3 parachute jurp in Dubai

DID YOU
KNOW?

>f 200,000

Raised for RVS since
January 2017

Graphicremoved

L

We had a dragon boat race in the West
Midlands region, whilst the North
East region arganised a charrty ball

Qur homeowners have also

been extremely supportive of
our fundraising challenge and
have crganised events aCross our
developments during the year.

&6 McCarthy & Stone plc
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we are delighted that we surpassed
our £130,000 target by early September

2017 with events still being organised Graphicremave
and meney still roling in, we are L
tremendously proud of, and grateful

far the achievements and support

of our employees, our homeowners

and our suppliers, who have all

contributed 10 this wonderful cause
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1 South West Region Sky Dive

2 North London Chority Wolk

3 North West Region at Haydack Races



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CSRKPIs

KPt FY17 cutcome FY16 guicome

Planning and design

Consultations and exhibitions 92 133

Number of attendees who found this informative 84.4% 79.6%

Construction and environmental

Greenhouse gas emission per managed development - tonnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) 52.5 n/a

Waste to landfill 1.7% 5.6%

BSG construction site audit (average score) 86.1%' 98.7%

Smart meters in our developments 31% 22%

Employees

PRIDE awards 674 572

Percentage of female Directors 28.6% 14.3%

Percentage of female employees 66.6% 63.8%

Training courses (employees) 13,500+ 8,200

Percentage of employees over 50 42.7% 45.9%

NHBC Pride in the Job awards 15 10

NHBC Seal of Excellence awards 7 2

Health and safety

RIDDOR incidents - construction sites/offices? ™ 23

NHBC Health and Safety awards (commended) 2 5

BSG Health & Safety award winners 3 2

In-house traimng courses for contractors 21 178

Customer satisfaction

HBF Five Star award Yes Yes
27,600+ 16,500+

Annual number of sccial activities in our developments

The reduction 1s due o o recalibration of the sconng cotenu to provide rnare rneaningful feedback
The percentage hoas reduced post yeor-end to 25% follovang the oppemiment of John Corter
includes RIDDGRS 1n respect of sub-contraclors af o sites

The number of socal acinvities wos aniy reported for eight months of FY16

B R -

Our Strategic Report, on pages 4-67 has been reviewed and approved by
the Board

Cn behalf of the Board

Clive Fenton
13 Novernher 2017
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1 view of Poole Harbour from Horizons

2 Beacon Cou, Fife
_ 3 Mr & Mrs Mangell, Efm Tree Court, Huntingdon
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Board of Directors
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John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman
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Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

John was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Chairman
of the Group n September 2013 and s also Chawman of

our Nomination Commuttee. He was Group Chairman of
Persimmon pl¢, 8 position he held between Aprl 2006 and
April 2011, having previously been Group Chief Executive
Officer since 1993 He has spent all his working life in the
housing industry and has unrivailed expenence of working
within the sector.

John s also Chairman of Northampton Saints plc and
a director of Northampton Rugby Football Club Limied
and Premier Rugby Limited.

On 9 Navember 2017, the Company announced john's
intention to retire following the conclusion of the Company's
AGM on 24 January 2018 and the appointment of Paul Lester
as Chairman Designate

Chve joined the Group as Chief Executive Officer in February
2014 He has a wealth: of both housebuillding and business
expernence, having spent almost 30 years with Barrat{
Developments plc He joined Barrattin 1983 and worked

in 2 number of finance and operational roles before

being appointed to the Group Board in 2003 with overalt
responsibility for all operations in the South of England.

He was also responsible for group strategic land, partnership
housing and retirement homes More recently he was

Chief Executive Officer of Mount Anvil, a developrment
company specialising 1n the residential property market

In central London.

Committees
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Rermuneration Committee
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John Tonkiss
Chief Operating Officer

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer

John joined McCarthy & Stone in February 2014 and joined the

Board in November 2015 He was appointed as Chief Operating

Officer on 1 june 2017 John previously held the roles of
Operations Director - North and Business Transformation
Director, and became Group National Operations Director in

September 2016, He 1s responsible for the Group's nine operating
regions and also leads the improvement change programme to
accelerate business growth, enhance customer experience and

improve operating performance

Johnwas previously Chief Executive Officer of Human
Recogrition Systems, the UK's leading biometric solutions
provider Prior to that, he worked for ten years for The Unite
Group, the UK's targest provider of purpose-built student
;cg%rgénodatno n, becorming Group Chief Operating Officer
in

Rowan joned McCarthy & Stone in January 2012 and was
apponted as Chief Financial Officer on 6 January 2017
having previcusly held the role of Group Financial Controller.
Rowan played a lead role in the Company’s successful IPO

n November 2015

Before jotming McCarthy & Stone, Rowan held various roles in
industry and private practice, most notably at Barclays Bank
pic and PricewaterhouseCoopers Rowan 1s a Chartered
Accountant and a Chartered Tax Adviser

Committees
Member of the Allotment and Heatth & Safety Commuttees

Committees
Member of the Disclosure and Alloumnent Committees,
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Frank Nelson
Senior Independent Director
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Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director

Frank joined the Board in November 2013 and 1s the Semor
Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk and Audit
Comrnittee He is a qualfied accountant with 30 years'
experience in the housebuilding, infrastructure and energy
sectors He was Finance Director of Galliford Try plc from
2000 untl 2012 and was also responsible for its PFI/PPP
activiuies. He was previously Finance Director of Try Group plc
from 1987, leading the company through its flotation .n 1989
and subsequent merger with Galliford.

Frank is currently the Senicr Independent Dwector of
HICL Infrastructure Company Limited, Telford Homes plc
and Eurocell plc Frank also acts as an adviser to certain
private businesses.

Mike joined the Board i1 Novemnber 2013 as a Non-Executive
Director and 1s Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
He founded Barchester Healthcare 23 years ago, following

a successful career in advertising Barchester 1s one of the
largest independent healthcare providers in the UK

Mike 1s chairman of Breezie and Oomph, vice chair of

Care England, the care sector trade association, and 2
Non-Executive Director of Connect Physiotherapy He also
chawrs Altnan Care Communities, wha are developing the
next generation of care homes, and 1s a director of Martha
Flora, the Dutch dementia specialist

Committees
Chairman of the Risk and Audit Commuttee, and a member

of the Rermuneration and Normination Committees,
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Committees
Chairman of the Remuneranon Committee, and a member
of the Risk and Audit and Nominatgn Committees.
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director
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John Carter
independent Non-Executive Director

Geeta joined the Board in April 2015 as a Non-Executive
Director She has more than 28 years’ experience in the
housing sector and has recently served as Chief Executive
Officer of Thames Valley Housing Association Limited (TVHAY)
Geeta joincd TVHA In 2008 and in 2013 was awarded an OBE
for her achieverments to social housing

Geelta s a Director of Fizzy Enterprises (2 joint venture

with Silver Arrow, a subsidiary of the Abu Dhabi Investment
Authonty) which she launched in 2012, as a branded
market rent proposition She has 23 years’ experence

In non-executive roles and has served on the Boards of
two housing orgarisations and national and local charites.
Geeta moved to Metropolitan Mousing Assoaation as Chief
Executive Officer in October 2017

John was appointed a Non-Executive Director of McCarthy &
Stane in September 2017. He 1s currently the Chief Executive
of Travis Perkens plc, a position held since January 2014
Having |oined Trawvis Perkins in 1978, he was appointed (o the
Board in 2001 John has been the driving force behind

the growth of Travis Perkins plc, the No 1 supplier of bullding
materials in the UK, and responsible for the growth of 20

UK and European business brands serving retail and B2B
custamers with international global sourcing operatians

John managed and integrated a number of key strategic
acquisiions over the past ZOgears, including Keyline in 1999,
Wickes 1n 2005, and the BSS Group fohn was previously a
Trustee of the British Research Establishment for three years
from 2013 to 2016

Committees
Member of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration and
Nominaticn Committees

Committees
None
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John White, Group Non-Executive Chairman
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“I am pleased to present the
Corporate Governance section
of our FY17 Annual Report. We
believe that a solid corporate
governance framework is
essential for upholding our
core business values and
delivering our strategy and it is
my responsibility to promote
high standards of governance
and business practice
throughout the organisation”

We continue to strive to ensure that our practices and
procedures are appropriate for a publicly isted company
and reflect our commitment (o good corporate gaovernance
and effective leadership

In this section of the Repart we explain how we manage our
business and promote high standards of governance across
the Group. We describe our governance structure and explain
how we have applied the main principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016 ('the Code’} and the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (DTR Rules'} over the past year. A copy of the Code
can be found on the Financial Reporting Counal’s website
www.frc.org.uk
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Compliance with the Code

The Company has complted with the man principles

of the Code for FY17. The following paragraphs set out
how we have complied References are to the principles
of the Code,

A. Leadership

The role of the Board (A1)

The Beard 1s responsible for operationa! control of the Group,
including all strategic, financial, organisational, legal and
regulatory matters and the Directors meet regularly to enable
them to discharge their duties The Company Secretary (Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary) is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. In addition,
the Directors may take independent professional advice as
required.

There 1s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
for Board decsion which 1s kept under regular review,

Matters reserved for the Board include:
Approval of the Group's objectives, vaiues and standards
Approval of the business model and strategy

Oversight of the Group's operations to ensure scund,
competent and prugent management

Approval of major changes to the Group’s structure

and control

Appraoval of major land acquisitions

Internal cantrols and a sound system of risk management

Approval of shareholder commurications

In accordance with the Code, the Board has established three
formal Board Committees Risk and Audit, Reruneration and

Nomination The membership of each of the Committees is In
comphance with the requirements of the Code and the terms

of reference of the Committees are included on cur corporate
website

CCRPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Detatls of the responsibilities of each of the Commuittees

and their activities during the year are set out on the following
pages of this Report. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to each of the Committees.

In addimon, the Board has established a Disclosure Commitiee,
whose role is to ensure timely and accurate disclosure of
information that we are required 1o publish in accordance with
our legal and regulatory obligations It meets on an ad-hoc
basis and its membership is the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Financal Officer, the Campany Secretary and the Director
of Communications

The Board has established a sub-committee called the
Allotment Committee, whose role 1s to approve the allotment
andssue of shares i the Company within the lirmits
authorised by shareholders at each AGM The Allotment
Cammittee, whose members are the Executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, meet on an ad-hoc basis

The role of the Executive Leadership Team Is to support
the Chief Executive Cfficer in implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day operations of the business.

It meets each month As well as the Executive Leadership
Team, the other members of the Executive Board are the
Land & Planrung Director, the HR Director, the Director

of Communications, the Group Marketing & Customer
Experience Director and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary.

The role of the Executive
Leadership Team is to support
the Chief Executive Officer in

implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day
operations of the business

Decsions on investments and development actvities are
made by the Group Investment Committee which meets
weekly and is chaired by the Land & Pianning Director, with
major investment decisions being referred on to the Board
for final approval

The governance structure for the Group Is set out on page 79
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Corporate Governance continued

B 1
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Patrick Hole
Group General Counse! & Company Secretary

Patrick joined McCarthy & Stone in july 2014, Patrick 1S
respansible for the legal and company secretanal functions
of the Group He 1s a qualified sohicitor with more than 20
years’ post qualification experience Patrick was a partner
in a private practuce for many years and also has a broad
range of in-house experience, including interim roles

at both DTZ and Keepmoat

Committees
Member of the Disclosure Committee

During FY17 there were nine Board meetings and one Strategy
Day The Directors’ attendance at those meetings, as well as
the meetings of the three main Board Committees, are shown
in the table below.

Risk and

Audit  Remuneration  Nomnation
Director’ Board Cammittee Lommittes Committee
Number of
meetings 9 3 3 1
John White 9/9 n/a 3/3 M1
Clive Fenton 9/9 n/a nfa 171
John Tonkiss 9/9 nfa n/a n/a
Rowan Baker? 77 n/a n/a n’a
Geeta Nanda 8/9 3/3 2/3 11
Frank Nelson 9/9 3/3 3/3 171
Mike Parsons 9/9 3/3 3/3 71
Nick Maddock? 272 n/a n/a n/a

1 Excludes ohn Carter, who was appointed post year end
2 Apponted to the Doard on 6 January 2017
3 Resigned on & january 2017

76  McCarthy & Stone pic

Division of responsibilities (A2, A3)

The Board has adopted role profiles for the Charman and the
Chief Executive Officer, which clearly set out their distinct roles
and respansibilities

|, as Chairman, am responsible for leadership of the Board
and for ensuring that the strategic direction and objectives

of the Group are relevant to deliver shareholder value and to
promote the long-term success of the Group. Vlead the Board
In its constructive chalienge of the Executive Leadership Team
and ensure that Board discussions are searching and forward-
thinking 1 am also responsible for promoting high standards
of corporate governance and good business practice.

Clive Fenton, our Chief Executive Officer, 1s responsible for the
day-to-day management of the operational activities of the
Group and the development and inncvation of the Group's
business. With the support of the Executve Leadership Team,
he implements the strategies and objectives agreed by the
Board to deliver gperaucnal performance and success

Non-Executive Directors (A4)

The Board currently has four Non-Executve Directors -

Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons, Geeta Nanda and john Carter - .
who have all been appointed during the past five years

Their previous experience of the construction II"ICKJS[I'Y.

the housing sector or providing services to the elderly

add valuable skills and input to the Board

Frank Neison i1s the Seror Independent Director

His respansibilities include the annual appraisal of my
performance He adds support to the Chair and deputises
for me in my absence and Is available to communicate with
shareholders.

B, Effectiveness

Board compaosition and independence (81)

The appointment and replacement of the Company’s Cirectors
Is governed by the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Companies Act 2006 and the individual service contracts and
terms of appointment of the Directors The Articles permit a
maximum of 12 Directors

The Board currently comprises the Chairman {(who was
independent ¢n agpointment), three Executive Directors
and four Non-Executive Directors. All of the Nan-Executive
Directors are independent John Carter 1s considered to be
independent notwithstanding tus directorship with Travis
Perkins plc, a supplier to the Group, as the level of business
between McCarthy & Stone pic and Travis Perking plc 1s not
deemed to be material Relevant safeguards are being put in
place to ensure that John will not influence any consideration
of such business Short biographical details of each of the
Directors are set out on pages 70to 73.
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Arits meeting In June 2017, the Nomimation Committee
considered the independence of the individual Directors

on the Board at that stage and confirmed that there were no
independerice issues, notwithstanding the fact that two of the
Non-Execuiive Directors, Frank Nelson and Mike Parsens, had
been ncluded in the Company’s Management Incentive Plan
which was putin place in 2013 and was wound up in November
2015 Their paruopanon in the plan 1s a reflection of the
different ownership structure of the Company at that time,
Since Admission, the Non-Executive Directors have not

been included m any of the Group's share plans or bonus
arrangements John Carter was appointed after the year end
and his independence was reviewed during the Nomunation
Committee meeting on 8 November 2017

Appointments and commitment (B2, B3, B7)

The date of appaintment of each of the Directors 1s set gut on
page 81 - none of the Directors has served for more than six
years Nick Maddock, who was Chief Financiat Officer, resigned
with effect from 6 January 2017 and Rowan Baker, who was
the Group Financial Controller, was promoted to the Board as
the new Chief Financial Officer on the same date john Carter
was appointed to the Board on 1 October 2017

As annourtced on 9 November 2017, Paul Lester will be joining
the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman Designate
on 3 [anuary 2018 and, subject to his election by shareholders,
will take over as Chairman from me at the conciusion of the
Company's AGM on 24 |anuary 2018

Appaintments fall under the rermit of the Nomination
Commuttee, which leads the process in selecting any new
Directors before making recommendations te the Board. The
Nomination Committee 15 working with senior management
to ensure that satisfactory succession plans are in place

The Board is satisfied that each

of the Directors has commiitted
sufficient time and input during
the year to enable him/her to fulfil

his/her duties as evidenced by the
high attendance at all the Board
and relevant Committee meetings
throughout the year

The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment

set out the time commitment expected to fulfil their roles.

The Board s satisfied that each of the Directors has committed
sufficient time and input during the year to enable him/her

to fulfit his/her duties as evidenced by the high attendance at
all the Board and relevant Cormnmittee meetings throughout
the year

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are
for three-year terms, which can be renewed for a further
two three-year terms

in accordance with the Code, all of the Directors are required
to seek re-election at each AGM The resolutions for the
re-election and election of the Beard members will be
included in the separate Notice of AGM

Induction, development and support (B4, B5)

On joning the Board, each Director 1s provided with a full
introduction to the business, In order o assist the Directors
in their ongaing understanding of the Group, some of the
Board meetings are held at the regional offices to provide

an opportunity for the Directors to meet local management
and to wisit some of the Group's developments Papers

are circulated in & imely manner 1o enable the Directors to
undertake full and detalled consideration of the agenda items
in advance of the meetng and each of the Directors has access
to the services of the Company Secretary

In order to assist the Directors

in their ongoing understanding
of the Group, some of the Board
meetings are held at the regional

offices to provide an opportunity
for the Directors to meet local
management and to visit some
of the Group’s developments

Board evaluation (B6}

An evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
members and Committees was carried out during

FY17 by the Nomination Committee and detal's of the
internal evaluation pracess and findings are included in the
Nomination Committee section on page 81 It is anticopated
that the evaluation during FY18 will be externatly facilitated

C. Accountability

Reporting (C1)

The Staterment of Directors’ Responsibilities is on page 109
The viability staterment 1s on page 57 The report of the
ndependent auditor 1s on pages 112 to 117 The statement
on going concern is on page 108 Details of the Board's
arrangements to ensure that the information presented in
this Report s fair, balanced and understandable is set out
on page 109
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Corporate Governance continued

Risk management and internal controis (C2)

Dertails of the nisk management process and the principal risks
facing the Group are set out on pages 54 to 57 The Board

15 responsible for the systern of internal controls, which are
designed to manage the business risks faced by the Group,
and for reviewing the effectiveness of those controls Business
targets are set within appropriate timeframes; policies,
procedures and control processes for managing the Group's
business activities have been put In place; and key financral
risks are controlled through clearly laid down authorisation
levels and segregation of accounting duties.

The Risk and Audit Committee,
together with the Internal Audit
function, has identified the principal

risks facing the Group and has
established systems for evaluating
and managing those risks

The Risk and Audit Committee, together with the Internal Audd
funcuon, has identufied the principal risks facing the Group and
has established systems for evaluating and managing those
risks These systems have been in place for the whaoie of the
year under review and up to the date of this Report. Further
information ¢an be found on pages 54 to 57

Audit and Auditor (C3)
Details of the work of the Risk and Audit Committee and the
auditor are set out on pages 82 to 85

D. Remuneration
Detalls of Executive Directors’ remuneration and the Group's
approach to remuneration policy are set out on pages 86 to 105

E. Relations with shareholders

Although most direct shareholder contact is by the Chief
Executwe Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, feedback

15 communicated back to the other Directors primarily through
reports to the Board and copies of analysts' presentations

All of the Directors who were members of the Board at that
time attended the AGM In January 2017 and it is anticipated
that all the current members of the Board will attend the
AGMin January 2018 and that the meeting will be organised
in compliance with the Code.

On behalf of the Board

Johin White
Group Non-Executive Chairman

13 Novermber 2017
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Governance Structure and Delegation of Authority

The Board of Directors
Chair: john White

The Board is ultimately responsible for al activities of the Group It has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for
its attention and has delegated same of its responsibilities to Committees of the Board In addition, certain Executive
Committees have been established to oversee some of the operational actimities of the Group All Committees report
back to the Group Board either directly or indirectly via the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Operating Officer

Principal Board Committees

Principal Executive Committees

|¢|
|<:|

Risk and Audit Committee

Chair: Frank Nelson

See pages 82 to 85 for a report from the
Risk and Audit Committee

Executive Leadership Team

Chair: Clive Fenton
Supports the CEO in implementing Group

strategy and management of the activities of
the Group

Remuneration Committee

Chair: Mike Parsons

See pages 86 to 105 for a report from the
Remuneration Commitlee

Nomination Committee

Chatr: John White

See pages 80 and 81 for a report from the
Nomination Committee

Disclosure Committee

Chair: Clive Fenton

Responsible for timely and accurate disclosure
of all nfarmation required to be disclosed to
meet its legal and regulatory obligations

Allotment Committee

Chair: Clive Fenton

Responsible for the approval of allotments of
shares within the hmits approved by shareholders

Group Investment Committee

Chair: Gary Day

Responsible for reviewing and approving all
land acgutsitions Major investment decrsions
are referred up to the Group Board

Heaith & Safety Committee
Chair: John Tonkiss
Responsible for alt aspects of health and safety

across the Group including retevant policies
and procedures and regulatory comphance,

CSR Committee

Chair: Gary Day

See pages 58 to 67 for a report from the
CSR Committee,
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John White, Nomination Committee Chairman
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“Maintaining the right balance
of skills and knowledge is key to
achieving the Group's strategic
objectives. One of the main
activities during the year was
the selection and appointment
of a new Chief Financial Officer”

| am pleased to present the Nomination Committee’s
report for FY17

Membership and tenure
Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board
The members of the Committee dunng FY17 were

+ John white (Charrman)

* (live Fenton

» Frank Nelson

* (eeta Nanda {appointed on 24 January 2017)
= Mike Parsons

There was one formal meeting of the Committee during
the year which all the members of the Committee attended.
Two further meetings have been held since the year end

Responsibilities and terms of reference
The Nomination Committee’s key duties are to review the

structure, size and composition of the Board and its Committees,

ensuring that the skills and expenence of the Board remains
appropriate and balanced, to recommend appeintments and
re-elections to the Board, succession planning for the Directors
and senior management, and the annual evaluation process
The terms of reference, which are available on our website,
were adopted with effect from 11 November 2015
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Activities during FY17

One of the main actvities durm? the year was the selection
and appointment of a new Chief Financial Officer, following
the announcernent in October 2016 of Nick Maddock’s
inention to resign. The Commuttee approved the process
to find his replacement with consideration being given to
both internal and external candidates Russell Reynalds, an
independent external search agency, was appointed to run
the process on behalf of the Group Following conclusion of
that process, the Commitiee recommended Rowan Baker as
the preferred candidate to the Board, which subsequently
approved her appointment.

Duning the year the Committee alsc carned out the annual
evaluation process This was done internally and it 1s
anticipated that external faciitatars will be used to assist
the process In FY18

The Committee also reviewed the succession planning,
especially at the main Board and executive and senior
management levels The Group's Equality and Diversity policy
and the Committee's terms of reference were also reviewed

Evaluation process and results

The Committee carried out a thorough, in-house evaluation
of the Board and each of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees, as well as the performance
of each of the Directors. This was carried out by way of a
questionnaire as well as one-to-one meetings between

the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors on the
performance of the indrvidual Dwectors The review of the
Charrman’s performance was led by the Senior Independent
Oirector The effectiveness of the Board was assessed in
respect of its structure, organisation, reporting and
communications Directors were also Invited to make
recommendations on how the performance and operation
of the Board could be improved

The Charrman was satisfied with the performance and
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees One of the
areas highlighted for improvement related to communication
with regional and senior management As a result, more Board
meetings will be held at the Group's regional offices and the
number and frequency of presentations from regional
management and function heads will be iIncreased Another
area that was highlighted was the need to focus more closely
on succession planning

Board compasition and succession planning
The current composition of the Baoard 1s set out in the
table below Further detalls are on pages 70to 73

Date of appontment

Director Rale to the Board

John White Chairman 23 September 2013
Chve Fenton Chief Executive Officer 17 February 2014
John Tonkiss Chief Operating Officer 5 November 2015
Rowan Baker  Chief Financial Officer 6 January 2017

4 Novernber 2013
18 November 2013
1 Aprl 2015

1 October 2017

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Nan-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Mike Parsons
Frank Nelson
Geeta Nanda
John Carter

Aithough the Board has been completely refreshed in the past
five years, the Board evaluation process identfied that the
composition should be kept under revtew by the Committee in
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order {o ensure that the mix and experience remams relevant
to our business, Foliowing the Board evaluation process, the
Commuittee commenced the process to appoint two additional
Non-Executive Directors to strengthen the current rmix

of skills and experience. In June 2017 a beauty parade of three
firms was held to assist with the recruitment process Zy%?s‘

a firm of independent advisers, was selected, subject to the
Group retaining the right to intraduce candidates directly
Followmg year end, Jonhn Carter was introduced and brought
forward for consideration by the Nomination Committee His
candidature was recommended to the Board, who approved
his appointment n October. john brings with him strong
industry experience, which will help to strengthen the Board.

As announced on 9 Novernber 2017, Paul Lester will be
joining the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Designate on 3 January 2018 and, subject to his election by
sharehalders, will take over as Charrman from me when | step
down at the conclusion of the Company’s next AGM In January
2018 The Committee undertook a search to identify a suitable
candidate for the role of Charrman The Company did not
instruct an external search agency or use open advertising
for the search, given the strength of potential internal and
external candidates who had been identfied for the role

The Committee concluded that, after interviewing a shorthst
of three candidates, Paul Lester was the most appropriate
candidate for the role | did not chair or attend any meetings
of the Committee which related ta the appointment of my
SuCCessor

The Group 1s conunuing to develop succession plans for
senior and executive management, which are reviewed and
monitored by the Committee

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with our Articles of Associauon and as a
FTSE 250 company, all of our Directors are required to seek
annual re-election by our shareholders All the Directors
who sought re-election at last year's AGM were re-elected.

As part of its evaluation precess, the Committee reviewed the
ﬁerformance of each of the Directors during the past year and

as recommended that all those Directors wishing to conunue
to stand should seek re-election at the 2018 AGM, They
indwidually and as a Group continue te provide invaluable
experience, challenge and contribution to the leadership of
the Group John Carter and Paul Lester will also seek election
at the 2018 AGM

Diversity

The Group has an Equaiity and Diersity Policy, which commits
us to zero tolerance of unlawful discnmination and encourages
diversity in our workforce. The Committee reviewed the Policy
during the year and will continue to keep this under review to
ensure that it remains appropriate for the business.

Although the Group has not set specific gender targets,

as we believe that appointments should be based on merit,
we support the principle of diversity, not Just at Board levei
but throughout the Group. At year end we had two female
members of the Board (representing 28 6%) and 66 6% of our
total workforce were female Further breakdown is provided
on page 61

John White
Nomination Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
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Risk and Audit
Committee Report

[ ]

“The key responsibilities of
the Risk and Audit Committee
Graphic removed are to review the integrity of
the Group’s annual and half
year financial statements.
The Committee is confident
that it has carried out its
duties in the year under
review effectively and to

a high standard”
L ]

Frank Nelson, Risk and Audit Committee Chairman i
The purpose of this report is to describe how the Committee

has carried out its responsibifities during the year.

In summary, the key responsibilities of the Risk and Audit
Committee are to review the integrity of the Groug's annual
and half year finanual statements and the refationship with
the external auchtor, to monitor our iNternal controls and risk
management systems and our internal audit activities, and
to provide independent oversight of our business conduct,
including our whistleblowing and anti-bribery procedures

Membership and tenure

There has not been any change ta the members of the Risk and
Audit Committee during the finanoal year and up to the date of
this report The members of the Committee are

« Frank Nelson (Chairman of the Committee) Senior
Independent Director

* Mike Parsons, Independent Non-Executive Director

* Geeta Nanda, Independent Non-Executive Direcior
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| was previously Finance Director of Galliford Try ple, the
FTSE 250 housebullding and construction group, for 25
years prior to joining McCarthy & Stone. My extensive
financial experience, particularly in the housebuilding and
construction sector, have proved invaluable in chairing
our Risk and Audtt Commiitee.

The Committee as a whole has competence relevant to

our busiress As stated above, | have spent mast of my
career in the housebuilding sector, Geeta Nanda has

maore than 28 years' experience in the housing secter and
maore than 23 years’ experience as a Non-Executive Director
and Mike Parsons has spent the last 23 years workmng with
businesses providing care and support for elderly people

Further details of the background and experience of the
Comnmuttee members are set out on pages 7010 73.

Responsibilities and terms of reference
The key responsibiliiies of the Committee are to

e Monitor the integrity of the financial staterments
and any other formal announcements relaung
tc the Group's financial position and performance

» Assess whether management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements and to provide advice to
the Board on whether the Annual Report and Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and understandable

s Keep under review, and monitor the effectiveness of, the
Group's Internal controls and risk management systems

* Monitor and review the effectiveness of the risk and
internal audit funchion

« Monitor and review the effectiveness of the services of
the external auditar, including negotiation of the audit fee

+ Develop and implement the policy on the supply of
non-audit services by the external auditor

+ Review the adequacy and secunty of the Group's
procedures on whistleblowing, ant-bribery and
corruption and anti-meney laundering

The Committee has formal terms of reference which are
reviewed annually to ensure they reman appropriate. No
changes were made to the terms of reference during the
year. A copy of the full terms of reference ¢an be viewed
on our website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance
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Activities during FY17

There were three Risk and Audit Committee meetings during
the financial year, organised to tie in with the annuat audrt
cycle The table on page 76 sets out atiendance of the
Committee members at those meetings In accordance with
the Committee’s terms of reference, meetings can also be
attended, by invitation, by other Directors and members of
the internal audit and external audit teamns, when deemed
appropriate The Chref Financial Officer, the Director of Risk
and internal Audit, the Group Finanaial Controlier and the
external audit partner attended all three meetings during the
year. The members of the Committee meet with the external
auditor without Executive Directors or management at every
meelhing attended by the external auditor

During FY17 the key areas of focus for the Committee were
as follows

» in Novernber 2016 we rewiewed the FY16 finangal
statements and the draft Annual Report We discussed
the audit with Deloitte, our external auditor, and reviewed
is report and its audit work The Committee also
considered the going concern and viability statements
of the Group We also considered and concluded that the
FY16 Annual Report and Financial Statements gave a farr,
balanced and understandable view of the Group’'s
performance and position

* In February 2017 we reviewed the proposed audit fees
and the scope of the external audit in relation to the
FY17 financial statements

« InAprl 2017 we reviewed the FY17 half year results,
including the review undertaken by the external auditor,
before recommending that the half year results
announcement be approved by the Board

= At each meeting we received reports from the Internal
Audit team on Group risks and risk management, and
at the November 2016 and April 2017 meetings reviewed
the Group nsk heat map

= At each meeting we also received reports on the internal
audit programme and findings of internal audits carned
out during the year

* We undertook our annual review of the Group's systems
of internal controls We continue to monitor their
effectiveness throughout the year

« Aleach meeting we received reports on the effeclveness
of our whistleblowing and anti-bribery and carruption
procedures and were advised If any notifications had
been raised under those policies

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts
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Risk and Audit Commmittee Report continued

= Durning the year we met with the Financial Reporting
Counal {FRC) which conducted its review of the quality
of Deloitte LLP's audit procedures applied during the
FY16 audit

Significant financial reporting issues

Significant financial reporting issues, jJudgements and areas
of estimation uncertainty reviewed by the Commuttee during
FY17 were

= Shared equity receivables
The Cammittee reviewed the accounting treatment of future
recewvables due under the shared equity schemes that have
been used over the years by the Group. The assumptions
used In estimating the value of the future recevables are
reviewed half yearly and relate to the date of the anticipated
future receipt, house price inflation, the discount rate and
the new build premium.

= Cost copitalisation of overheads
The Committee received a proposal from management
analysing the splt of overhead costs relaung to design,
planning, commercial, canstruction, procurement and
health and safety between those that could be attnbuted
to the cost of the developments to inventory and those
that relate to general business overheads tc expenses
The assumptions are reviewed annually with the function
heads before being proposed to the Committee.

Risk management and internal controls
Qur Risk and nternal Audit function was established in the
summer of 2014 with the foliowang key areas of responsibiity:

» The design and implementation of a robust risk
management framework across the Group to identify,
menitor and manage key business risks and to establish
a risk appetite for each key risk beyond which corrective
action I1s required

s The development of an assurance programme to ascertam
whether the controls araund our key business risks are
designed and operating effectively

Details of how the Group manages the risk process are
set out on pages 54 and 55. The Director of Risk and
Internat Audit reports at each Commuttee meeting on
any changes to the risks faced by the business and any
areas for improvement

An annual internal audit plan, focusing on the key risks to the
business, 1s reviewed and agreed by the Committee its cycle
1s driven primarily by risks identfied in the nisk heat map A
separate commercial internal audit plan has been put In place
specifically to Investigate the management of our construction
acuvities A separate sales internal audit plan was established
and completed 1n 2017 to specifically focus on the sales
process of core stock.
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Findings from internal audits and recommended
improvements are reported to the Committee. | regularly meet
with the Director of Risk and Internal Audit. Other members of
the Commuttee and the Board will also meet with the Director
of Risk and internat Audit periodically during the year

The Board of Directors recognises its overall responsibility
for the Group’s system of internal controls and for monitoring
its effectiveness There is an ongomg process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant nsks. However, in
reviewing the effectiveness of nternal controls, any internal
controt system can only provide reasonable but not absalute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The Beard, on the recommendation of the Risk and Audit
Committee, has remained satisfied that the system of internal
controls continued to be effective in identfying, assessing and
ranking the various risks facing the Group, and in monitoring
and reporting progress In mitigating the potential impact on
the business. Systems have been in place for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Finanoial Statements The Board has approved the
scatement of the Principal Risks and Uncertainties set out an
pages 56 and 57 of this Annual Report

The Board of Directors recognises
its overall responsibility for the
Group’'s system of internal controls

and for monitoring its effectiveness.
There is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks

External auditor
The Commuttee 1s responsible for the appointment of the
external auditar, 1its fee and the scope of the annual audit

Auditor independence and performance

Deloitte LLP has been our external audttor since FYQ9,

the first audit of the Company. We have had the same Audit
Partner since 2013 but the Audit Director has changed during
that period In ine with rotation guideiines a new Audit Parther
will lead the FY18 audit The next audit tender will take place
no later than the summer of 2018.

The performance, effectiveness and independence of the
audrtor and the work it performs are reviewed annually
following completion of the external audit Delaitte are
required to disclose any significant facts and matters that
may reasonably impact on ther independence or on the
objectivity of the lead partner and the audit team In addition,
the Commuttee considers and approves all the fees that the
Group pays for audit, audit-related and non-audit services
from Deloitte Details of the Company's policy on non-gudit
services are detailed in the following sectian That policy was
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drafted in line with the requirements of the EU Audit Directive
(2014/56/EU) and Audit Regulation (537/2014) which came
into force in the UK on 17 June 2016.

The Audit Committee assessed the performance of the
external audstor and the effectiveness of the external audnt
for FY17 In coming to its condusion the Audit Committee
reviewed amongst other matters:

= Feedback on the effectiveness and performance of the
external audit from Group, regional management and
the Director of Risk and Internal Audit who were closely
involved in both the half year and full year reporting process

« Deloitte LLP's fulfilment of the agreed audit plan for FY17

* Reports highlighting the material 15sues and accounting
judgements that arose during the conduct of the audit

» Deloitte LLP's objectivity and independence during
the process

The Audit Committee concluded that the audit process as
a whole had been conducted robustly and that the team
selected to undertake the audit had done so thoroughly
and professionally Deloitte LLP's performance as auditor
to the Company during FY17 was therefore considered 1o
be sausfactory.

During the year, the FRC also undertook a review of certain
aspects of Deloitte LLP's audit of McCarthy & Stone plc for
the year ended 31 August 2016 We have reviewed the FRC's
findings in assessing the performance and effectiveness

of Deloitte LLP's audit work.,

Taking inta account our and the FRC's findings in relation to
the effectiveness of the audit process and in relation to the
independence of our external auditor, the Committee 15
satisfied that Deloitte LLP's audit continues to be effective and
independent As a result, the Committee has recommended
tc the Board that Deloitte be proposed for reappointment at
the 2018 AGM

The Company has complied throughout the reporting year
with the provisions of The Statutory Aucdit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Aucht Comimittee
Responsibitities) Order 2014,

Policy on non-audit services

it 1s the Group's practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit
work out to tender The Board only appoints Deloitte LLP

to provide non-audit services if the Directors have satisfieg
themselves that the auditor's objectivity and independence
have not been compromised A policy on non-audit services
has been approved by the Commuttee, which incorporates
the provisions of the EU audit reform.

The external auditor s appointed to prowvide audit and
audit-related services, including annual audit of the Group,
Parent Company and non-dormant subsidiary financial
statements as well as the half year review,
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The external auditor 1s prohibitea from providing services
which involve:

» Bookkeeping and other services relating to accounting
records and corporate financial statements

+ Desigr and implementation of finanoal
information systems

= Anyvaluation that could have a matenal effect on
the financial statements

= Taxservices that depend on a particular accounting
treatment

= Recruting executives or providing advice on
remuneration packages

* Actuarial services
+ Management functions
* Internal audit services

= Legal, broker, investment adviser or investment
banking services

= Corporate finance or transaction services where the
outcome 15 dependent on accounting treatment, or on
a conungent fee basis if material to the audit firm, or the
outcome involves a future or contemporary audit judgement
relating to a material balance i the financial statements

* Any other work that s prohibited by UK ethical guidance

The external auditor may be selected to provide any

other services that Ju not fall within audit and audit-related
services or that are not prohibited, subject to a competitive
selection process

Fees payable to Deloitte in FY17n relation to the interim
review, year end audit and statutory audits of subsidiaries are
detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
There were no nan-audit fees pard during the year

Whistleblowing, fraud and anti-bribery and corruption
During the year, the Comimuittee received regular updates from
the Company Secretary on comphance with the policies across
the business on whistleblowing, anu-bribery and corruption,
fraud and anti-money laundering In addition, the Committee
and the Board reviewed and approved the Group's new
conflicts of interest policy.

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
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Directors’' Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee Chairman’s Annual Statement

-

L

Mike Parsons, Remuneration Committee Chairman

Graphicremoved

McCarthy & Stone plc

“As Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee,

| am pleased to present,

on behalf of the Board, our
Directors’ Remuneration
Report. This report lays

out the core elements of our
policy and its implementation
during FY17”

The Annual Report on Remuneration 1s set out on

pages 94 t0 105 It details decisions and actions taken by

the Remuneratuon Committee based on the performance

of the Group and the Executive Directors, the changin
corporate governance landscape and in the context of pay

in the Group as a whole, The Annual Report on Remuneration
1S subject to an annual advisory vote and a resolution will be
put to shareholders ar the AGM in January 2018 for its
approval The wording of the resolution is set out in the
separate Notice of AGM
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Remuneration policy

In creating our remuneration policy last year, our abjective
was to create a policy which supports the Group's strateg?/

to create an efficient and scalable business capable of building
and selling more than 3,000 units per annum to enable us to
target top-quartile sector margins and returns on capital over
the medium term

Our remuneration policy was approved by shareholders
atour AGM on 25 January 2017, receiving over 92.8% of the
votes that were cast. The policy 1s ntended to apply for up
to three years and 1s therefore designed to incentivise and
motivate the teadership team to implement the Company's
strategic goals and also to ensure they are aligned with
shareholder expectations. This has been a guiding principle
far the Commuttee

We are not proposing any changes te the remuneration policy
for the forthcorning year A summary of cur Remuneration
Policy 1s iIncluded at the end of this Remuneration Report on
pages 101 to 104, while the full text of the Remunerauon Policy
¢an be found on pages 63 to 74 of our FY16 Annual Report
The FY¥16 Annual Report can be downloaded from

our website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Remuneration Committee

There has not been any change to the membership of the
Committee during the year and up to the date of this report
The members are all of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Board, namely

s Mike Parsons {Chairman of the Committee, and
Independent Non-Executive Director)

= (Geeta Nanda (Independent Non-Executive Director)

= Frank Nelson (Seror Independent Director)

» John White (Non-Executive Director, and Chairman
of the Board)

Other individuals, including the Chief Executive Officer and
external advisers, may be invited to attend meetings of the
Commettee. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to
the Committee

As well as the Group's remuneration policy, the Remuneraucn
Committee’s other main responsibilitzes include the
remuneration and terms of engagement of Executive Drectors
and the Chairman, overseeing any major changes to the
Group's employee benefit structures, approval of any
performance-related schemes, share incentive schemes

ang deferred bonus arrangements The Commitiee provides
areport to the Board on s acuvities and decisions

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major remuneration events during FY17:

« Continued development of our Board
Nick Maddock resigned as Chief Financal Officer on
11 October 2016 and stepped down from the Board
with effect from 6 jJanuary 2017. Rowan Baker, who was
previously the Group Financial Controller, was promoted
to the role of Chief Financial Officer and joined the Board on
6 January 2017. | would like to welcome Rowan to the Board
and once again thank Nick for his service

The Committee approved the termination arrangements for
Nick and the new terms for Rowan Nick did not receive any
termination payments, he was not eligible for the bonus
planin respect of FY16 or FY17 and his LTIP awards lapsed
on his departure.

When Rowan was appointed to the Board, her saiary

was set at £225,000 - a conservative level, significantly below
that of her predecessor with the intention that it would be
kept under review and over tme based on performance
would be brought up to a market level Based on her strong
performance and development in the role to date and her
cnitical role in delivering the strategy of the business the
Committee determined to ncrease her salary to £285,000
effective 1 September 2017, the next planned review will be
in November 2018 The Committee notes that the increased
salary remains below the lower quartile of the FTSE 250 and
housebuilder peers {the two external benchmarks the
Commitiee uses as a guidehne when setiing pay for
executives)

On her appointment to the role, Rowan's bonus cpportunity
was set at 100% of salary in cash, recognising that FY17 was
a transitory year, rather than the polcy level for Executive
Directors of 150% of salary. For FY18, Rowan's banus
opportunity will be increased to 150% of salary with
one-third deferral in ine with the other Executive Directors
Rowan's fult remuneration terms are set out in the following
Annual Report on Remuneration,

The Commttee proposes to increase John Tonkiss' salary by
10% from £300,000 to £330,000 effective 1 November 2017
The proposed increase recogrises his strong performance
and the increased responsitility following his appointment
to the role of Chief Operating Cfficer in june 2017

McCarthy & Stone plc Apnual Report and Accounts &7



Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The Cammittee 1s mingful of the sensitivity to large
Increases in base pay levels and considered its proposed
approach carefully in this context The intention of the
satary increase Is to bring the COO and CFO's salaries to

a level that the Committee considers appropriate given
therr performance and critcal iImportance to the business
The Committee will continue to monitor Executive Director
salaries and will consider whether further above average
employee increases are required

Clive Fenton, our CEQ, will receive an increase of 3 2%
line with the increase for the average employee population.

Determination of the FY17 bonus payments

The Group completed its first full year of trading since
Jjoining the Mam Market in November 2015 and the
Executive Directors and the broader executive team have
delvered performance in line with market expectations
despite continued economic uncertainty following the
outcome of the EU referendum in 2016,

The Group delivered a 4% increase in revenue to £660 9m
(FY16 £635 9m), although underlying operating profit
decreased by 10% to £96 2m (FY16. £107.2m) at a gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16: 21%), reflecting the mix of uriuts
sold, increased costs and our continued investment in
regionatl operanonal Infrastructure to SUppPort our growth
strategy. As a result, the threshold of £108.6m operating
profit fequating 1o 70% of the total bonus opportunity)
was not achieved and no banus was awarded aganst

this measure.

During the year the Group invested in tand and builld

and added a further 75 high-quality sites with attractive
embedded margins into the iand bank (FY16: 65), equivalent
to €.3,164 additional plots (FY16: € 2,614) As aresult, the
bonus target for land exchanges of 3,133 plots was shghtly
exceeded resulting n 55% of this element of the bonus
(accounting for 10% of the total bonus opportunity)

being earned

The Group continued to maintain a robust financial posttion
with a net cash balance of £30 7m (FY16 £52 8m) at the year
end Strong cash generation resulted in a posiuve cash
inflow of £49.2m excluding the balance sheet impact of

the in-house part-exchange initilative, against a target of
£273m The Executive Directors were therefore awarded
82% of the bonus {accounting for 10% of the total bonus
opportunity) in relation to this measure,

McCarthy & Stone plc

The continued focus on homeowner
satisfaction has led to us in the

twelfth consecutive year being
awarded the Five Star rating for
customer satisfaction by the HBF

The continued focus on homeowner satisfaction has led
to us in the twelfth consecutive year being awarded the
Five Star rating for customer satisfaction by the HBF. This
sustamned recogmtion by our custormers of the quality

of product we deliver resulted in achievement of the
customer satisfaction target of 93% (we achieved 93.4%)
and as 3 result 60% of the bonus in relation to this element
(which accounts for 10% aof the tatal honus opportunity)
was earned.,

The Group continued to maintain a
robust financial position with a net

cash balance of £30.7m at the year
end. Strong cash generation resulted
in a positive cash inflow of £49.2m

In respect of FY17, the bonus for the Executive Directors
was therefore 19 7% of the maximum opporturity. This
equates to 29 6% of salary for the CEQ and COO and
19.7% of salary for the CFO The Committee believes that
these pay-outs reflect the performance of the Group over
the year

Remuneration approach for FY18

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors' fees have not been increased
since November 2015 It has been agreed that the Non-
Executive Directors will receive a 3% increase in their basic
fees with effect from FY18 The Chairman, John White, has
waived his increase There will not be any change to the
level of additional fees paid for the Senior Independent
Director or for Committee membership

FY18 bonus objectives
The annual bonus plan measures and ther weightings for
FY18 will be:

Group profit before tax (70%)
Group full year cash flow (109%)
Group customer satisfaction (10%)
Group land exchanges (10%;}
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Changes to the FY18 Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Commuttee reviewed the appropriateness of the LTIP
arrangements and the asscciated performance targets

As a resull of this review, the Remuneraton Committee
proposes to maintan the current gquantum of 150% of salary
for the Executive Directors The approved policy allows for, but
does not require, an additonal post-vesting holding period

to apply to the awards Whilst this provision was not used for
previous awards, the Committee recognises the importance of
linking executive pay to long-term and sustained shareholder
value and therefore has decided to add a two-year holding
period for FY18 awards During the holding period, executives
will not be allowed to sell vested shares (other than for tax
purposes), meaning the overall time horizon of the FY18
awards will be five years, This approach is in ine with the
expectation/preferences of many of our shareholders and
additicnally reflects the Government's response to the green
paper on corporate governance and executive pay

The Remuneration Committee decided to retain the

existing performance measures (earnings per share, return
on capital employed and total sharehclder return), which
focus executives on maximising returns to shareholders
through growth in sustainable earnings ang efficient capital
management [n line with the approved policy and previous
awards as detailed on page 91 and 92, threshold performance
will result in 25% vesting against each element, with 100%
vesting at or above the maximum performance target.
However, the Committee proposes to amend the weightings
and targets for the FY18 awards, as detaited on page 92. The
changes we are proposing do not require formal sharenolder
approval However, we believe that it is important to seek the
views of our shareholders. Prior to the publication of our
Annual Report we consulted with our major shareholders and
would like to thank them for their positive engagement during
the process which helped shape these changes

No other changes are proposed in respect of the remuneration
elements in FY18.

Our geal has been to be thoughtful and clear in the layout of
this report and | look forward to your support on the
resolution

| welcome any feedback from the Company's shareholders

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 November 2017 ‘/\/\/{D ?M,m
Notes /—'

This Report has been prepared in accerdance with Schedule 8 1o The Large

and Medwm-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 as amended in 2013, the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the Lisong Rules. The Report consists of two sectians

- The Annual Staterment by the Remuneration Committee Charman and
assoiated ‘At 3 glance’ section

+ The Annual Report on Remuneration which sets out payments made
to the Directors and details the link between Group performance and
remuneration for Fy17
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

At a glance

introduction
In this section, we report on the remuneration cutcomes for FY17, which have been implemented in accordance with our

remuneration policy.

Qur remuneration policy was designed to align remuneration of our Executive Directors with Group strategy and to drive
continued success within a remuneration framework that meets the shareholder and governance expectations of a FTSE
250 company The Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM in January 2017 and 1s set out in full
on pages 63 10 74 of our FY16 Annual Repart

Qur core principles of remuneration are

= To ensure top executives are attracted, retained and motivated to drive the Cormpany forward
« Toincentivise management in creating an efficient and scalable business to support the growth strategy
+ To dehver long-term sustainable value to shareholders

FY17 autcomes .
The outcomes outlined in this section reflect the remuneration and performance measures and targets in place during FY17

and ther level of sausfacuion These were in line with the Remuneration Policy approved last year

The table beiow shows the total remuneration paid or payabie to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY17.
These amounts include the bonus amounts payable as detailed in the following table

Total Remuneration for our Executive Directors FY17 FY16
Clive Fanton - CEQ £753,169 £628,024
Jjehn Tonkiss - COO £462,231 £324,617
Rowan Baker - CFO! £223,594 n/a
Nick Maddock - former CFO? £133,702 £364,933

1 Rowan Baker became an Executive Director an 6 January 2017
2 Nk Maddock resigned from the Board with effect from 6 January 2017

Annual bonus outcomes:
The strategy and KPIs of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there is alignment between performance and reward The

erformance measures used during the year were (a) Group operaung profit (70%); (b) Group full year cash flow (10%), () Group
and exchanges (10%), and (d) Group customer satisfaction (10%)

The table below shows the total bonus payable to each of the Executive Directors i respect of FY17 outcomes Further detarls
of how the performance measures for our annual bonus plan and LTIP align to our strategy are outlined on page 63 of the FY16

Annual Report.

Annual bonus outcomes for aur Executive Drectors FY17 FY16
Clive Fenton - CEO £143,412 £61,750
John Tonkiss - COO £88,300 £36,400
Rowan Baker - CFOQ’ £29,631 n/a

Nick Maddock - former CFQ? -

1 Rowan Baker became an Executve Director on 6 January 2017,
2 Mick Maddock resigned fram the Board with effect from 6 January 2017

Equity exposure of the Board

The Executive Directors are required 1o build up over a five-year period, and then subsequenitly hold, a shareholding equivalent to
2009% of their base salary As a result of the IPO i November 2015, Clive Fenton and john Tonkiss have significant shareholdings in
the Company, providing them with a matenal stake in the business Rowan Baker, who was appointed to the Board on 6 January
2017, has not yet met her shareholding reguirement The table betow shows their interest In the Company as a percentage of their

salary as at 31 August 2017.

Clive Fenton John Tankiss Rowan Baker
Shareholding requirement 200% 200% 200%
Value of beneficially owned shares 564% 319% 3%
Value of/gain on interests over shares (i.e. unvested/unexercised awards) 255% 253% 132%

The table on page 97 shows the interests of each Executive Director in the shares of the Company at year end
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implementation of the Remuneration Policy in FY18
For FY18, the proposed remuneration will be as set out below This 15 10 accordance with our remuneration policy

Base salary

For FY18, the base salaries for the Executive Directors will be:

Clive Fenton £500,000 (3.2% increase with effect from 1 November 2017}
John Tonkiss £330,000(10 0% increase with effect from 1 November 2017)
Rowan Baker £285,000 (26 7% increase with effect from 1 September 2017)

The Committee has increased John’s salary by 10% from £300,000 to £330,000 effective
1 November 2017 to recognise his strong performance and the increased responsibility following
his appeintment to the role of Chief Operating Officer in June 2017,

Rowan was promoted to the Board in January 2017 on a salary below the targeted policy level. The
Committee has increased Rowan's salary from £225,000 to £285,000 effective from 1 September
2017 to recognise her strong performance and development in the role and her critical role in
delivering the Group's strategy. in accordance with our remuneration policy, the Committee has
flexibility to increase Rowan's salary from time to time as she gains experience in her role. The
Committee has therefore agreed the above increase to take effect from 1 September 2017 and will
keep her salary under review.

Pension

The maximum contribution ynto the defined contribution plan or a salary supplement
in lieu of pension will be 20% of gross base salary.

Benefits

Standard benefits will be provided including private medical insurance, life insurance
and a car or car allowance.

Annual Bonus Plan ('ABP’)

Cash and deferred shares

For FY18 the maximurn bonus opportunity 1s 150% of salary.
The performance conditions and their weightings for the FY18 annual bonus are as follows:

Group profit before tax (70%)
Group full year cash flow (10%}
Group customer satisfaction (10%)
Group land exchanges (10%)

One-third of any bonus earned will be in the form of deferred shares, which wilt be
deferred for three years.

The pretise detads of the targets themselves are deemed to be commercially sensitive
as they relate to the current finanaal year. The Committee therefore does not consider
it appropriate to disciose annual bonus targets during the year. Howevaer, details of
the performance targets will be disclosed on a retrospective basis in next year's
Remuneration Report.

The Annual Bonus Plan ('ABP') contains clawback and malus provisions.

Long Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The performance conditions far the FY18 LTIP awards are earnings per share {'EPSY), return on
capital employed ('ROCE’) and relative total shareholder return {‘'TSR’) against the comparator
housing group and FTSE 250 (excl Financial Services and investment trusts). All three measures
are assessed over a three-year performance period.

For the achieverment of threshold performance, 25% of the element will vest with straight-ine
vesting in between to maximum performance. The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions.
Please see the full Remuneration Policy as set out on pages 63 to 74 in our FY16 Annual Report for
further detalls.

in FY18B an LTIP award up to a maximum of 150% of salary witl be awarded to the Executive
Directors. As stated in the Chairman'’s letter, the FY18 LTIP will have a two-year post vesting
holding period during which executives cannot sell vested shares other than for tax purposes.
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

FY18LTIP targets

The previous LTIP performance measures and targets were set In line with rmarket practice,
investor expectations and the medium-term business plan following the iPO. In light of the current
economic and political uncertainty, the Remuneration Comrmittee concluded that a review of the
current structure was appropriate from a business perspective and necessary in order to maintain
the incentive effect of LTIP awards and hence motivate and retain the Executive Directors and
other senior executives over the near future.

The Remuneration Committee decided to retain the existing performance measures ('EPS, ‘TSR’
and 'ROCE’), which focus executives on maximising returns to shareholders through growth in
sustainable earnings and efficient capital management. In line with the approved policy and
previous awards, threshold performance will result in 25% vesting against each element, with
100% vesting at or above the maximum performance target. However, the Committee proposes
to amend the weightings and targets for the FY18 awards.

The FY18 LTIP preposed performance measures, weightings and targets are outlined in the table
below alongside thase gperated in respect of the previous LTIP award in FY17.

Performance measuras FY17 weightings and targets FY18 weightings and targets
Earnings Per Share ('EPS’) Weighting: 33.3% Weighting: 37.5%
FY19 EPS FY20 EPS
Threshold: 21.8p Threshold: 21.8p
Max: 27.8p Max: 27.8p
Relative Total Shareholder Weighting: 33.3% Weighting: 25.0% .
Return {'TSR") Measured against housebuilder Measured against two groups (equaily
peer group weighted), housebudder peer index
Threshold: equal to index and FTSE 250 constituents
Max: index + 7.5% p.a. Threshold: equat to index / median
of FTSE 250
Max: index + 7.5% p.a. /upper quartile
of FTSE 250
Return On Capital Weighting: 33.3% Weighting: 37.5%
Employed (‘ROCE’) Threshold: 22.0% Threshold: 20.0%
Max: 25.0% Max: 25.0%

Changes to FY18 performance measures and rationale for change:

Increase EPS weighting to 37.5%

« Profitability 1s a key driver of the business and EPS as a performance measure motivates
and provides a strong "ine of sight’ to managemcnt as they have a greater influence over
the putcome

* The EPStargets are set based on the three-year business plan and analyst consensus

Increase ROCE weighting to 37.5% and reduce threshold target to 20%

* Managements’ focus on capital efficiency remains an important performance indicator of the
business and its business plan as set out on IPQ, Therefore it is appropriate to increase the
weighting of this measure

* The Committee believes that the maximum target of 25% ROCE remains a suitably stretching
target and that achieving this within the performance period would represent exceptional
performance and hence justify full vesting of this element of the LTIP. In order to improve
alignment with the Company’s business plan for FY20, the threshold target will be set at
20%. The Committee considers this level of performance to be realistic yet challenging,
and representative of the Company’s medium-term business plan
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Reduce Relative TSR weighting to 25% and split comparator group into two groups

= Qurlargest shareholders have a strong preference for sharehclder return measures and
relative TSR best reflects how the Company is performing against its peers, Therefore itis
appropriate to retain TSR as a performance measure

s The unique business profile of the Company means that while Brexit had an impact on all
housebuilders’ performance, other housebuiiders have recovered largely as a result of the
Government's help-to-buy scheme which is not applicable to the Company. Notwithstanding
this, the Committee feels that housebuilders remain an appropriate comparator group for TSR
but that this should be balanced against the broader market by the introduction of a FTSE 250
comparator group. The use of two peer groups would provide a more holistic assessment of
performance against both a cyclical iIndustry and performance against the broader market.
Constituents of our housebuilder peer group are set out on page 95.

The Committee believe that the additional two year holding period and the new weightings and
targets will create the right balance between supporting a successful execution of the three-year
business plan and incentivising the Executive Directors.

NED fees

The fees for FY18 for the Non-Executive Director roles are:
» Chairman: £230,000

Board fee: £54,600

Senior independent Director’s additionaf fee: £10,000
Committee Chawrman fee (per Committee), £10,000
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Annual Repott on Remuneration

Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited)

Single total figure of remuneration {audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration for each Executive Director in respect of FY17 and FY16
Further explanations of each of the elements are set out below in the following sections of this report

Base Annual
Narne Period salary Benefits bonus? LTIp4 Pension® Total
Clive Fenton FY17 £482,917 £30,257 £143,412 None £96,583 £753,169
FY16 £4867,617 £27,407 £61,750 None £71,250 £628,024
John Tonkiss F¥17 £296,667 £24,626 £88,800 None £52,138 £462,231
FY16 £229,445 £15,782 £36,400 None £42,990 £324,617
Nick Maddock® FY17 £105,769 £8.211 - None £19,702 £133,702
FY16 £288,781 £21,156 - None £54,996 £364,933
Rowan Baker? Y17 £151,641 £6,183 £29,631 None £36,139 £223,594

1 Nick Maddock resigned [ram the Board with eflect frorn 6 January 2017
2 Rowan Baker was appointed to the Board with effect from 6 January 2017 The amounts in this table relate only to the perod since she joined the Board and dao not

cover the penod from 1 August 201610 5 jJanuary 2017

3 One-third of che annual bonus payable Lo Chive Fenten and to John Tonkiss 1s1n the form of deferred shares 1o Lhe value of £47,804 and £29,600 respectively These
amounts are Included n the annual bonus figures in (s table The shares are deferred for three years and are not subjec! to any perfoermance conditons Rowan Baker's
bonys ¢ all cash with no deferred shares

4 Mo LTIPs were due or eligible tovestin FY17

5 Comprnses Lhe value of Group Personal Pension scheme cantnbutions and salary supplements in ey of pension

Base salar
As reported in the Annual Report last year, the base salary for the CEO and the COO were increased with effect from

1 November 2016 The table below shows the base salary for each of the Executive Directors during the year As Rowan Baker
was only appainted to the Board on 6 January 2017, her salary prior 1o that date has not been disclosed. Nick Maddock resigned
from the Board with effect from 6 january 2017,

Executive Director Position Period Annual salary
. . 1.09.16 - 31.10.16 £475,000
Clive Fenton Chief Executive Officer 11116 - 21.08.17 £484.500
. . . . 1.09.96 - 311076 £280,000
John Tonkiss Chief Operating Officer 11146 - 31.0817 £300.000
Rowan Baker Chief Financial Officer (current) 6.01.17 - 31.08.17 £225,000
Nick Maddock Chief Financial Officer {former) 1.09.16 -6.01.17 £300,000
Benefits (audited)

The Executive Directors typrcally receive private medical insurance, life insurance and cash for car allowance, although
the Committee retains the flexibility to provide other benefits. The amounts shown in the table above are the gross

{before tax) amaounts

Annual bonus (audited)
The strategy and the KPls of the Group are pnimary factors in ensuring that there is ahgnment between performance and reward

For FY17 the perfarmance conditions and ther weightings for awards under the ABP were

= Group operating profit {70%)
«  Group full year cash flow (10%)

» Group iand exchanges (10%)

s«  Group customer satisfaction (10%)

Under the terms of the FY17 annual bonus, 25% for each element (s payable for achieving the threshald performance, 50%

1s payable for achiewnF target perfarmance, increasing to 100% for achteving maxumum performance Achievernents between
these points are calculated on a straight-line basis The maximum oppartunity for Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss was 150% of
salary and one-third of any bonus earned was in the form of deferred shares, which is deferred for three years. Rowan Baker
was appointed in the%/ear and her maximum bonus opportunity was set at 100% of salary in cash, recognising that FY17 was
a transilional year rather than the maximum policy level for Executive Directors of 150% of satary For FY18, Rowan's bonus
opportunity will be increased to 150% of salary with one-third deferral in line with other Executive Directors.

The bonus awards payable to the Executive Directors in respect of FY17 were agreed by the Remuneration Committee, hawing
reviewed the Company’s results and the extent to which the performance condiions were met, The results are shown in the
following table As at 13 November, no awards have been granted in respect of FY18
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Performance targets Annual bonus value achieved
Perceriage of
Weighung Maximum Mma)imuwim
of each Performance weighting Actual performance Chve John Rowan
Performance conditions candition targets required per target performance achieved Fenton Tonkiss Baker
Underlying Threshoid £108.6m 17.5%
operating 70.0% Target £113.6m 35.0% £36.2m 0.0% - - -
profit Maximum £123.6m 70.0%
Threshold £2.0m 2.5%
Cash flow 100% Target £27.3m 5.0% £49.2m 82.0% £59694 £36,962 £12,334
Maximum £61.5m 10.0%
Land Threshold 2,781 2.5%
xchar 10.0% Target 3,133 5.0% 3,164 55.0% E40,038 £24,792 £8273
exchanges Maximum 3,446 10.0%
Threshold 91.0% 2.5%
Customer
satisfact, 10.0% Target 93.0% 5.0% 53.4% 60.0% £43,679 {27046 £9,024
istaction Maximum 95.0% 10.0%
Total 100.0% 19.7% £143.412 £88.800 £29,631

LTIP awards (audited)
During FY17 LTIP awards of 150% of safary were granted to Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss, and 106% of salary to Rowan Baker

The awards were made as nil-cost options and the number of shares over which each nil-cost option was awarded was calculated
by reference to the closing price of the shares as derwed from the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange an the day

before the date of the award

These nil-cost options will vest depending on performance against a challenging siiding scale of Earnings per Share ('EPS?), Return
on Capital Employed (ROCE") and relative Total Shareholder Return {'TSR’) against a bespoke group of housebuillders The TSR
comparator group index comprises the unweighted average TSR of the following housebuilders: Barratt, Bowis, Bellway, Crest
Nicholson, Persimmen, Redrow and Taylor Wimpey Al three measures are assessed over a three-year performance period and
are equally weighted The LTIP contans clawback and malus provisions

The performance conditions and targets for the FY17 LTIP awards are set out below For the achievement of threshold
performance, 25% of the element will vest with straight-ine vesting 1n between to maximum performance

Measure Weighting Threshaold perfarmance Maximurn performance
EPS 1/3rd 21.8 pence 27.8 pence
FY19 ROCE 1/3rd 22% 25%
Relative TSR 1/3rd Equal to Index Index + 7.5% p.a.
The following LTIP awards were made during FY17:
Maximum
Number Basis of % of award percentage of
Grant of shares award granted Face value vesting at the face value Performance
Executive Director date awarded {% of basicsalary) of awarg? threshold that could vest penod3
Clive Fenton 22.12.6 471,916 150% £726,750 25% 100% 3years
John Tonkiss 221216 292,208 150% £450,000 25% 100% 3years
221216 40,584 n/a £62,500 25% 100% 3 years
Rowan Baker’
270117 105,520 79% £176,957 25% 100% 3years

1 Rowan Baker was granted an LTIP award in December 2016 prior (o being premoted 1o the Board, She was awarded a top-up LTIP award in January 2017 following
her appointment as CFO The face value of the second award was calculated using the closing share price on 26 jJanuary 2017, being £1.677 The combined awards

represent 10686 of her hase salary
2 Theface valueis calcubated using the closing share price on 21 December 2016 (£1 S4) and en 26 January 2017 (E1.677)
3  Thepertormance period runs for three years from the date of grant Relative TSR will pe measured from 22 Decembier 2016 aver a three-year period EPS and ROCE

will be measured at 31 August 2013

As at 13 Novemnber, no awards have been granted in respect of FY18
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Pension entitlements (audited)

The Group operates a Group personal pension scheme under which Executive Directors are entitled to receive contributions
of up to 20% of salary The Group does not currently operate a defined benefit scheme.

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

The Company's Articles of Association restrict the annual fees that may be paid to the Non-Executive Directors in aggregate

to £1.0m. This amount may only be increased by ordinary resolution of the shareholders.

single total figure of remuneration (audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Non-Executive Directar.

Non-Executive Directors) Period Fees BenefitsZ Total Role
John White FY17 £230,000 £2,670 £232,670

FY16 £209,083 £2.334 £211,417 Group Non-Executive Chairman
Frank Nelson FY17 £73,000 £107 £73,107

FY16 £68,360 - £68,360 Senior Independent Director
Mike Parsons FY17 £63,000 - £63,000

FY1e £60,322 - £60,322 Independent Non-Executive Director
Geeta Nanda FY17 £53,000 - £53,000

FY16 £52,283 - £52,283 Independent Non-Executive Director

1 John Carter was appainied after year end so has not received any remuneranon for FY17

2 Benefits relate to outside of policy travel expendiiure

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees which applied during FY17 were.

fees

Rale

Chairman £230,000

Non-Executive Director's Board fee £53,000

Senior Independent Director’s additional fee £10,000
£10,000

Committee Chairman’s additional fee (per Ccmmittee)

The Non-Executive Ditrectors are not entitled to participate in the Group's Pension Scheme, ABP, LTIP or the Sharesave Plan.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

Directors' interests in share awards (audited)

The outstanding interests in share awards for the Executive Directors as at 31 August 2017 are shown in the table below
The Non-Executive Directors are not permitted to participate in any of the Group’s share plans or incentive arrangerments

Uirector/ Number Vested dunng Lapsed during Exercise Vestng

Plan Date of grant af share awards the year the year price{£) date Expiry date
Clive Fenton - CEO

LTIP 251115 263,888 - - it 251118 2511.25
LTIP 221216 471,916 - - nil 221219 221226
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - - 1674 28.0119 280719
John Tonkiss

LTIP 251115 155,555 - - falll 251118 251125
LTIP 221216 292,208 - - il 221219 221226
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - - 1674 280119 280719
Rowan Baker

LTIP 251115 22,222 - - nil 251118 2511.25
LTiP 221216 40,584 - - it 221219 221226
LTIP 27017 105,520 - - nil 270120 2701.27
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - - 1674 280112 280719
Nick Maddock'

LTIP 251115 166,666 - 166,666 il lapsed lapsed
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - 10,752 1674 lapsed lapsed

1 Nick Maddock left the Cornparty on 6 January 2017 and his LTIP and Sharesave oplions lapsed on that date
There were no gutstanding ABP share awards as at 31 August 2017
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Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The Executive Directors are required to build up over a five-year period, and then subsequently hold, a shareholding equivalent
1o 200% of their base salary Al the end of FY17 Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss had met their shareholding requirement. Rowan

Baker, who was appaointed to the Board on 6 January 2017, has not yet met her shareholding requirement, but she is aware she
will need to increase her shareholding toc meet this requirement by 6 January 2022, Non-Executive Directors are not subject to

shareholding requirements.

The table below shows the interests in shares in the Company, including unvested awards, for each of the Directors as at
31 August 2017 No options were exercised during the year There has not been any change since the year end

Shares Shares Shares
Shares subject to not subject to Options Optons Options beneficially Shareholding
beneficially performance performance vested but unvested unvested owned as requirement
Director owned conditions conditions unexercised {LFIPs) {Sharesave) % of safary? met?
Executive Directors
Clive Fenton 1,651,345 - - - 735,804 10,752 564.1% Yes
John Tonkiss 578,719 - - - 447,763 10,752 319.3% Yes
Rowan Baker 3,789 - - - 168,326 10,752 2.8% No
Nick Maddock? 825,361 - - - n/a n/a n/a n/a
Nen-Executive Directors
John White 1,650,182 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a
Frank Nelson 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a
Mike Parsons 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a
Geeta Nanda - n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - n/a

1 Thisis based an a closing share price of £1 655 and the year-end salanes of the Executive Directors Shares used for the above calculation excude unvested and
unexercised options They include shares where the Executive Director has beneficial ownershup, shares independently acquired in the market and those held by

aspouse or Civil partner or dependent child under the age of 18 years.
2 MickMaddock left the Company on 6 January 2017. The beneficially owned shares represent his holding on his date of resignation His LTIP and Sharesave options

lapsed on that date

Payments to past Directars (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments in the financial year No payments were made to Nick Maddock for loss of office

External directorships
Executive Directors may hold positions in other companies as Non-Executive Directors and retain their fees

Clive Fenton, John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker do not hold any external directorstups.
Comparison of overall performance and pay

The graph below shows the value of £100 invested in the Company's shares since isting compared with the FTSE 250 index
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated oy both the movementin share value and reinvestment over the

same pertod of dividend income.

As the Company is currently a constituent of the FTSE 250, the Commuttee considers this s an appropriate index The comparison
15 from the date of isting on 11 November 2015 to 31 August 2017

[ ]

Graphic removed

L ]
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Chief Executive Officer's historic remuneration
The following tabile shows the total single figure for the role of Chief Executive Officer as well as the annuai bonus and LTIP vesting

level achieved for each of the periods covered by the graph on the previous page.

Fr17 FY1&
CEO total single figure £753,169 £628,024
Annual bonus payment level achieved (% of maximum oppaortunity) 19.7% 10.0%
LTiP vesting level achieved (% of maximum opportunity)’ 0% 0%

1 Noaward has vested under the LTIP

Statement of considerations of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group

The policy for all empioyees 1s determined in terms of best practice and ensuring that the Group IS able to attract and retain
the best people This principle is followed in the development of our policy.

The remuneration strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all employees share in tts success through
performance-related remuneration and share ownership On IPQ the LTIP was introduced for Executive Directors and
other selected members of senior management Awards under the LTIP will provide alignment between senior leaders
and our shareholders based on overall performance of the business

For all employees, the Company has adopted the Sharesave and the Share Incentive Plan {'SIPY) Under these Plans, all employees
have the opportunity to purchase shares in the Company subject to certain restrictions

The Company does not use remuneratton comparison measurements nor have employees been consulted directly on the policy.
In setting the remuneration policy for Directors, the pay and conditions of other employees of the Group are taken into account,
including any base salary increases awarded

The Committee i1s provided with data on the remuneration structure for management level ters below the Executive Directors,
and uses this information to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group

Change in Chief Executive Officer's remuneration compared with employees
The following table illustrates the change in CEQ salary, benefits and bonus between FY16 and FY17 compared with other

employees in the Group taken as a whaole
% change FY16 ta FY17

Basesalary Benefits Annual bonus
Chief Executive Officer 2% 10% 132%
Other Group employees 3% 14% 146%

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the relative importance of spend on pay in comparison to profit distributed by way of dividends

FY17 FY16 % changes
Qverall spend on pay including Executive Directors £80.0m £69.3m 13%
£29.0m £24.2m 20%

Profit distributed by way of dividends

There were no distributions by way of share buybacks during the year.
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Commuttee, under agreed terms of reference, responsibility for the policy and for determining
specific packages for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior management team Prior to the
establishment of the Commuttee, remuneratton decisions were made by the Board The Company consults with key shareholders

in respect of the policy and the introduction of new incentive arrangements

The members of the Committee during FY17 and up to the date of this Report are Mike Parsons (Chairman), fjohin White,
Frank Nelson and Geeta Nanda

The terms of reference for the Committee are avaiable on the Company’s website; www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance, and from the Company Secretary at the registered office
Our main responsibiliues are to

+ Determing and agree with the Board the broad Policy for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior
management team

+ Undertake periodic reviews to assess the appropriateness and relevance of the Policy ensuring alignment with best practice
prinaples of the UK Corporate Governance Code

« Consder the relative importance of the Group’s expenditure on pay compared to the Group's profits, dividends and tax paid

«  Review any mgjor changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Company or Group and to administer all aspects of
any share scheme

The Cormnmittee receves assistance from the HR Director and the Company Secretary, who will attend mEEtlnﬁs by invitation,
except when issues relating to their own remuneration are being discussed The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financeal Officer

and the Chief Operating Officer attend by Invitation on oCcasion
Adviser to the Remuneration Committee

Following a selection process carrned out by the Board prior to and then following the IPO of the Company, the Comrmittee has
engaged the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pw() as independent remuneration adviser

During FY17 Pw( has provided adwvice, primarily in respect of the remuneration pohcy and LTIP awards,

Pw( also prowvides certain other non-audit services in respect of tax and miternal audit to the Group The Cormmuttee 1s satisfied
that no conflict of Interest exists or existed in the provision of these services and that the advice recewved from PwC is objective
and independent. PwC 15 a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and 1s a signatory to its voluntary code of conduct
which is designed to ensure objecuive and independent adwvice is given to remuneration commitiegs.

Fixed fees of £36,000 (FY16- £24,000) were paid to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration adwvice given (o the Committee
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Shareholder engagement and statement of voting at the AGM

The Committee believes it 1s very important to mantain an open dialcgue with shareholders on remuneration matters
Shareholders’ views were sought and considered when we set the remuneration palicy last year as well as consulting on the
changes to the incentive arrangements as outhned earlier in this report The Committee commits to consulting with our major
shareholders in respect of any future changes to the remuneration policy and any material changes to incentve arrangements.

We put resolutions tg approve the remuneration policy, as set out In last year's Annual Report, and to approve the FY16
Annual Report on Remuneration to our members at our AGM In January 2017 The voting outcaome of those twa resoluttons were

Total vates cast
FY17 Resclution Votes for Votes against (excluding withheid} Votes withheld

Directors’ Remuneration Policy:

Number of votes cast 320,184,871 24,713,722 344,898,593 3,773,564
Percentage of vates cast 92.8% 7.2%

Annual Report on Remuneration:

Number of votes cast 345,465,429 1,642,446 347,107,875 1,564,283
Percentage of votes cast 99.5% 0.5%
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Summary of remuneration policy

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following table sets out the elements of remuneration permitted under the remuneration policy which was approved by
shareholders in January 2017 The full policy 1s set out In the FY16 Annual Report on pages 63 to 74

How It supports the

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Element of Company’s short and Performance
remunearation long-term strategic objectives Operanon Maximurm opportuenities MEetrics
Basesalary  Provides a base level of Set on appointment and The Committee ensures None.
remuneration to support reviewed annually or when that maximurm salary
recruitrment and retention there 1s a change in position levels are set in line with
of Executive Directors with or responsibility. companies of a similar
the necessary experience size to McCarthy & Stone,
and expertise to deliver When determining an operating in & sirmilar sector.
the Group's strategy. appropriate level of saiary,
the Committee considers: The companies in the comparator
* Remuneration practices group are the constituents of
within the Group the FTSE 250 and sector peer
* The general performance organisations of a similar size.
of the Group
* Salanes within the ranges The Committee intends to
paid by the companies in review the comparator groups
the comparater group each year and may add or
used for remuneration remove companies frorm the
benchmarking group as it considers appropriate.
s Anychange in scope, Any changes ta the comparator
role and responsibilities group will bein the section
= The economic environment headed implementation of
Remuneration Policy, in the
individuals who are recruited or following financial year.
promoted to the Board may, on
occasion, have their salares set In general, salary increases for
below the targeted policy level Executive Directors are inline
until they become established with the increase for employees.
in their role. In such cases
subsequent increases in salary The Company sets out in the
may be higher than the general section headed implementation
rises for employees until the of Remuneration Pohcy Executive
target positioning is achieved. Director salaries for that year
and the following year.
Benefits Provides a benefits Executive Directors typically The maximum is set at None.
package in ine with receive private medical insurance, the cost of providing the
practice relative to 1ts Iife iInsurance and a car or car benefits described.
comparator graup to allowance. The Commuttee
enable the Company retains the flexibihty te provide
to recruit and retain other benefits.
Executive Directors
with the experience The Caommittee recognises the need
and expertise to deliver to maintain suitable flexibility in
the Group's strategy. the benefits provided to ensure it
is able to support the objective of
attracting and retaining personnel in
order to deliver the Group strategy.
Additional benefits may therefore
be offered such as relocation
aliowances on recruitment
Pensions Provides a pension provision The Company offers a Group The maximum cantribution None.

in line with practice relative
to its comparator group to
enable the Company

to recruit and retain
Executive Directors with the
experience and expertise to
deliver the Group's strategy.

into the Group Personal Pension
scheme or a salary supplementin
lieu of pension is 20% of gross basic
salary.

Personal Pension scheme. The
Executive Directors are entitled
to receive a maximum employer
contribution into the Group
Personal Pension scheme or

a salary supplement in lieu of
pension of 20% of basic salary
per annum.

The Company sets out in the
section headed Implementation

of Remuneration Policy, in the
following financial year the pension
contributions for that year for each
of the Executive Directors.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Element of
remunerat

How it supports the
Company’s short and

ion long-term strategic objectives

Operation

Maximum opportunities

Performance
metrics

Annual

Deferred

Bonus

Plan (‘ABP’)

The ABP provides a
significant incentive to
the Executive Directors
linked to achievement
in delivering goals that
are closely aligned with
the Group’s strategy
and the creation of
value for shareholders.

and

In particular, the ABP
supports the Company’s
objectives aliowing the
setting of annual targets
based on the business
strategy at the time,
meaning that a wider
range of performance
metrics can be used
thatare relevant

and achievable.

The Committee has
discretion to defer part
of the bonus earned in
shares under the ABP.

The advantage of

deferralis:

* Increased alignment
between Executive
Directors and
shareholders created
through deferred
shares and the
increased equity
stake of management
in the Company

* Vesting of deferred
shares are subject
to an Executive
Director's continuing
employment, which
provides an effective
lock-in

The Committee determines
the bonus to be awarded
following the end of the
relevant financial year

The Company wiil set out
in the section headed
Implementation of
Remuneration Policy,

in the following financial
year, the nature of the
targets and their weighting
for eachyear.

Details of the performance
canditions, targets and their
level of satisfaction for the
year being reported on s set
out in the Annual Report

0N Remuneration.

The Committee can determine
that part of the bonus earned
under the ABP is delivered as
an award cf shares.

The maximum value of
deferred shares s 50% of
the bonus earned.

The portion of bonus earned

to be deferred into Company
shares for the year being
reported on will be set cutin the

The maximum bonus
(including any part of
the bonus deferred
Into shares) deliverable
under the ABP does
not exceed 150% of a
participant’s annual
base salary.

Percentage of bonus

maximum earned

for levels of

performance:

+ Threshold: 25% of
maximum bonus

« Ontarget: 50% of
maximum bonus

*  Maximum: 100%
of maximum bonus

The annual bonus will
be paid in cash and
deferred shares.

Annual Report on Remuneration.

The main terms of these awards

are:

¢ Mmnimum deferral period
of three years, during which
nc performance conditions
will apply

+ The participant’s continued
employment at the end of the
deferral period unless he/she
is a good leaver

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on those
shares to the participants to the
extent that they vest.

The Committee has the
discretion to apply a hoiding
period of two years post vesting
of deferred shares.

The ABP contains clawback and
malus provisions. Please refer
to page 63 of the 2016 Annual
Report for further details.

An award under the ABP is
subject to satisfying financial
and strategic/operational
performance/personal
performance conditions

and targets measured cver

a period of one financial year.

A minimum of 50% of the
bonus shall be based on
financial performance
measures. The Committee will
determine the bonus (o be
delivered following the end of
the relevant financial year.

The Committee is of the
opimon that given the
commercial sensitivity arising
in relation to the detailed
financial targets used for the
bonus, disclosing precise
targets for the ABP in advance
would not be in shareholder
interests. Targets, performance
achieved and awards made
will be published at the end
of the performance period so
shareholders can fully assess
the basis for any pay-outs
under the ABP.

In exceptional circumstances
the Committee retains the
discretion to:

« Change the performance
measures and targets and
the weighting attached to
the performance measures
and targets part-way
through a performance year
if there is a significant and
material event which causes
the Committee to believe
the original measures,
weightings and targets are
no longer appropriate

« Make downward or upward
adjustments to the amount
of bonus earned resulting
from the application of the
performance measures, if
the Commuttee believes that
the bonus outcomes are not
a fair and accurate reflection
of business performance

Any adjustments or discretion
applied by the Committee

will be fully disclosed in the
following year's Annual report
on Remuneraticn.
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How it supports the
Company's short and
long-term strategic abjectives

STRATEGIC REPORT

Operation

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maximum opportunities

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Performance
metrics

LTip

The purpose of the LTIP
is to incentivise and
reward Executive
Directors in relation to
long-term perfermance
and achievement of
Group strategy.

This will better aligh
Executive Directors’
interests with the
long-term interests of
the Group and actas a
retention mechanism.

The use of relative TSR,
measures the success
of the implementation
of the Group's strategy
tn delivering a return
above our peer group.

The use of three-year
EPS and ROCE, ensures
Executive Directors are
focused on sustainable
long-term financial
performance.

Awards are granted annuaily
1o Executive Directors in the
form of a conditional share
award or a nil-cost option.

Details of the performance
conditions for grants made
in the year and the future
financial year are set out

in the Annual Reporton
Remuneration.

Awards will vest at the end of

a three-year period subject to:

* The Executive Director’s
continued employrment at
the date of vesting

* Satisfaction of the
performance conditions

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on
awards to the extent that
these vest

The Committee has the
discretion to apply a holding
period of two years post
vesting of LTIP awards.

The LTIP contains clawback
and malus provisions.
Please refer to page 69 of
the 2016 Annual Report for
further details.

Normal annual
maximum value of
150% of annuai base
salary based on the
market value at the
date of grant setin
accordance with the
rules of the LTIP.

In exceptional
circumstances the
Committee may grant
an award with a
maximum of 200%
of annual base salary.
* 25% of the award
will vest for
threshold
performance
*+ 100% of the
award wili vest
for maximum
performance

There is straight-
line vesting between
these points.

The performance conditions
for the FY17 LTIP awards are
cumulative EPS, ROCE and TSR.
The weightings of which are
outlined on page 95.

The Committee may change
the balance of the measures,
or use different measures
for subsequent awards,

as appropriate.

No material change will
be made to the type of
performance conditions
without prior shareholder
consultation.

In exceptional circumstances
the Committee retains the
discretion to:

* Vary, substitute or waive
the performance conditions
applying to LTIP awards if
the Committee considers
it appropriate and that
the new performance
conditions are deemed
reasonable and are not
materially less difficult
to sausfy than the
original conditions

* Make downward or

upward adjustments to

the amount vesting under
the LTIP resulting from

the application of the
performance measures if
the Committee believes that
the cutcomes are not a far
and accurate reflection of
business performance
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How it supports the

Element of Company's short and Performance
remuneranon long-term strategic objectives Operation Maximum apparturities metrics
Ali employee The SIP and Sharesave  Executive Directors are eligible  The maximum leveis in accerdance with the
shareplans are allemployee share  to participate in both the SIP of participation setby  legislation the Company may
- SIP and ownership plans which  and Sharesave. legisiation from time impase objective performance
Sharesave have been designed to time. conditions and/or length of
to encourage all The Executive Directors are service/hours worked/level of
employees to hecome  entitled to participate in any remuneration to determine the
shareholders in the other all employee arrangement level of awards made under
Company and thereby  implemented by the Company. the SIP.
align their interests
with shareholders.
Minimum The Committee has adopted formal shareholding guidelines that will encourage the Executive Directors to build
shareholding up over a five-year period and then subsequently hold a shareholding equivalent to a percentage of base salary.
requirement Adherence to these guidelines is a condition of continued participation in the equity Incentive arrangements.

This requirement ensures that the interests of Executive Directors and those of shareholders are closely aligned.

Currently the requirement is for all Executive Directors to build up a shareholding equal to 200% of salary.

The Commuttee retains the discretion to increase the shareholding requirernents.

Executive Directors’ contracts and letters of appointment for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Notice periads

Date of Nature Comp 1 provisions
Name service contract of contract From company Director Tor early termination
Clive Fenton 30 january 2014 Rolling 12 months 12 months At the discretion
John Tonkiss 21 January 2014 Rofling 12 months 6 months of the
Rowan Baker 6 January 2017 Rolling 12 months 6 months Committee

Non-Executive Directors

Date of letter of appointment

Name

John White 24 September 2013

Frank Nelson 11 Novermnber 2013

Mike Parsons 28 October 2013
4 March 2015

Geeta Nanda
John Carter

18 September 2017

The Committee's policy for setting notice periods is that a 12 month period will apply for Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts. The Non-Executive
Directors are appointed by letters of appointment Each independent Non-Executive Director’s terrn of office runs for a
three-year period which can be renewed for two further three-year terms The terms of the Non-Executive Directors’
positions are subject to therr re-election by the Company’s shareholders at the AGM and to re-election at any subsequent
AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-election

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders on an annual basis.

The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors are availlable for inspection at the Company's registered

office during normal office hours
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The charts below lllustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based on salanes at the start
of FY18, under three different performance scenarios (i) minimum, (i) on-target, and (i) maximum The table below these charts
sets out the assumptions used to calculate the elerments of remunerat:on for each of these scenarios. The elements of
remuneration have been categorised into three components (1) fixed, (i) annual bonus (deferred bonus), and () LTIP

Chief Executive Officer (Clive Fenton) (£'000)

Chief Operating Officer (John Tonkiss) (£'000)

Maximum EO% 35% 35% __] 2130 Maximum | 30% 35% 35% 1,410
On-target | 46% 27% 27% 1,380 On-target | 46% 27% 27% 915
Minimum | 100% 630 Mimimurm | 100% 420
Actual 81% 18% | 753 8196 19% 462
BFixed B Bonus ELTIP B Fixed @Bonus MLTIP
Chief Financial Officer (Rowan Baker) (£'000)
Maximum | 30% 35% 35% 1,216
On-target | 46% 27% 27% 789
Minimum | 100% 35
ACUBl e oy Diractor for part arthayear
HFixed BBonus WLTIP
Element Description Minimum Target Maximurm
Fixed Salary, benefits* Included included Included
and pension
Annual bornus (including  No annual vanable 50% of 100% of

Annual bonus

deferred sharesy?
Maximum opportunity
of 150% of salary

maximum bonus

maximurm bonus

LTIP

Award under the LTIP?
Maximurm annual award
of 150% of salary

No muttiple year variable

50% of the
maximum award

100% of the
maximum award

Notes

1 Based on FY17 banefits paymeanis as per the Single Figure Table The actual benefits pald for FY18 will only be known at the end of the linanaal year See page 94 for the

Single Figure Table and the accompanying notes
2 in3accordance wikh the regulations share price growth has not beenincluded In additon, dividend equevalents have not been added to the deferred shares and LTIP awards

Mike Parsons

Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 November 2017
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report for the financial year ended
31 August 2017

Corporate governance statement
The information that fuifils the requirements of the corporate

Bgovernance statement for the purposes of the FCA's Disclosure

Guidance and Transparency Rules can be found in the
corporate governance information on pages 74 to 105 (all
of which forms part of thus Directors’ report) and in this
Directors' report.

Cross-references to other sections of the document
Disclosures that are in other sections include:

Subject matter Section and page reference

Strategic report, page 63
Strategic report, page 63
Strategic report, page 60
Strategic report,
pages 56 and 57

Employee diversity and inciusivity
Employee involvement
Greenhouse gas emissions

Likely future developments

Dividends

Annterim dvidend of 1 8p (FY16 1 Op) per ordinary share was
paid on 9 June 2017 ta those shareholders on the register on
28 April 2017 Subject to shareholder approval at the 2018
AGM, the Directors are proposing a final dwidend for the
financial year ended 31 August 2017 of 3.6p (FY16: 3.5p} per
ordinary share This brings the total dividend for the year to
S5.4p (FY16: 4 5p).

Directors

The names of the Directors who were Directors at year end
and up to the date of this report are on pages 70 10 73. Nick
Maddock served as a Director untd 6 January 2017 when he
resigned from the Board Rowan Baker was appointed to the
Board on 6 january 2017, John Carter was apponted to the
Board on 1 October 2017

Detasls of the Directors' interests in the share capial of the
Company are set out in the Directors' Remuneration Report
on page 97

The powers given to the Directors are contained in the
Company's Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’), subject
to the Companias Act 2006, and any directions given by
members In general meetings.

The Board, who is uitimately responsible for the managerment
of the business of the Company, may exercise all powers to
borrow money, to pay interim dividends, to mortgage or
charge any of Its undertakings, to 1ssue securities and to give
secunty for any debt, hability or obligation of the Company

to any third party
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The appointment and replacement of directors is governed
by the Articles and the Board may appoint any person to
be a director (so long as the total number of directors does
not exceed the mit prescribed in the Articles, which s
currently 12).

Under the Articles, any such director shall hold office onl
until the next AGM and shall then be eligible for election ¥)y
the members. in line with the UK Corporate Governance Code
ali directors are required to retire and, if they so wish, they
may stand for annual re-election. All current directors waill

be seeking re-election at the 2018 AGM

The Articles may be amended by a special resolution of the
shareholders

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association may be amended in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of a
special resotution of the Cormnpany’s shareholders

Share capital and control
Details of the Company's share capital are on page 137 in note
25 1o the consolidated financral statements

At 31 August 2016 there were 537,314,069 25 ordinary shares
of 8p nominal value in issue Following approval at the AGM,
the quarter share was bought back and cancelled on

25 January 2017 No other shares have been bought back
and cancelled.

During the year 15,365 new ordinary shares have been issued
and allotted to satlsfr early exercises of cptions under the
Group's Sharesave Plan by good leaver employees, who are
entitled 10 exercise thewr pro-rata oplions within six months
of leaving the Group

The Company has one ciass of shares. ordinary shares of 8p
nominal value, each of which carries the nght to one vote at
general meetings of the Cempany and to an equal proportion
of any dividends declared and paid.

Shares may be 1ssued with such rights and restrictions as the
Company may, by ardinary resolution, decide or, if there is rio
such resolution or 50 far as 1t does not make specic provision,
as the Board may decide.

There are no restrichions on the transfer of our ordinary shares
and there are no shares carrying special rights with regards to
control of the Company The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that rmay result in
restrictions an the transfer of shares or on voting rights. There
are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding or on the
exercise of voting rights which are governed by the Articles of
Association and prevalling legislation No person has any
speciat rights of control over the Company's share capitad and
all issued shares are fully paid.
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Resolutions to allot, issue and buy back shares
Shareholder authority will be sought each year to authorise
the Directors to allot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
rights and to make market purchases of our ordinary shares

We intend to renew our powers to 1ssue and buy back shares
at each AGM. At our AGM on 25 January 2017 the Directors
were authorised 10 1ssue shares up to 2 maximum nommnal
amount of £14,328,360 and empowered to 1ssue shares on a
non pre-emptive basis up to a maximum nominal amount of
£2,149,256 for general use and a further £2,149,256 for use
In connection with an acquisition or other capital investment

The Directors were also authorised to buy back up to
53,731,406 shares. This authoerity has nct been used
The Directors are seeking renewal of this authority at
the forthcoming AGM, 1n accordance with relevant
instituwonal guidelines

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2017, we had been notified, in accordance
with the rules set out In the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebook, of the following interests in
cur ordinary share capital:

Number 3% interest

of shares nvoting
Name of notifying entity/nature of holding disclosed righes
Anchorage Capital Master
Offshare Limited (indirect)' 134,695,393 25.07
Prudential pic group of
companies (indirect)® 55,140,163 10.26
The Goldman Sachs Group,
In¢ {indirect)® 52,870,054 9.84
Aviva pic and
subsidiaries (indirect) 3,024,245 0.57
Aviva plc and
subsidiaries (direct)* 31,165,914 5.80
Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board (direct) 29,084,092 5.4
Royal London Asset

27,045,491 5.03

Management Limited (direct)

1 Includes contracts for cifference {CIDs) representing 43,785,237 voting rights.

2 includesright to recall 1,059,083 loaned shares.

3 Includes open stock loar of 80,314 shares and waps/CIDs representing
42,091,714 voting nghrts

4 Indludes nghtte recall 4,111,585 loaned shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in the penod from 31 August 2017 to the date of this report,
we received the following notifications

Numbaraf 9% Interest in
Name of nat:fying entity/nature of halding shares disclosed  voting nghts
Anchorage Capital Master
Offshore, Ltd (indirect)’ 140,595,070 26.17
Prudential plc group of
companies (indirect)? 706,235,186 13.07
The Goldman Sachs Group,
Inc (indirect)® 54,462,421 10.14
Aviva ple and its subsidiaries (direct) 14,851,688 2.76

1 Indudes financral nstruments representing 48,785,237 voting rights (9 08%)
2 Incudes financial instruments representing 235,415 voung rights (0 04%)
3 Indudes linancial instr uments representing 44,433,555 voting 1nights (3.27%)

Information prowvided to the Company under the Disclasure
Guidance and Transparency Rules is publicly avallable via the
regulatory information service and on the Company's website

Significant agreements with change of control
provisions

The Company has in place a revaiving credit facility

dated 19 December 2014 (as amended by an amendment
letter dated 10 February 2015 and further amended by a
supplemental agreement dated 23 May 2016). The revolving
credit facility and our joint venture with Somerset Care relating
to YLMS both contain termination prowsions that could be
triggered in certain arcumstances, mcluding if any persan
or group of persons acting In concert gain control of

the Company

There are no agreements between the Group and its Directors
and employees providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment (whether through resignation, purported
redundancy cr otherwise} in the event of a takeover bid

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Group maintains Directors and Officers’ hability insurance
which provides cover for any legal action brought against

the Directors

The Group has also granted indemnities to each of the current
Directors of the Company and tts main trading subsidiary to
the exten: perrmitted by law Qualfying third-party indemnity
provisions were in force during the year ended 31 August 2017
and conunue to reman in force.

Political donations

By way of a special resolution approved at the AGM on
25 January 2017, shareholders authorised the Company
to make political donations and polincal expenditure up
te a maximuwm of £100,000 During the year the Group
did not make any political donatons or incur any political
expenditure The Directors are seeking renewal of the
authority at the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with
relevantinstitutional guidelines

Financial instruments

Details of the Group's financial instruments and its exposures
to price risk, credit risk, lguidity nsk and cash flow risk are set
out in note 30 (o the financial statements on pages 139 to 143
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Directors’ Report continued

Going concern

The Directors have assessed the Group's business actvities
and the factors likely to affect our future performance in light
of current and anticipated economic conditions The Directors
are confident that they are satisfied that the Group has
adequate resources in place to contnue in operational
existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements For this reason, they have
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and financia) statements

The Directors are also required 1o provide a broader
assessment of viability over a longer period, which can be
found on page 57.

in making the going concern statement and the wiability
statement, the Directors have taken into account the ‘Guigance
on Risk Management, Internal Controls and Related Financial
and Business Reporung issued by the Financial Reportng
Councit in September 2014.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each person who 1s a Director of the Company as at the date
of approval of this report confirms that

(@) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditor is unaware,
and

(b} the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any refevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Annual General Meeting

The 2018 AGM will be held on Wednesday 24 january 2018

Fult details are contained in the Notice converung the AGM,
which 15 being sent to shareholders with this Annual Report
On behalf of the Board

Patrick Hole
Company Secretary

13 Novemnber 2017
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Directors Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records

The Direciors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company taw requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Cirectors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS's) as adopted by the European
Union and Article 4 and have elected to prepare the
Company financial statements in accordance with Uinited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards), including FRS 102, the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland, and applicable law

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are sausfied that they give
atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company and of their profit or loss for that period

In preparing the Parent Company financial statements,
the Directors are required to

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent

+ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

+ Prepare the finanaal statements on the going concern
basis unless it 1S Inappropriate (o presume that the
Company will continue In business

In prepaning these financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

= Properiy select and apply accounting policies

s Presentinformation, ncludimg accounting policies, in
a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information

« Provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the spedific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular
transact:ons, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance

» Mzke an assessment of the Company’s ahility to
continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the finanaal position of the Company and enable

them to ensure that the financial statements comply with

the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
snte%rlty of the corporate and firancial information included
on the Company's webstte Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissermunation of financial
statements may differ from legislauon in other jurisdictions.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board confirms that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and
understandable and prowides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the position, performance,
strategy and business model of the Company.

Responsibility statement
The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person's
knowledge

+ The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Unian, give a true and fair view of the
assets, iabitities, financial pesitton and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole

s The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings
rcluded in the conschdation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the pnnapal risks and uncertainties
that they face

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 13 Novemnber 2017 and 1s signed on its behalf by

Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
13 Novernber 2017 13 November 2017
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Independent Auditor’s
Report to the Members
of McCarthy & Stone pic

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our gpinion:

= The financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 August
2017 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended

s The Group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with Internationat Financial Reporung Standards
(IFRS's) as adopted by the turopean Unicn and IFR5s asssued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB)

« The Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, Including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporung Standard applicable in the
UK and Repubhc of reland’

* The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (the 'Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) which
compnse-

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Consolidated and Parent Statements of Financial Position

The Consohdated and Parent Statements of Changes in Equity

The Consolidated and Parent Cash Flow Statements

The statement of accounting policies

The related notes 1 to 34 of the Group statements and 1 to 11 of the Parent statements

The financial reporung framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of
the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, induding FRS 102 ‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auding (UK) (15A's (UK) and apphicable law Qur
respensibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financal

statements section of our report

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company : accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as apphed to bisted public interest entities, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We confirm that the non-audtt services
prohibited by the FRC’s Ethucal Standard were not provided to the Group or Parent Company

we bebeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion

Summary of our audit approach

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year related to cost capitalisation of overheads and certain shared
equity receivables We have identfied fewer key audit matters in the current year. due to the non-recurring nature of two
key risks identified in the prior year arising from the Initial Public Offering (IPO7 being the accounting treatment applied in
respect of transaction costs and incentive scheme arrangements

The materiality that we used n the current year was £4 6m (FY16: £5 2m) which was determined on the basis of 5% of
pre-tax profit.

We have performed full scope audits on the Group's four largest enuties. McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy & Stone
(Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited

We have performed an audit of select account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited and McCarthy
& Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review procedures over highly smmaterial subsidiaries.
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Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have reviewed the Directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting contained
within note 1 to the financal statements and the Directors’ statement on the longer-term viability of the Group contained within

the Strategic Report section on page 57

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to

* The disclosures on pages 56 and 57 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being rmanaged or mitigated

« The Directors’ confirmation on page 55 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group,
including thase that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or hgundity

* The Directors’ statement i note 1 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their identification of any matenal uncertainties to the Group and
the Parent Company’s ability to continue to do so cver a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements

» The Directors’ explanation on page 57 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Grouﬁ, over what period they
have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue In operation and meet its habilives as they fall due over the period of
their assessment, Including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

« Whether the Directors’ statements relating to going concern and the prospects of the Company required in accordance
with Listing Rule 9 8 6R(3} are materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material to add or draw attention toin respect of these matters

We agreed with the Directors’ adoption of the going concern basis of accounting and we did not identify any such matenal
uncertainties However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this staterment s not a guarantee as to

the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in cur audit of the financial

statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of matenial misstatement (whether or nat due to
fraud) that we identified Tnese matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy; the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the finanaial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters The accounting treatment of Incentive schemes was
included as a key audit matter in our prior year report but has not been included in 2017 due to now being immarterial to the
financial statements. Similarly the treatment of transaction costs on IPO was speafic to our 2016 audit only and so 1s not mcluded

this year

Key audit matter

How the scope of our auditrespended to 1he key audit matter

Key obsarvations

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Refer to poge 84 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Committee) and poges 128 and 129 (Criticol
accounting judgernents and key sources of
estimation uncertainty).

Inventory comprises land, work in progress

and finished stock. The value of inveniory as at

31 August 2017 is £760 4m (FY16: £685.8m) and
i1s the most significant item on the Consolidated
Statement of Finanaal Positon Overhead costs
capitalsed at 31 August 2017 amount to £23 2m
(FY16 £25.7m) representing 5.1% (FY16° 4.9%) of
stock additions. Amounts released to cost of sales
totaled £207m (FY16 £13 2m)

Management perform a detailed exercise to
analyse by department the proporticn of costs
relating directly to site development versus general
business overheads

We consider the allocation and recognitian

of overhead costs INtG INnventory to represent an
area of nsk and an area where potential fraud
could occur as it requires a sigrificant level of
judgement identified in:

« identifying which costs, based on therr nature,
shouid be capitahsed into inventory rather than
expensed

We challenged the reasonableness of the
allocation and the accuracy of costs capitalised
for each category of inventory Our work involved
the following

= Assessing the design and implementation of
relevant controls surrounding the formufation
of the percentages appled

* Liaising with senior departmental management
to understand the process employed in
determining the cost allocation

» Performing sensitivity analysis on the
proportion of costs capitalised in the year

= Checking the mechanical accuracy of the
calculations to dentfy any anomalies

« Performing tests of detail over a sample of
costs absorbed to assess whether these are
valued and allocated correctly

= Perfarming a recalculation based on the final
percentage allocation and audited cost nputs
to establish whether the amounts capitalised
are accurate

We did not identify
any 1ssues (0
reportinthe
course of our work
Accordingly, we are
sausfied as to the
reasonableness of
the altlocation

and accuracy of
costs capitalised

in the year.
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Key audit matter

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

Key observations

Cost capitalisation of overheads continued

» Determining the proportion of Planreng, Design,
Commercial, Construction and Health & Safety
costs incurred in bringing the iInventories to thesr
present location and condition, as per IAS 2
‘Inventtories’

The judgement above impacts the carrying

value of iInventory in the Consolidated Staternent of
Financial Position and the gross margin recogrnised
on each apartment sold

Shared equity receivables

Refer to poge 84 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Comimuttee), pages 128 and 129 (Crincal occounting
Jjuagements and key sources of estimation uncertamty)
and page 136 (financial statement disciosures)

During the year the Group offered shared equity
based arrangements to buyers The present value
of total shared equity receivables as at 31 August
201715 £28 9m (FY16 £29 3m) Of this amount,
£19.3m (FY16 £18 9m) was attributable to the New
Shared Equity Scheme

The Group's assessment and supporting calculation
of the New Shared Equity Scheme 1s dependent

on a number of assumpticns, which are inherently
Judgemental due to therr forward-looking nature
Key assumptions include

= Property price projections

« Expected maturity date

« Discount rate

= New buid discounts and property
sale premiums

The abaove assumptions are dependent on
management’s ability to estimate market activity,
future trends and fluctuations. Changes to these
assumptions could result in a material change

in the value of the receivable recognised within

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
and the associated movements recorded in the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive income

We cnitically assessed the accuracy of the inputs
and the reasonableness of the assumptions
apphed in the Group's fair value model of the
New Shared Equity Scheme. Qur work involved
the following

* Assessing the design and implementation
of relevant controls over the determination
of the assumptions applied

» Consuiung with our internal Real Estate
specialists to challenge the rates and
methodologies apphed through comparison
with the market

« Obtawng relevant sector data {e.g. Office for
National Statistics and the latest indices) to
challenge the reasonableness of house pnce
inflation and new build prermiums

» Perforrming tests of detall tc assess the
integrity of Inputs and recalculate the related
fair value adjustments

s Performiung sensttivity analtysis over the
assumptions both individually and collectively to
understand whether material differences arise
as & result of changes in these assumptions

» Comparing the cash received on redemption
during the year as an indicator of whether
carrying value reflects farr value

= Checking the mechanical accuracy of the fair
value calculation and assessing the adequacy of
disclosure in the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of IAS1
‘Presentation of Financiol Statements’

We did not identify
any issues to
reportin the
course of our work
Accordingly we are
satisfied as to the
reasonableness

of the carrying
valuation of shared
equity recevables
recognised
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Our application of materiality
We define matenality as the magnitude of misstaterment in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced We use materiality both in planmng the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiahty for the Group financial staterments as a whale to be £4 6m
which 1s based on 5% of pre-tax profit for the year

Pre-tax profit has been chosen as the basis for matenality as this 1s the measure by which stakeholders and the market assess the
wider performance of the Group.

We determine performance materiality at a level lower than mateniality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financral statements as & whole Group performance materiahty

was setat £3 2m (FY16 £3 6m), representng 70% of Group mateniality for the 2017 audit

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0 2m
(FY16 £0.3m), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on quaiitative grounds We also
report to the Risk and Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit
The Group has operations across the United Kingdom, split between three geographic divisions and nine regional offices

All subsidianes of the Group are managed from the head office in Bournemouth and are subject to a common control
environment. Our Group audrn was scoped by obtaiming an understanding of the Group and its environment, including
Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of matenal misstaternent at the Group level

Based on that assessment, we focused our audit scope on the four largest entities in the Group McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy
& Stone (Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone {Extra Care Living)
Limited These entities represent the principal entities and account for 98% (FY16 98%) of the Group's net assets, 100% (FY16
1008} of the Group's revenue and 98% (FY16- 98%) of the Group's profit before tax They were also selected to provide

an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the risks of material misstatemnent identified above

2% 2%

Profit Net

Revenue before tax assets

® Full audst scope ® Full audit scope ® Full audit scope
® Specified audit procedures ® Specfied audit procedures ® Specified audit procedures

Our audit work on these enuties was executed at levels of materiality apphcable to each indwidual Company ranging from £3 Sm
to £4.1m which were lawer than Group materiahiy.

We have performed an audit of select account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited and
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review procedures over highly immatenial subsidiaries.

At the Parent entity level we also tested the consolidaticn process and carnied out analytical procedures ta confirm cur conclusion
that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components

not subject to audit or audit of specified account balances

The Group audit 1s performed centrally and includes coverage of all mine regional offices within the Group As part of cur audit we
visit a sample of three regional offices each year on a rotational bas's with reference 1o size and complexity among other factars
The purpose of these visits 15 to conduct procedures over selected controls that are in place at each regional office
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Independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other nformation The other information comprises the information included in

the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated tn our auditor's report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in daing sa,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained
In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstared.

If we 1denufy such matenal inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there s a material misstatement in the financial statements ar a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a3 matenal misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected matenial misstatements of the other
infoermation include where we conclude that.

= Far, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report and Financial
Statements taken as a whote 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group’s performance, business model and strategy, 1s matenally inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in
the audt

* Risk and Audit Committee reporting - the section describing the work of the Risk and Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters commurnicated by us to the Commitiee

= Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the Directors’ staternert required
under the Listing Rules relaung to the Company's compliance with the UK Corparate Governance Code contaming provisions
speafied for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 10R({2) do not properly disciose a departure from a
relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Responsibilities of the Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the

financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial staterments, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Cormnpany's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as appiicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our opinon Reasonable assurance
IS & high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal If, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements A further description of our responsibibities for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on
the Financial Reportuing Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

auditor’s report

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act

2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those maiters we are required
io state to them in an auditor’s report and for no ather purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body. for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinlons we have formed
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In qur opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been praperly prepared n accordance with the

Comparnies Act 2006
in our opiruon, based on the work undertsken in the course of the audit

e The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the finanaial year for which the firanoal statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
+ The Straregic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicabie legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the Parent Company and thew environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not iIdentified any matenal misstatements in the Strategic Regort or the Directors’ Report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Campanies Act 2006 we are required to repart to you if, in our opinion

= We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
« Adequale accourting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us
= The Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounung records and returns

We have nothing ta reportin respect of these matters

Directors’' remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration

have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repart to be audited 1s not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns,

We have nothing to repart in respect of these matters

Other matters

Auditor tenure
Following the recommendation of the Risk and Audit Committee, we were appoirited by the shareholders on 25 January 2017

to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 August 2017. The period of total uninterrupted engagerment including
previcus renewals and reappointments of the firmis 9 years, covering the years ending 31 August 2009 to 31 August 2017

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee
Qur audit opinion 1s consistent with the addittonal report to the Risk and Audit Committee we are required to provide in

accordance with ISAs (UK}

E AT

Gregory Culshaw ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

13 November 2017
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 August 2017

2017

206

MNaotes £m Em
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 660.9 6359
Cost of sales {530.2) {499.5)
Gross profit 130.7 136.4
Other operating income 8 8.9 85
Administrative expenses (38.8) (44.7)
Other operating expenses {6.6) (5.1)
Operating profit 94.2 95.1
Amortisation {2.0) (2.1)
Exceptional administrative expenses 6 - (10.0)
Underlying operating profit 96.2 107.2
Finance income 9 1.6 27
Finance expense 10 3.7 (4.9)
Profit before tax 6 921 929
Income tax expense 1 {17.7) (19.4)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total comprehensive income 74.4 73.5
Profit attributabile to:
Owners of the Company 74.2 731
Non-controlling interest 0.2 04
74.4 73.5
Notes 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above Al trading derives from continuing operations
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 12 13.8 13.9
Diluted {p per share) 12 13.8 13.9
Adjusted measures
Underlying operating profit 6 96.2 107.2
6 94.1 105.0

Underlying profit before tax
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2017

2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nates Em £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 4.7 9.7
Intangible assets 14 276 29.6
Property, plant and equipment 15 2.4 29
Investments in joint ventures 17 0.4 0.4
Investment properties 0.2 0.2
Trade and other receivabies 19 321 327
Total non-current assets 104.4 107.5
Current assets
Inventories 18 760.4 685.8
Trade and other receivables 19 9.5 75
Cash and cash equivalents 28 40.7 119.0
Total current assets 810.6 B12.3
Total assets 915.0 919.8
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 25 43.0 43.0
Share premum 26 101.6 100.8
Retained earnings 6001 553.5
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 744.7 697.3
Non-controliing interests 1.0 0.8
Total equity 745.7 6588.1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 85.4 98.7
UK corporation tax 6.7 8.4
Short-term borrowings 23 - 11.3
Land payables 22 67.4 49.3
Total current liabilities 159.5 167.7
Non-current iiabilities
Long-term borrowings 23 8.0 525
Deferred tax iability 20 1.8 15
Total liabilities 169.3 221.7
Total equity and liabilities 915.0 919.8
Nores 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 13 November 2017 and signed on its behalf by:
Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2017

Non-

Share Share Retained cantrofhng Total
capital  préemwum  earnings Tatal nterest equity
Nates £m £m em £m £m £m
Balance at 1 September 2015 3814 56.4 104.3 5418 0.7 5425
Profit for the year - - 731 731 0.4 73.5
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 731 731 0.4 73.5
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Issue of ordinary shares 49 1048 (19.4) 90.3 03} 900
Capital reduction of share capital and share prermium (343.0) (564) 3994 - - -
Share-based payments 3 - - 1.5 1.5 - 15
Share 1ssue related costs - (4.0) - 4.0) - (4.0)
Dividends - - {(5.4) (5.4) - (5.4)
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 1008 553.5 6973 08 6981
Profit for the year - - 742 742 02 744
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 742 742 0.2 74.4
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 31 - - 0.9 0.9 - 0.9
Dividends 25 - - (28.5) (28.5) - (28.5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit - 0.8 - 0.8 - 0.8
430 101.6 600.1 7447 1.0 7457

Balance at 31 August 2017

Naotes 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above

120 McCarthy & Stone plc



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2017

2017 2016
Notes £m Em
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities 28 (3.8) 18.3
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (0.7) (15)
Purchases of iIntangible assets 0.4) (0.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.1 o1
Net cash used in investing activities (1.0) {1.8)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 86.0
Repayment of long-term borrowsngs (45.0) {350)
Dividends paid (28.5) (54)
Net cash (used in} / from financing activities {73.5) 45.6
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (78.3) 621
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 119.0 569
40.7 118.0

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Nortes 1 to 34 form part of the financal staternents shown above
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting poficies applied in the preparation of these consolidated finanaal statements are set out below

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
McCarthy & Stone plcis a Company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act The Group financial statements

consohdate those of the Company and its subsidianes {together referred to as the Group) and include the Group’s interest in
jointly controlled entites The Parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity

and not about the Group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (‘EU IFRS) and have been prepared under the historical ¢ost convention
as modified by financial assets and financal liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

Going concern
The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through cash in hand and its bank faciities The Group's forecasts

and projecuons, taking into account reasanably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to
operate within the level of its current facllities After making engumnes, the Directors have a reasonable expectauon that the Group
has adequate resources (0 continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements Further informaucn on the Group's borrowings s given in note 23.

Basis of consolidation
The consohdated financial statements incorporate the results of the Company and it5 subsidianes For the purposes of

consolidation, subsidianes are entities aver which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
S0 as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adpistments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line
with those used by the Group All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation

Non-controling interests in subsidianes are iWdentfied separately from the Group’s equity therein The interests of non-contraling
shareholders may intially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionaie share of the farr value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets The choice of measurement 1s made on an acquIsition-by-acguisition basis Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those mterests at initial recognitien plus the

non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes 1N equity

Goodwilt
Goodwill anising in a business combination (s recognised as an asset at the date that control is attained (the acquisiuion date)

Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controfhing interestin the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously beld equity interesc {if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisiion-date
amounts aof the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed,

Goodwillis not amortised but is reviewed for imparrment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwaill

1s allocated to the Group's cash-generating unit ({CGU') expected to benefit from synergies arising from a business combinaton
The CGU to which goodwill has been attributed 1s tested for rmparment annually, or more frequently when there i1s an indication
that the CGU may beimpaired [f the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the impairment
loss is atlocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU

Revenue recoghition
Revenue 1s measured at fair value of the consideranon received or receivable and represents amounts recewvable for goods

supplied stated net of discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty

The Group recognises revenue when all the followng condiions are satisfied.
The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant rnisks and rewards of ownership of the goods i
¢ The Group retains neither continung managenal nvolvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold
s The amount of revenue can be measured rehably
= ltis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity
» The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably
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1. Significant accounting policies continued
Revenue recognised in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Incorne but not yet invoiced is held on the Consolidated

Staterment of Financral Position within ‘Trade and other recevables’ Revenue inveiced but not yet recogrised in the Consoldated
Statement of Comprehensive lncome 1s held on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position within ‘Deferred revenue’

Revenue 1s classified as follows

Unit sales
Revenue represents the consideration recewed from the sale of leasehold interests in retirement apartments and freehaold

interests in houses, cottages and bungalows and I1s recognised on legal completion. Where the Group commits an complebon
to provide an additional cash amount above an offer given by a third-party part-exchange provider, this additional cash
amount I1s recognised as a deduction from revenue Cash incentives are considered ta be a discount from the purchase price
offered to the acquirer and are therefore accounted for as a reduction of revenue.

Freehold reversionary interests (‘FRIs’) and house manager flat freehold interests (‘HMFIs’)
FRIs and HMFIs in respect of developed sites are periodically seld to third parties. Revenue anising from these sales 1s
recognised only to the extent that the underlying leasehold interest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sold

Other operating income
Other aperating income includes Management Services income, net rental income, profits ansing from the disposal of

undeveloped land sites, VAT refunds and profits arising from the realisation of shared equity receivables

Finance income
Revenue 1s recognised as interest accrues, using the effective interest rate method, being the rate used to discount the

estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument

Cost of sales
Costs directly attributable to the unit sales are included within cost of sales This includes the cost of bringing the inventory

into use and regional markeung costs that are directly atirnibutable to sales, including show flat running costs and estate agent
referral fees

The gain or loss ansing on the sale of part-exchange properties are nat induded in revenue and are recorded as a reduction to
cost of sales as they are seen as a sales incentive.

Buld-related rebates are recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.

From 1 September 2016, the Group has refined its estimate of unit cost when units are sold and the cost 1s relegsed into the
Consuhdated Statermnent of Comprehensive Income, Cost of sales 1s now recogrised on 3 unit-by-unit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the develogment. The impact of the change in estimate on gross profit and inventory for the year
ended 31 August 2017 1s an increase of £4 1m (0 8% of cost of sales) being a 0 6% increase to gross margn

Exceptionat items
Exceptional items are defined as items of tncome or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material, non-recurring

and unusual in nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure. Exclusion of these balances allows review of
the underlying trading positicn of the Group These are detailed further in note 6.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantiaily all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakeholder retirement benefit scheme,

A reurement benefit scheme is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obligations for contributions to benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the years duning which services are
rendered by employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tox
Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the

Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end

Deferred tax
Deferred tax i1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilittes in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxabie profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised Such assets and habiities are not recognised if the
ternporary difference arises from the initial recognitton of goodwill or from the inial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilites are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments 1n subsidianies, where the
Group 1s unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probabie that the temporary difference wili not

reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset tc be recovered in the

foreseeable future

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the hability 1s settled or the asset
15 realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the year end Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other
comarehensive iIncome, in which case the deferred tax s also dealt wath in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets aganst
current tax habilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends

to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

Tangible and intangible assets

124

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recogrised impairment loss

Depreciation 1s recognised so as to write off the cost of assels less their residual value over therr useful ives, using the
straight-line method, on the following bases.

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3-10 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amaunt of the asset and s recogrised in income on the transfer of the risks and rewards of awnership

The Group has no class of tangible fixed asset that has been revalued. On transition to IFRS the net book values recorded at
1 September 2012 have been applied and these are based on historic cost or fair value recognised at the date of acquisition

intangible assets - brand
Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost Brands have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated

amortisation. Amgrtisation is calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the cost over their useful lives, estimated at
20 years.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued
Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure
Costs associated with maintaning computer software programmes are recogrised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products contrelied by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when all the following criteria are met

= Itis technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use
+  Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it
* There 5 an ability to use or sell the software product
+ [t can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits
» Adequate techmical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the software product are available
+ The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be relably measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of retevant overheads

Other development expenditure that does not meet these critera 1s recogrised as an expense as incurred Development
tosts previously recogrised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent year

Computer saftware development costs recognised as assets are amortused over their estimated useful ives, which do not
exceed tenyears

Development expenchiure relating to software has been capitalised and 1s detailed in note 14 ta the financal statements

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts ¢f its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there 15 any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated to determine the extent of the impairment lass (if any}) Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU

to which the asset betongs

Recoverable amount i1s the higher of: (i) fair value less costs to sell, and (1} value in use In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) s estmated to be less than s carrying armount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss 15 recognised immediatety in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset I1s carried at a revalued amount, in which case the imparment (055 1s treated as a revaluaton decrease (0 the
extent that the revaluation dalance is greater than the imparment loss

Joint ventures
The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with other parties which represent jaint verttures These take the form

of agreement to share control over these entities Jomnt ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either joint operations (If the Group has rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to an arrangement) or joint ventures (f the Group has rights only to the net assets of an
arrangement). When making this assessment, the Group considers the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any
separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and crcumstances

Inventories
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct

labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition
The cost of sites in the course of construction and fimished stock comprises the cost of land purchases, which are accounted
for from the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtains the effective control of the site, buillding costs and attnbutable
canstruction overheads Net reahsable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of campleticn and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selhing and distribution, compiletion and disposal

Part-exchange properties are stated at fair value, established by independent surveyors, less a provision for costs to sell

Land inventories and the asscciated Jand payabies are recagnised in the Consalidated Statement of Finangial Position from
the date of unconditional exchange of contracts Where, through deferred purchase credit terms, cost differs from the nominal
amount which wifl be paid in setthng the deferred purchase terms hability, the initial cost of the land 15 discounted to fair value
The land payable 1s then increased to settlement value over the period of financing, with the finanang element being charged
to the Conschdated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a finance cost
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting policies continued

Options purchased in respect of land are capitabsed initially at the cost of the option. Regular reviews are completed for
impairment In the value of these options and provisions made accordingly to reflect loss of value. The impairment reviews
consider the period elapsed since the date of purchase of the option given that the option contract has not been exercised at

the review date. Furthermore, the impairment reviews consider the reraining hfe of the option, taking into account any concerns
over whether the remaining time will allow successful exercise of the option The carrying cost of the option at the date of exercise
is Included within the cost of land purchased as a result of the option exerdcise.

Expenditure on land without the benefit of detalled planning consent, either through purchase of freehold land of non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to detailed planrung consent, are capitahsed initizlly at cost. Regular reviews

are completed for impairment in the value of these investments, and provision made ta reflect any irrecoveragle element. The
imparrment reviews consider the existing value of the land and assess the Iikelhood of achieving detailed planning consent and
the value thereof

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,

net of cutstanding bank overdrafts

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogrised in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the

Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset I1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financal asset within the nmeframe
established by the market concerned They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified into the following speafied categories financal assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ {FVTPL).
‘held-to-matunty’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’' (AFS') financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’ The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the tirme of inital recognition The Group held ne financial
assets classified as held-to-matunity or AFS during the reporting periods presented herein

The effecuve interest method s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating Interestincorme
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or recewved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, cr, where appropnate, a shorter period, ta the net carrying amount
on imtial recogrition,

Income IS recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FYTPL

Classes of financial asset

Financiol assets ot FVThL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financal asset is either held for trading or 1s designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading ift

= It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term

« Oninitial recogninion it is a part of a portfolio of Identified financial Instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking

+ Itis a denvative that s not designated and effective as a hegging instrument

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if

« Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition incensistency that would
otherwise arise

= The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial labilities or both, which 1s managed and its
performance 1s evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk managerment or
investment strategy and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis

= It forms part of 3 contract containing one or more embedded derwvatives and IAS 39 ‘Finanicial Instruments:
Recogmition ond Measurement’ permits the entire combined contract (asset or hability) to be designated as at FVTPL
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1. significant accounting policies continuec
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or {osses arising on re-measuremnent recognised in profit or

loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profic or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
1s Included in the other operating income hne item in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income Farr value s

determined in the manner described in note 30.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments te reduce exposure to interest rate movements The Group does not 1ssue
or hold derwvative financial instruments for speculative purposes

Shared equity receivables
Shared equity interests arise from sales incentive schemes under which the Group acquires a contractual entitlement to recewve

a proportion of the proceeds of sale of an apartment These interests are normally protected by a legal charge over the relevant
apartment and/or a restriction on title

The value of the shared equity recewvables changes in response to an underlying vanable and therefore 1s accounted for as a
dervative The shared equity receivables are initially recogrused at fair value, being the estimated future amount recevable by
the Group, discounted to present value The faur value of future anticpated cash receipts takes into account the Directors’ view
of future house price movernents and the expected timing of receipts The Directors rewsit the future antiipated cash receipts
from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the anticpated future receipt and the imuial far value s
credited to finance income/expense

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active
market are classified as foans and recevables’. Loans and recevables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment Interest income 1s recognised by applying the effecuve interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest wouid be immateral

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financiat babilities or as equity In accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its habiities.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised as the proceeds recetved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Financial liabilities
Financial habdities are classified as ‘other finanaal labdities’

Other financial liabilities
Cther finanaial labilities, including borrowings, are Initially measured at fair value, net of transacton costs

Other financial liabihties are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a finanaal labrlity and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial iability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net Carrying amount on initial recognition

Land-related promissory notes
Land-related promissory notes are treated as financial labilities and are classified as lang creditors ar borrowings depending on

the substance of the contractual arrangements

Share-based payment schemes
The cost of equity-settied transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are

granted and 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting period Invaluing equity-settled transactions, no account s taken of
any non-market-based vesting condiions and no expense Is recognised for awards that do not ulumately vest as a resuit of a
failure to satisfy a non-market-based vesting condibon

The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at fair value Fair value is estimated iniially at the grant date and at each
reporting period enc thereafter untl the awards are settied Market-based conditions are taken nto account when determining

fair value.

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in note 31
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2. Outlook far adoption of future standards (new and amended)
There have not been any new standards and amengments adopted for the first tme for the financial year ending 31 August 2017

At the date of approval of the financial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied by
the Group in the financial statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)
= |IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’was 1ssued in final form incorporating the impairment, classification and measurement requirements
inJuly 2014 and 15 scheduled to replace |AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogrntion and Megosurernent” for the Group from
1 September 2018. The Group continues to assess the impact and application of the new standard. However, we do not currently
expect the standard to have a material impact on aur reported results and financial position.
* IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’was issued in May 2014 and amended in September 2015. This standard sets out
requirements for revenue recognition from contracts with customers under a five-step model to apportion revenue against
performance obligatons within a contract The Group continues to assess the impact of the standard and has identified two key
areas, part-exchange properties and FRI revenue, where the standard will impact the timing of recognition and presentation
of balances in the financial statements
Part-exchange properties - Currently under IAS 18 "Revenue’the income and costs associated with part-exchange properties
are recognised on a net basis within cost of sales. Under IFRS 15 the requirement will be (o present the non-cash consideration
received from a customer within revenue measured at far value. The subsequent sale of the property received from the
customer in part-exchange will be accounted for as a separate contract, with the revenue and costs being recognised in other
operating iIncome and expenditure The net impact on the Group for FY17 If IFRS 15 was adopted would be a decrease to cost of
sales of £1.0m and net decrease in cther income of £1.0m.
FRt revenue - Under the Group’s current accounting policy, revenue arising from the sale of FRI is recognised only to the extent
that the underlying leasehold interest in the reurement apartment has been contractually sotd Under the new IFRS 15 standard,
revenue would hkely be recognised at the poaint of sale to the third party This would accelerate the recogrition of revenue and
eliminate the deferred income balance currently held on the balance sheet.
The fullimpact of this change on revenue and margins 1s sull being assessed by the Group
The above items will have no impact on the Group’s cash flows This standard will be applicable to the Group from 1 September
2018
IFRS 16 Legses’was published in January 2016 and is expected to be effective for the Group from 1 Septamber 2019 This standard
15 a replacement of the current leases standard IAS 17 ‘Leases’and brings significant changes to the accounting of leases by
lessees IFRS 16 requires the recognition of a right-of-use’ asset and a corresponding lease hability on the Balance Sheet of the
lessee In the Income Statement, the existing operating lease changes, the majority of which1s currently recognised within
cperatng profit, will be replaced by a depreciation charge against the right-of-use’ asset Additionally there will be an interest cost
in relation to the lease liability which will be recognised within finance costs The JASB has included an optional exemption, for
lessees, for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be apphed by lessees. The
impact this standard will have on the Group continues to be assessed However, we do not currenty expect the standard to have
a material impact on our reported results and financial position.
= Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' was 1ssued in January 2016 and will be applicable to the Group from 1 September
2017 The Amendment requires enhanced disclosures of changes in finanaing liabiities
Amendments to IFRS 11 Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations’
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment’ and IAS 38 Tntong:ble Assets’
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financal Staterments’,
Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Equity Method in Separate Finonciol Staterments’
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 ‘Sale of Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 1ts Associate of joint Venture'
Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payments’
Annual improvements ta IFRS 2012 - 2014 Gycle’

The potential impact of the above standards and interpretations is still being assessed by the Group

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources
The estimates and associated assumpuions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptrons are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed
in the period in which the estimate is revtsed If the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods If the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

No cnitical jJudgments have been made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies that have a matenial effect on the
amounts recognised In the financial statements
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions the Group makes about the future, and aother major sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resutuing in a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and labiltties at the year end and within the next financial year

Foir value of shared equity receivables
Shared equ:ty recevables are recognised at the fawr value of future anticipated cash receipts that takes into account the
Directors' view of an appropriate discount rate, a new build premium, future house price movements and the expected

uming of receipts.

Shared equity recevables are reviewed at each reporting date using a variety of estmates that anticipate future cash flows
from the assets Further information regarding the assumptions and sensitivity effects of a reasonable possible change can

be seen within note 30

Cost capitalisation of averheads

Inventory inctudes a proportion of design, procurement, construction, health & safety, commercal and planning costs
Costs associated with these functions are reviewed by management to attnbute those costs relaung directly to the cost
of the developments to Inventory and those that relate to general business overheads to expenses The assumptions
used are reviewed annually by the function heads before being proposed to the Risk and Audit Committee

Cost capitalisation involves estimates of the proportion of costs that are directly atiributable to sites The key source of
esumation uncertainty i this area relates to the percentage of time spent by our regions on dwectly attributable site
activities The percentage of their time which is capitalised ranges between 70-93% for the various functions Overhead
costs capitalised at 31 August 2017 amount to £23 2m (2016. £25 7mi).

Change of estimate

From 1 September 2016, the Group refined its estimate of unit cost when urits are sold and the cost 15 released to the
Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive tincome Cost of sales 1s now recogrised on a unit-by-unit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the deveicpment The impact of the change in esumate on gross profit and inventory for the year
ended 31 August 2017 1s an increase of £4.1m (0.8% of cost of sales).

4. Revenue

Connnulng operations

Year ended 31 August
2017 2016
£m Erm
Unit sales 631.8 608.2
FRI revenue 291 277
660.9 635.9

All unit sales revenue arose from the sale of properties and 1s attributable to continuing operations All revenue was generated
within the UK No individual customer 1s sigmficant to the Group’s revenue in any period All revenue 15 explained within note 1

Proceeds received on the disposal of part-exchange properties, which are not included in revenue, were £11 6m (2016 £nil)
These are recognised on a net basis within cost of sales on the basis that they are iIncidental to the main reveniue-generating
actwities of the Group The net profit on dispesal of these properties was £01m (2016 Enil)

5. Segmental analysis
IFRS B ‘Operating Segments’ establishes standards for reporung infarmation about operating segments and related disclosures,

products and services, geographic areas and major customers Operating segments are compaonents of an enterprise about
which separate financal information s available that s evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker in deciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

The Group conducis its activities through a single operating segment. Consequently, no detalled segment.nformation has
been presented

None of the Group's customers represented more than 10% of the Group's revenue generated from the bulding of reurement
apartments for any reporting period presented heremn
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6. Profit before tax
Profit before tax has been arrived at after chargingAcreditng):

Conunuing operatons
Year ended 31 August

017 2016
Nates £m Em
Amortisation of intangibles 14 24 25
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 1.1
Operating lease rental expense 27
Land and buildings 14 0.9
Plant and machinery 25 23
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 4571 436.0
Staff costs 7 92.6 79.0
Change in fair value of derivatives - 0.3
Share-based payments charge to profit and loss 31 09 1.5
Movement in inventory provision (including part-exchange properties) 1.2 (0.3)

Reconciliation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax

The following tables present a reconciliation between the statutory profit measures disclosed on the Consolidated Staternent

of Comprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appraise performance

Exceptional items are items which, due to their one-off, non-trading and non-recurring nature, have been separately classified

by the Directors in arder to draw them to the attention of the reader

Adjusted cost items are iterns which are material and are presented separately within the Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of these iterns provides helpful

information about the Group's underlying business performance Amortisation of brand has been adjusted in order to reconcile

the underlying operating profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors do not believe these costs reflect the

underlying tracing of the business

Exceptiona"r' Exceptional Adjusted cost
Administrative Amarnsation
Statutory costs of brand underlying
Year ended 31 August 2017 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 94.2 - 2.0 96.2
Finance income 9 1.6 - - 1.6
Finance expense 10 3.7) - - {(3.7)
Profit before tax 921 - 20 94.1
income tax expense (17.7) - {0.4) (18.1)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total
comprehensive income 74.4 - 1.6 76.0
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share) 13.8 - 0.4 14.2
Diluted (p per share) 13.8 - 0.4 14.2
Exceptional Adjusted cost
Administrative Amortisation
Statutory asts ofbrand Underlying
Year ended 31 August 2016 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 951 10.0 2.1 107.2
Finance income 9 27 - - 27
Finance expense 10 (4.9) - - (4.9}
Profit before tax 92.9 10.0 21 105.0
Incomne tax expense (19.4) (0.7) (0.4) (20.5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations and total
comprehensive income 73.5 9.3 1.7 84.5
Earnings per share
Basic {p per share} 139 1.8 04 16.1
Diluted (p per share) 13.9 1.8 04 16.1

The exceptional administrative costs 1n 2016 primarily relate to the transaction fees and other costs of ksting (£8 5Sm) Other costs
recognised within exceptionals relate to redundancy and restructuring costs {£0 9m), Managerment Incentive Plan payments

(£0.4m) and refinancing and other costs (£0.2m}.
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6. Profit before tax continued

Auditor’s remuneration
Lantinuing operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016

£m £m

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor
Annual audit 0.2 0.2
Transaction reiated audit and advisory services - 0.7
0.2 0.9

There were no other non-audit fees payable to the Group's auditor in the year.
Audit fees 1n relation to joint ventures audited by the Group’s auditor were £3,000 (2016. £3,000)

7. Staff costs
Staff costs for the year include Directors’ emotuments, which are detailed below

Conunuing operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016

£m £m

Wages and salaries 80.4 67.4
Social security costs 8.0 71
Other pension costs 2.6 2.1
Share-based payments 0.9 1.5
Termination payments 0.7 09
92.6 79.0

The average number of persons, induding Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows

Continung operations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016

Number Number

Office management and staff 902 900
House managers 1,024 827
Construction staff 219 241
2,145 1,568

staff costs include an average of 823 persans employed during the year from YLMS (2016 679), a 50% owned subsidiary held
by the Group

AL 31 August 2017 the Group employed 2,264 people (2016 2,094).

Directors’ emoluments
Amounts recognised in respect of Directors’ emoluments

Continuwng operatians
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016

£m £m

Wages and salaries 1.7 1.5
Sacial security costs 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments 0.3 0.6
Other pension costs’ 0.2 0.2
2.4 2.5

1 Includes salary supplementsin keu of pension

The emoiuments of the highest paid Director was £1 Om (2016 £0 9m), including pension contributions of nil (2016 nul),
The number of Directors in the Company pension plan was two (2016 two)
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8. Other operating income

Contirung aparations
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016
£&m £m
Net rental income 0.3 0.6
Cther income 7.7 5.9
Non-core business revenue 0.9 21
Land sales profit / (loss) - {0.1)
8.9 85
Other income arises on the serwices prowded by Group subsidiaries to manage certain developments Non-core business
revenue relates to other iIncome such as customer extras
9. Finance income
Continung aperacans
Year ended 31 August
2097 2016
£m £m
Change in fair value of shared equity receivables 15 25
Interest income received a1 0.2
1.6 27
10. Finance expense
Conunuing operations
Year ended 31 August
2017 2016
Em £m
Loans and overdraft fees 31 36
Promissory note interest and fees 0.1 0.5
Amortisation of refinancng 1ssue costs 0.5 0.5
Fair value movement on interest rate cap - 0.3
3.7 49
11. Tax
2017 016
Notes £&m Em
Corporation tax charges
Current year 17.7 186
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0.3) (0.4)
Deferred tax charges
Current year 20 0.3 1.2
17.7 19.4
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11. Tax continued
The tax charge for each year can be recanciled to the profit per the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows

2017 2016

Em £m

Profit before tax on continuing operations 92.1 92.9
Tax charge at the UK corporatian tax rate of 19.58% (2016: 20.00%) 18.0 18.6

Tax effect of

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 01 15
income not taxable in determining taxable profit 0.1) on
Adjustments in respect of previous perods (0.3) (0 4)
Share options timing difference 0.2 -
Other reconciling items {0.2) 02)
177 19.4

Tax charge for the year

Reductons in the rate of corporation tax to 19% and 18% from 1 April 2017 and 1 Apnl 2020 were substantially enacted

on 18 November 2015 A further reduction in the corporation tax main rate frorm 1 Aprit 2020 to 17% was fully enacted on

15 September 2016 The deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 August 2017 have been calculated based on the appropriate
rate at which the asset/habiity will unwind

12. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit for the financial period attributabte to shareholders of the Company dnided

by the weighted average number of shares inissue dunng the period. The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the full year ended 31 August 2017 was 537 3m for the basic and 5376m for the diluted calculations, giving a statutary
earnings per share for the year ended 31 August 2017 of 13 8p for basic and 13 8p for diluted

2017 2016
Profit attributable to shareholders (Em) 74.2 731
Weighted average no. of shares (rm) 5373 525.6
13.3 139

Basic earnings per share (p)

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted to assume the conversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares At 31 August 2017, the Company had two categories of potentially dilutive ordinary shares
3 9m il cost share options under the LTIP and 4.1m 167.4p share options under the Sharesave plan.

A calculation 1s done ta determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the aggregate of
the exercise price of each share option and the fair value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which 1s the unamortised
share-based payments charge The difference between the number of shares that could have been acguired at fair value and the
total number of options is used in the diluted earrings per share calculation

2017 2016
Profit used to determine diluted EPS (£m) 74.2 731
Weighted average number of shares (m) 537.3 525.6
Adjustments for
Share options - LTIP {rn} 0.3 0.3
Shares used to determine diluted EPS (m} 537.6 525.3
Diluted earnings per share (p) 13.8 13.9
13. Goodwill
£m
Cost
At 1 September 2015 and 31 August 2016 anag 2017 41.7
Carrying amount
At 1 September 2015 and 31 August 2016 and 2017 1.7

No impairment losses have been recognised in any of the reporting periods presented herem.

Goodwill arose as a result of an acguisition 1 2009 of the assets and habilities of Monarch Realisations 1 plc (in hquidation)
As the goodwill relates to the business as & whole, it has not been alfocated to a specific CGU For key assumptions in determining
recoverable amounts i goodwillimpairment testing, refer to note 16
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14. Intangible assets

Brand Software Total
Em Em Em
Cast
At 1 September 2015 41.4 39 45.3
Additions - 0.4 0.4
At 31 August 2016 41.4 43 45.7
Additions - 0.4 0.4
At 31 August 2017 1.4 4.7 461
Amortisation
At 1 September 2015 {13.2) 0.4} {13.6)
Charge for the year (2.1) ((eX)] {2.5)
At 31 August 2016 {15.3) {0.8) (16.1)
Charge for the year (2.0) {0.4) {2.4)
At 31 August 2017 (17.3) {(1.2) {18.5)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 261 35 29.6
241 3.5 276

At 31 August 2017

Brand assets represent the McCarthy & Stone brand name purchased as part of the business combination in 2009
Brand assets have 11 years and 7 months of useful life remaining.

All amortisation charged is reccgnised in administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

15. Propéerty, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment Total
£m Em
Cost
At 1 September 2015 6.0 6.0
Additions 1.5 1.5
Disposalz {0.3) 03
At 31 August 2016 7.2 7.2
Addiuons 07 a7
Disposals {0.1) (0.1)
At 31 August 2017 78 7.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 September 2015 (3.4) (3.4)
Charge for the year 11 an
Eliminated on disposals 0.2 0.2
At 31 August 2016 (4.3) (4.3)
Charge for the year n (1.1
Eliminated on disposals - -
At 31 August 2017 (5.4) {5.4)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 29 29
24 2.4

At 31 August 2017
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16. Impairment testing

During the periads reported in the financial statements, no iImpairments have been recogrused against the Group's assets
For each reported penod, managernent have performed an impairment review of goodwill, being an indefinitely lived asset.
The Group only has one CGU, being the McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited's business, which was acquired in 2009

The key assurnptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to earmings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) used as a proxy of free cash flows beyond the budgeted
years as well as the leve! of capital expenditure required to maintam the existing business inta the future These assumpbions

are reviewed and revised annually in light of current econemic conditions and the future outiook for the business Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the business; rates used for 2017 are 70% (2016: 8 4%).

The forecast period employed in the iImpairment assessment was three years followed by an assessment of cash flows and
growth into perpetuty The growth rates used are based on management's assessment of the cash flow forecasts over the
medium term Due to the headroom within the calculation no further growth has been assumed within the perpetuity calculation
These are based an conservative estimates of the Group's ability to participate in the growth expected in the industry Changesn
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The value of goodwill recognised in the financial statements has been compared to the derwved value in use with no impairment
charges arising. The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions which are material to the impairment
assessment including the discount rate, the cash flow projections and the terrminal growth rate and concluded no matenal
sensthivity exists in these calculations

No impairment charges were recorded on items of property, plant and equipment throughout the period covered by these
financial statements

17. Investment in joint ventures
The Group has a 50% ownership interest In Kindle Housing Limited, which manages affordable housing Kindle Housing Lirmited

has 100% ownership interest of ardinary shares in each of Kindle Housing (Worthing) Limited, Kindle Housing (Christchurchy)
Limited and Kindle Housing (Exeter) Limited, which rent affordable housing to local key worker employees As a result the Group
also has a 50% ownership interest in these companies, all of which are registered in England and Wales.

The Group accounts for its interests in these companies using the equity method of accounting

The share of the assets, habiiues, ncome and expenses of the jointly controlled entities 1s not materiai

18. Inventories

2017 2016

£m £m

Land held for development 148.6 236.5
Sites in the course of construction 341.2 2010
Finfshed stock 238.7 2483
Part-exchange properties 319 -
760.4 685.8

Days in inventory amounted to 582 days in 2017 (2016 574 days)

Inventory days are calculated by taking year end inventory (excluding part-exchange properties) divided by cost of inventories
recogrised as an expense,

19. Trade and other receivables

2017 2016
£€m £m

Trade and other receivables due in less than one year
Trade receivables 21 1.5
Other debtors and prepayments 74 6.0
9.5 75
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19, Trade and other receivables continued

17 20%6
£Em Em

Trade and other receivables due in greater than one year
Secured mortgages 3.2 34
Shared equity receivables 28.9 293
321 327

Trade recewables and secured mortgages disclosed above are dassified as loans and recewvables and are measured at
amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other recevables and non-current recervables approximates
their fair value

20, Deferred tax
The following are the majar deferred tax habilittes recogrised by the Group

Accelerated tax  Cthec ternparary Unreheved

depreciaton differences tax losses Total

£m £m Em £m
At 1 September 2015 - (0.3) - (0.3)
Income statement charge - 1.2) - 12)
At 31 August 2016 - (1.5) - (1.5)
lncome statement charge - (0.3) - (0.3)
At 31 August 2017 - (1.8) - (1.8)

Deferred tax assets are represented by positive values and deferred tax liabilities are represented by negative values in
the table above

Deferred tax assets of £0 Tm n relation to capital losses carned forward were not recognised as there 1s uncertainty as
to whether these losses could be utilised by the Graup prior to expiry {2016 £0 1m). These losses have no expiry date.

21. Trade and other payables 2017 206
Em £m

Trade payables 227 26.8
Other taxes and social security costs 19 19
Accrued expenses 42,6 51.4
18.2 18.6

Other creditors and deferred income

85.4 98.7

Trade payables and accrued expenses principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs
The average credit period taken for trade purchases was 20 days during 2017 (2016 21 days} No material interest costs have
been incurred in relation to such payables The Group policy is to ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit
terms and t¢ avoid incurring penalties and/or interest on late payments Other creditors include sales taxes, property taxes,
social security and employment taxes due to local tax authorities The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade

payables approximates their fair value.

No trade payables are purchased on extended payment terms

22. Land payables 2017 2015
£Em £m
Land payables 67.4 49.3

Land payables reiate to payment due in respect of land which has been purchased under an unconditional contract.
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23, Borrowings

. 2017 2016

Short-term bhorrowings £m £m
Promissory notes - 1.3
- 2017 2016

Long-term borrowings £m £m
Loans 10.0 55.0
Unamortised issue costs (2.0} (2.5)
8.0 52.5

Qutstanding at 31 August

27 2018

Marcurity Em £m

Revolving Credit Facility May 2021 10.0 55.0

The Group has in place a £200m revolving credit faclity (RCF) imitially with a five-year term, maturing December 2019 in May 2016,
an amendment was made to the RCF agreement to improve the commercaal terms and extend the facility’s maturity date from

19 December 2019 to 23 May 2021

The nominal interest rate of the £200m RCFI1s 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1 8% (2016: 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1 6%) depending on
the length of the drawdown As at 31 August 2017, £10m {2016° £55m) was drawn. The RCF 1s secured by a floating charge aver
the assets of McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited, McCarthy & Stone (Developrnents) Limited,

McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited and McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited.

24, Net cash 2017 2016
Em £m
Loans 8.0 63.7
Add back unamortised 1ssue costs 2.0 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents (40.7) (119.0)
Net cash (30.7) {52.8)
Add back land-related promissory notes - {11.3)
Net cash excluding land-related promissory notes (30.7) ©4.1)

Net cash 1s a non-GAAP measure and Is calculated as cash and cash equivelents less long-term and short-term borrowings

(exctuding unamortised debtissue costs and land-related promissory notes)

25, Share capital

The Cornpany has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income There s no imit te authornised share capital

2017 2016

Allotted and issued ordinary shares £000 £1000
8p each fully paid. 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2016; 537,314,069) 42,986 42,985
) 2017 08

Allotment of shares during the year Number 000 Number 000
At 1 September 537,314 1,905,550
Issuance of new shares in relation to the Management Incentive Plan - 43,707
Consolidation of share capital - {1,461,943)
Issuance of new shares in relation to pnmary proceeds from the IPO - 50,000
Issuance to satisfy early exercises under Sharesave plan 15 -
At 31 August 537,329 537,314

Issuance of new shares in relation to Sharesave ("SAYE') plan

During the year 15,365 ordinary shares were tssued to satisfy the early exercse of options under our December 2015 SAYE plan
by seven "good leaver” ermployees The shares were all 1Issued at 167 4p each, being the exercise price of the SAYE options granted

on 10 December 2015
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25. Share capital continued

Dividends on equity shares

The nterim dwmidend of 1 8p (2016 1.0p)was approved by the Board on 4 Aprd 2017 and paid on 9 June 2017 to all ordmary
shareholders an the register of members at the close of business on Friday 28 April 2017 The ex-dwidend date was 27 April 2017
The final dividend proposed by the Board 15 3 6p (2016. 3 5p) per share resulting in a total ordinary dwvidend for the year of 5 4p
(2016 4.5p). It will be paid on 1 February 2018 to those shareholders who are on the register at 5 January 2018 subject to approva!
at the Company's Annual General Meeting The ex-dividend date 1s 4 January 2018 These financial statements do not reflect the

final dividend payment.

26. Share premium reserve 2017 2016
£m £m
Share premium 1016 100.8

The share premium reserve represents the consideration that has been receved in excess of the nominal value of shares m 1ssue

Movements In share premium are presented within the Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

27. Operating lease arrangements 2607 2016
£m Em
Minimum lease payments under aperating leases recognised as an expense during the year 3.9 3.2

At year end the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases, which fall due as follows: 2017 2016

Em £m
Within one year 43 39
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6.9 8.7
After five years 11 2.8
Outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 12.3 15.4

Operaung lease payments typically represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties and cars Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to ieased property agreements

28. Notes to the cash flow statement 2017 2016
Notes £Em Em
Profit for the financial year 74.4 735
Adjustments for
Income tax expense n 17.7 19.4
Amortisation of intangibles 14 2.4 25
Share option charge 3 0.9 1.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 1.1
tnterest expense 10 3.7 45
Interest income 9 (1.6) {2.7)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 98.6 100.2
Decrease in trade and other receivables 0.1 2.2
{Increase)in inventortes (85.9) (99.5)
Increase intrade and cther payables 5.4 375
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 18.2 40.4
Interest received 01 0.2
Interest paid (2.9) 4.
Income taxes paid {(19.2) (18 2)
Cash {used) / generated by operations (3.8) 18.3
Net cash (outflow) 7 inflow from eperating activities {3.8) 18.3

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 40.7 119.0
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28. Notes to the cash flow statement continued
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with an ariginal maturity of three
months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of cash and cash equwvalents approximates fair value

The mcrease in inventories comprises movements in inventories (including part-exchange properues), offset by the repayment
of promissory notes

The increase In trade and other payables includes the movement in land payables

29. Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a stakeholder defined contribution retirement benefit scheme which 1s open to all employees

Other than amounts that are deducted from employees' remuneration and accrued pending payment to the benefit scheme,
no further obhgations fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties entirely

separate from the Group.

The benefit scheme charge for the year represents contributions payable to the benefit scherne and amounted to £2 6m for
the year ended 31 August 2017 (2016 £2 Tm). Unpaid contributions amounted to £0 3m as at 31 August 2017 (2016 £0 2m)

30. Financial risk management
The Group's financal iInstruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdrafts, trade recevables, other financial assets and trade

and other payables

Categories of financial instruments 2017 2016
£&m Em

Financial assets
Financiaf assets at fair value through profit or loss

Shared equity receivables 289 29.3
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 40.7 119.0
Trade and other receivables 27 22
72.3 150.5
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Trade and other payables 77.2 920
Land payables 67.4 49.3
Loans 8.0 52.5
Land-related promissory notes - 1.3
152.6 2051

Capital risk management
The Group manages Its capital (being debt, cash and cash eguivalents and eguity) to ensure entities withmn the Group have a
strong capital base in order to continue as going concerns, to mamntan irwvestor and creditor confidence and to provide a basis

for the future developrment of the business while maximising the return to stakeholders

The revolving credit facility imposes financal covenants, which 1s normai for such agreements, all of which the Group 1s cormpliant
with, The Group manages a robust internal forecasung and review process to ensure it operates within these capital
requirements,

The Group daes not routinely make additional 1ssues of capital, other than far the purpose of raising finance for the management
of the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designed to grow value in the future

Share-based payment schemes allow seniar employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of the Group in order to
ensure the senior employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the ams of all shareholders

Financial risk management

The Group's finance function is responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury It co-ordinates access to financial markets
and monitors and manages the finanaial nsks relating to the operations of the Group through internal reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude The risks reviewed include market risk (including currency risk, far value interest rate risk
and price rnisk), credit nisk, hquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk

The Board s responsible for managing these risks and the policies adepted are as set cut on the next pages
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30. Financial risk management continued

Housing market risk management
The Group's activities expose It primarnly to macroeconomic risks such as deflaucn and the cyclical nature of UK property prices

A detericration in the economic outlook could have a significant impact on the Group’s financial performance and the Group has
the foflowing procedures which mitigate its market-related operational risk:

* The Group closely monitors industry indicators and assesses the potential impact of different economic scenarios

e Decasions to allocate new capital to land and build are managed centrally through the Group Investment Commuttee,
membership of which includes the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Operating Officer and the
Land & Planning Director

= The Group aims to maintain a national and product spread of developrnents to ensure that 1t 1s nat reliant on one particular

location, development or product
* The Group undertakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at regional and Group level

The value of the Group’s house price Iinked financial assets is sensitive to UK house prices since the amount repayable is
dependent upan the market price of the property to which the asset s linked At 31 August 2017 f UK house prices were 5%
lower for a one-year period and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's house price linked financial assets would
decrease in valug, excluding the effects of tax, by £11m (2016' £1 1m) with a corresponding reduction in both the result for the

year and equity

Credit risk management
Credi risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractua! cbligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.

The Group has alow exposure to credit risk due to the nature and legal frarnework of the UK housing industry As stated in the
Group's accounting policy for revenue recognition, a sale 1s only recognised upon legal completion and this is accompanied by
full cash receiptin vircually all cases

In certain circumstances the Group offers sales incentives resulting in a long-term debt being recognised under which the Group
will receive a proportion of the resale proceeds of a property. The Group's equity share 1s protected by a registered entry on the
title and usually represents the first interest in the property. A reduction in property values leads to an increase in the credit risk
of the Group In respect of such sales

The credit risk retaung 10 shared equity recevables i1s deemed immateniat as the value 1s recovered though subsequent disposal
of the related asset As a result, management censider the credit quality of these recewvables to be good in respect of the amounts
outstanding, resuiting in fow credit risk. Exposure to house price sensitivity 15 built into the fair value calculation

Trade recevables consist of a large number of customers, spread across different regrons Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the finangial condition of trade recevables

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
charactenstics The Group defines counterpart:es as having similar characrenistics if they are related entities, There is no material
concentratiort of credit nsk in respect of one individual customer

The carrying amount recorded for financial assets in the financial statements 1s net of impairment losses and represents the
Group's maximum exposure to credit sk No guarantees have been givert in respect to third parties In addition, for contracted
rental agreements deposits or advances may be held to mitigate risk The Group 2lsa holds legal recourse and can exercise its
right to recover rental equipment from non-performing customers

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity rnisk 15 the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty iIn meeting obligations associated with financial habihties The
Group's strategy In relation to managing iquidity risk is to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash flow liguid funds to meet
all its potential lizbihtes as they fall due The Group produces cash flow forecasts to monitor the expected requirements of the
Group against the available facilities. The principal risks with these cash flows relate to achieving the level of sales volumes and

prices in ne with current forecast.
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30. Financiat risk management continued
The maturity of the financial liabilities of the Group at 31 August 2016 and 2017 are as follows

2016
carrying Contractual
value cash flows Within 1 year 2=5years S+years
£m £m Em £m £m
Loans 55.0 64.7 20 62.7 -
Other financial liabilities carrying interest 1.3 1.4 1.4 - -
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 141.3 141.3 141.3 - -
Total 2076 217.4 154,7 62.7 -
2017
Carrying Contractual
value cazh flows Within 1 year 2-5years 5+ yoars
£m Em £m £m £m
Loans 10.0 15.2 14 13.8 -
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 144.6 144.6 144.6 - -
Total 154.6 159.8 146.C 13.8 -

Other financial habilities carrying interest are prormissary notes, which attract avalabihity and discount fees Financral labilities
carrying no interest are trade and other payables and land payables The tmmg and amount of future cash flows given in the
table above 1s based on the year eng position.

Interest rate risk management
interest rate risk reflects the Group’s exposure to fluctuations to interest rates in the market The risk anses because the Group’s

RCF 15 subject to floating interest rates based on LIBOR

In the year ended 31 August 2017, If UK interest rates had been 0.5% higher or lower, a3 this 1s 3 reasonably possible change, and
all other variances were held canstant, the Group’s pre-tax profit would decrease/increase oy £0.5m (2016 £0 5my Calculations

have been based on borrowing values at each month end
Fair value of financial instruments
Valugtion techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost
The Directors consider that the carrymg amounts of financial assets and financial abilities recorded at amortised costin the

financial statements approximate therr fair values

Bank and other loans
Fair value 1s calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest flows,

Interest rate swaps
At each period end, the Directors appoirkt & valuer to perform an external valuation of the fair value of each interest rate swap or

cap outstanding.

Valuation of Levels 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and liabilities

* The fair values of financal assets and financial habilites with standard terms and conditions and traded on active hquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices {includes listed redeemable notes, bills of exchange,
debentures and perpetual notes)

e The farr values of other financal assets and finanaal labihities {(excluding denvative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments

s The fair values of dervative instruments are calculated using quoted prices Where such prices are not available, a discounted
cash flow analysis 1s performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derwatives, and option priang models for opuonal dervatives Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted
forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching matunities of the contracts Interest rate
swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estumated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves

derived from gquoted interest rates
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30. Financial risk management continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financial iInstruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value. The grouping into Levels 1 to 3 is based on the degree to which their fair value 1s observable:

* Level 1 far value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or hablities

s Level 2 far value measurements are those derwved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (1 e. as prices) or tncirectly {1 e derived from prices)

s Level 3 farr value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that Include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unabservable npurs)

The financial iInstrurnents held by the Group that are measured at fair value all relate to finanaial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL) using methods associated with Level 3 The sensitvities are not material on assets

held at fair value.

2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m &m £m £m
Financial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity recervabies - - 29.3 29.3
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 29.3 293
2017
Level1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
£m Em Em £m
Financial assets at FVTPL
Shared equity receivables - - 28.9 28.9
- 289 289

Tatal financial assets designated at FVTPL -

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 1in the year.

Financial assets comprise shared equity loans secured by way of a charge on the property and an interest rate cap

Financtal assets are recorded at fair value, being the estimated amount receivable by the Group, discounted to present day values
For shared equity receivables the fair value of future anticipated ¢ash receipts takes into account the Directors’ views of an

appropnate discount rate, 8 new build prermium, future house price movements and the expected tming of receipts These
assumptions cover a variety of different schemes and the range of assumptions used are stated below The assumptions are

reviewed at each period end

Assumptions 2017 2006
Discount rate 38to4.4% 471051%
5% 5%

New build premium
House price inflation
Timing of receipt

0to 5.75% 0to40%
Sto14yrs Stol2yrs

2017 2017
Increase Decrease

Sensitivity-effect on value of other financial assets (less)/more Sy Yem by Tem

2.3) 2.6
2.3 (2.1)
(0.4) 0.4

Discount rate
House price inflation
Timing of receipt

The far value of the shared equity receivable 1s based on the external available data The sensitivity-effect of a 1% change
is representative of our best estimate of a reasonably possible change.

The Directors review the anticipated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the
anticipated future receipt and the inital fair value is credited to finance income
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30. Financial risk management continued

A initial recogmition, the fair values of the assets are calculated using a discount rate appropriate to the class of assets that
reflects market conditions at the date of entering into the transaction. The Directors consider at the end of each reporting period
whether the initual market discount rate sufl reflects up to date market conditions If a revision is required, the fair values of the
assets are re-measured at the present value of the revised future cash flows using this revised disccunt rate The difference
between these values and the carrying values of the assets is recorded against the carrying value of the assets and recognised
directly in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive income

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 August 2016 and 2017

2016
Shared
equity Interest
receivables rate cap Total
£m £m £m
Qpening balance 28.0 0.3 28.3
Addinons 05 - - 0.5
Disposals 1.7) - {1.7)
Revaluation gains or (losses) recognised in the income statement 25 {0.3) 22
Closing balance 25.3 - 293
2017
Shared
equity interest
receivables rate cap Total
£m £m £m
Opening balance 293 - 29.3
Additions 0.8 - 0.8
Disposals (2.7} - (2.7)
Revaluation gains recognised in the income statement 1.5 - 15
Closing balance 289 - 289
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31. Share-based payments

Equity-settied share-based payment plans

The Group operates a number of share-based payment schemes as set out below

Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)

The Group's LTIP is open to key management at the discretion of the Board. Awards under the scheme are granted in the form

of nil-priced share options. LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP Options become exercisable, on the third anniversary of the
date of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicable performance conditions have been sausfied LTIP options

will remain exercisable for ten years after the date of the grant. Awards are to be settled by the issue of new shares or acquisition
of shares in the market The performance conditons for the 2016 and 2017 LTIP grants are earnings per share (EPS'), comparauve
tota! shareholder return (TSR’ and returrn on capital emplayed (ROCE"). The TSR performance condituion 1s a market-based
conditon In order to value the TSR performance conditions against the FTSE 250 and peer group, a Monte Carlo simulation

model s required which can simulate correlation between companies

LTiP Total
Date of grant 21 December 2016 25 Novemmber 2015
Options granted 1,933,352 1,930,524
Fair value at measurement date” (£) 1.32 212
Share price on date of grant (£} 1.56 2.32
Exercise price (£) - -
Vesting period 3years 3years
Expected dividend yield n/a n/a
Expected volatility 29.21% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.23% p.a. 0.8% p.a.
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
and Monte Carlo and Mante Carlo
Movements in the year:
Options at beginning of the year - 1,816,636 1,816,636
Granted during the year 1,933,352 - 1,933,352
Exercised during the year - - -
Lapsed during the year (57,143) (308,326) (365,469)
Expired in the year - - -
1.876,209 1,508,310 3,384,519

Options at the end of the year

Exercisable at end of the year

° This 15 the average lar value of the fair values for the three (ranches of the LTIP awards during 2017

The weighted average of the average price for the LTIP award is nil

Expected volatdity was determuned by calculating the average hustarical volatility over a penod comvrienisurate with the expected
liie of the award for the LTIP based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a constituent of post-iPO

Sharesove plon (‘SAYE’)

The SAYE plan 15 an all-employee savings-related share option plan Employees are invited 1o make regular monthly contributions
to a SAYE scheme operated by Link Asset Services On completion of the contract period {three or five years) employees are able
to purchase orginary shares in the Company based on the average ciosing middle market price over the three days prior

to the award, less 20% discount. There are no performance conditions
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31. Share-based payments continued

Werghted average
SAYE Total exerase price
Date of grant 10 Decernber 2015 10 December 2015
Options granted 2,912,247 1,197,514
Fair value at measurement date (£) 0.68 0.75
Share price on date of grant (£) 2.34 2.34
Exercise price (£) 1.674 1674
Vesting period 3years 5years
Expected dividend yield 26.20% 28.16%
Expected volatility 26.07% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.8% p.a. 1.2% p.a,
Valuation rmodel Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Movements in the year
Options at beginning of the year 2,653,028 1.161,675 3,814,703 1.674
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year (15,365) - (15,365) 1.674
Lapsed during the year (740,448) (234,829) (975,277) 1.674
Expired in the year - - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,897 215 926,846 2,824,061 1.674

Exercisable at end of the year

Expected volatility was determmed by calculaung the average historical volatility over a peniod commensurate with the expected
Ife of the savings term for the SAYE options, based on the FTSE 250, wrich McCarthy & Stone are a constituent of post-IPO

Share Incentive Plan ('SiP’)

The SIP aliows all employees to purchase partnership shares each month from pre-tax pay, which are then held intrust These
shares can be sold or taken from the SIP or be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open All plan shares and any
other assets held by the trustees will be held upon trust for the participants: there is therefore no impaci to the Group’s financiat

statements in respect of this plan.

Annuo! and Deferred Bonus Plan (‘ABP’)

The ABP incarporates the Company’'s executive bonus scheme as well as a mechanism for the deferral of bonus intc awards
over ordinary shares. The Committee can determine that part of the bonus under the ABP 15 provided as an award of deferred
shares, which takes the form of a £nil cost option The maximum value of deferred shares s 50% of the bonus earned All
employees (iIncluding the Executive Directors) of the Group are eligible to parucipate m the ABP at the discretion of the Board
AL 31 August 2017 three Executive Directors were participating in the scheme For the year ended 31 August 2017, one-third of
the bonus earned by the CEQ and COQ in the financial year, totaling £0 1m, will be deferred in the form of deferred shares for
three years, during which no performance conditrons will apply The amount deferred will be recognised over the three-year

deferral period.

Total Share-based payment schemes 2017 2016
Analysis of the income charge £m Em
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments
Management Incentive Plan - 0.4
Equity-settled share-based payments
SAYE a.5 0.4
LTIp 0.4 0.7
0.9 1.1
05 15
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32, Subsidiaries

Company Class of 2017 2016
Name Principal activity number shares % %
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited Holding Company 06622183 Ordinary %0 100
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited Developer 06622231 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited Property Investment 05663330 Qrdinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited Property Investment 05584851 Ordinary 00 100
McCarthy & Stone Investment Properties No.23 Limited* Property Investment 06496130 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Total Care Living) Limited* Property Investment 06069509 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Alnwick) Limited* Property Investment 07517819 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Lwving) Limited Property Investment 06897363 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited Property Investrment 06897301 " Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Interests No. 1 Limited* Property Investment 06897272 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited Development management 07166051 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited* Holding Cormpany 07165586 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Financiat Services Limited* Financial Services 07798214 Ordinary 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited Property Investment 04213618 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Limited* Property Resale 07165952 Ordinary 100 100
YourLife Management Services Limited Development Managernent 07153519 Ordinary 50 50
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited™* Dormant 01925738 "Ordinary 100 100
The Planming Bureau Limited™ Dormant 02207050 Ordinary 100 100
QOrtus Homes Limited* Dormant 08658235 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Resales Limited* Property Resale 10716544 Ordinary 100 n/a
Linden Court Limited* Dormant 04322139 Ordinary 100 n/a

* These UK subsicharies will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 August 2017

The dormant companies have taken advantage of the section 394A exemption from prepanng indwvidual accounts

Each of the above shareholdings gives the immediate Parent Company 100% voting rights, with the exception of YourLife

Management Services Limited where the parent has 50% vouing rights, but the power to appoint the majonity of the Directors

Accordingly. this gives the Group power over the relevant activities of this entity

The registered address of all of the above subsidianes is 4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 8AQ.

33. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been
eliminated on consolidatron and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and other related parties

are disclosed below.

Remuneration of key management personnei

The key managernent personnel are the Executive Leadership Team. The remunerauion that they have received during the year
is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Refated Party Disclosures’,

2017 2016

£m Em

Short-term employee benefits 27 25
Sacial security costs 04 0.3
Share-based payments 0.4 09
Pension contributions 03 0.2
Termination payment - 0.4
3.8 4.3

1.0 0.9

Aggregate emoluments of the highest paid Director

in 2016, as part of the Management Incentive Plan shares totalling 33,098,147 were i1ssued to key management personnel,

prior to share consolidation Note 25 details mavements in share capital within the year

34. Events after the balance sheet date

There were no events after the reporting period that required adjustment or disclosure In the financial statements
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Parent Company

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 August 2017

2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2016

Notes £m Em
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 4 439.4 439.4
Total non-current assets 439.4 439.4
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 5 7719 104.3
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Total current assets 77.9 104.3
Yotal assets 517.3 5437
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 43.0 43.0
Share premium 101.6 100.8
Retained earnings 367.4 394.3
Total equity & 512.0 538.1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 53 5.6
Total current liabilities 5.3 56
Total liabilities 53 5.6

517.3 543.7

Total equity and liabilities

Notes 1 to 11 form part of the financial statements shown above.

There were no recognised gains and losses for the year ather than the profit for the year (2016 nif)

The Company has elected to take the exemptton under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Parent
Company profit and loss account. The Company recorded a profit for the year of £0 7m (2016 £17m)

These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (06622199) were approved by the Board on 13 November 2017

and signed on its behalf by

Clive Fenton
Director

) faelay

Rowan Baker
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Parent Company

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2017

Share Share Retainad
capltal premium earnings Total
Notes £Em £m £&m £m
Balance at 1 September 2015 3811 56.4 (2.5) 435.0
Profit for the year - - 1.7 1.7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1.7 1.7
Transactions with owners of the Company
Issue of ordinary shares & 49 104.8 - 109.7
Capital reduction of share capital and share premum 6 (343.0) (56.4) 3994 -
Share-based payments 9 - - 11 1.1
Share issue related costs 5] - (4.0 - (4.0)
Dividends 6 - - (5.4) (5.4)
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 100.8 394.3 538.1
Profit for the year - - 0.7 0.7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 0.7 0.7
Transactions with owners of the Company
Share-based payments 9 - - 0.9 0.9
Dividends 6 - - (28.5) (28 5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit ~ 0.8 - 0.8
43.0 101.6 3674 512.0

Balance at 31 August 2017

Notes 1ta 11 form part of the financial staternents shown above
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Parent Company
Cash Flow Statement

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended-31-August 2017 oo

2047 2016

Notes £m £m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 8 28.5 5.4
Investing activities

Amounts owed in respect of share issuance 6 - (86.0)

Net cash used in investing activities - (86.0)
Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital 6 - 86.0

Dwidends paid 6 (28.5) (5.4)

(28.5) BO.6

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes 1to 11 form part of the financial statements shown above.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

McCarthy & Stone plc 1s a public limited liability Company incorporated in England. The Registered Office 1s 4th Floor, 100
Holdenhurst Road, Bournemaouth, Dorset, BH8 8AQ The following accounting poiicies have been applied consistently in dealing
with the items that are considered material in relation to the financial statements, on an ongoing basis and in accordance with the

Companies ACt 2006.

Basis of preparation
The separate Company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost accounting rules and in accordance

with FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Repubhc of Ireland

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company 1S exempt from the requirernent o present tts own profit and
loss account. The Company recorded a profit for the year of £0.7m (2016 £17m).

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an ariginal maturity of three months or less, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts

Share-based payments
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are

granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting pertod In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
non-rmarket-based vesting conditions and no expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a failure to

satisfy a non-market-based vesung condition.

The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at fair value Fair value i1s estimated initially at the grant date and at each
reporting period end thereafter until the awards are settled Market-based conditions are taken into account when determining

fair value.

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in note 31 1o the consohdated finangial statements

Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to McCarthy & Stone's shareholders are recognised in the Company’s financial statements in the periods

in which the final dvidends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, or when paid in the case of an interim dividend

Financial instruments
Financizl assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's Statement of Financial Position when the Company

becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets
All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where

the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned They are initially measured at far value, plus transaction costs, except for
those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified as Yoans and receivables’ The dassification depends cn the nature and purpose of the financal
assets and 15 determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active
market are classified as ‘loans and recetvables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest methaod, less any impairment Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rare, except for
short-term recetvables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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1. Accounting policies continued
Financial assets are classified as loans and recevables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the finanoal

assets and Is determined at the time of iniial recogrution

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and recewvables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effecove
interest method, less any impairment. Interest income i1s recagnised Dy applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term recewvables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabiliues or as equity in accordance with the substance of

the contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity Instrurment 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest i the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabibties Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds receved, net of direct iIssue costs

Financial lighilities
Financial labilities are classified as ‘other financial liabthties’

Other financial liabilities
Other financial habilties, ncluding borrowings, are nitially measured at far value, net of transaction costs

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amartsed cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis

The effective Interest methaod 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financal hability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts esumated future cash payments
through the expected Iife of the financiai liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, tc the net carrying amount on

initial recognimion.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnibutable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds

Related parties
The Cornpany discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same Group Where appropriate,

transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the Directors, separate disclosure 1s necessary to
understand the effect of the transactions on the financal statements

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting pohcies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an oNgoiNg basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estirate 1s revised if the revision affects only that penaod, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods

There are no specific critical judgements or key assumptions the Company makes about the future, or other major sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting penod, that are deemed to have a significant risk of resulung n a matenal
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilties at the year end and within the next financial year
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3. Staff costs
The Company had no emplayees during the period covered by these financial statements. Costs relating to time incurred by

Directors for Group activities are recharged to McCarthy & Stone plc

4. Investments in subsidiaries

2017 2016
Cost £m Em
1 September 4394 4197
Additions - 19.7
AL 31 August 4394 439.4
Net book value 439.4 4394

Investrnents in subsidiary undertakings relate 1o a 100% ownershup interest in McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited.

The Group’s subsigiary undertalangs for the period that are sigrificant for the period and traded during the period are sted
0 nate 32 to the consolidated financial statements

5. Trade and other receivables

2017 2016
£m Em

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 77.3 104.3
UK corporation tax 0.6 -
77.9 104.3

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2%
(2016 2.2%) at the year end date

6. Shareholders’ funds

The movements of the share capital, share premium and equity reserve accounts are disclosed in note 25 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Dividends within the year are disclosed within note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

7. Trade and other payables

2007 206
Em £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 5.3 5.6
53 5.6

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2% (2016 2 2%)
at the year end date
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8. Notes to the cash flow statement

2017 2016

Notes Em £m

Profit for the financial year 0.7 1.7

Adjustments for

Interestincome (1.9) (2.6)

Share option charge 09 14
income tax expense 0.2 04
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 0.1} 0.6
Decrease / (iIncrease) in trade and other receivables 5 27.0 (0.8)
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payabies 7 (0.3) 34
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 26.6 3.2
Interest received 1.9 2.6
Tax paid - (0.4)
Cash generated by operations 285 54
28.5 5.4

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

9. Share-based payments
Following the PO of the Company in November 2015, the Company entered into new share incentive plans. Details of share

awards granted by the Company to employees of subsidiaries, and that remain outstanding at the year end over the Company’s
shares, are set out in note 31 te the consohdated finanaial statements.

The Company recognised an expense of £0 9m relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the year
(2016 £11m)

10. Financial instruments
The Company has the following financial iInstrurments.

2017 2016
£m Em
Financiol assets
Loans and receivables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other recervables 77.3 104.3
Cash and bank balances - -
77.3 104.3
Financial liabilities
Loans and payables measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 5.3 5.6
53 5.6

The Company has no dervative financial instruments The far value of the financial instruments is equal to their carrying values.

11. Related party transactions
The Company 1s exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are whaolly owned within the Group.
See note 33 to the cansohdated financial statements

Remuneration to key management personnel has been disclosed within note 33 to the consalidated financial statements
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Warning to
shareholders

154

McCarthy & Stone plc

Share fraud ncludes scams where investors are called out of
the blue and offered snares that often turn out 10 be worihiess
or non-existent, or an inflated price for shares they own. These
calts come from fraudsters operating in ‘boiler rooms’ that are
mostly based abroad. While high profits are promised, those
who buy or seli shares in this way usually tose their money
These callers can be very persistent and extremely persuasive.
They may even daim to ge cathng on behalf of the Company

The Financial Conduct Authonty (FCAY has found most share
fraud victims are experienced investors who lose a2n average
of £20,000, with around £200m lost in the UK each year.

Protect yourself

You are advised to be extremely wary iIf you are offered
unsohoited investment adwice, discounted shares, & prermum
price for shares you own, or free company or research reports
You should take these steps before handing over any money

Get the name of the person and organisation
contacting you

Check the Financial Services Register at
http//wvew fea.org.uk/ to ensure they are authorised

Use the details on the FCA Register to contact the firm

Calf the FCA Consumer Helpline on: 0800 111 6768 if there
are na contact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date

Search the FCA's list of unauthorised firms and individuals
to avoid doing business with.

REMEMBER: if it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

If you use an unaythonised firm to buy or sell shares or
other nvestments, you will not have access to the Financal
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation
Scheme (FSCS) i things go wrong

Report a scam

If you are approached about a share scam you should tell the
FCA using the share fraud reporting form at

www.fca. org.uk/consumers/report-scam-uhauthorised-firm
where you can find out abaut the latest rnvestment scams

You can also call the Consumer Helpline on. 0800 111 6768

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Actian Fraud on: 0300 123 2040
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Historical
statistics
FY17 FY16 FY15® Fy14'
Legal completions 2,302 2.296% 1,923 1.677
Gross average selling price £273k £264k £245k £222k
Revenue £660.9m £635.9m £485.7m £387.8m
Profit before tax £92.1m £92.9m £80.9m £57.1m
Shareholders’ funds £908.9m £919.8m £762 3m £477.2m
ROCE 16% 20% 20% 17%
Tangible gross asset vaiue £645.7m £5741m £513.5m £451.2m
Tangible net asset value £676.4m £626.8m £469.1m £402.3m
Basic earnings per share 13.8p 13.9p 13.5p* n/a*
Dividends for the year? 5.4p 4.5p nil nil
Number of shares in issue 537,329,434 537,314,069 n/a® n/a®
Number of shareholders 8363 705 n/a® n/a®

Excludes three commeraal units

[ )

Dividends were not pard 11 FY15 6 FY14

=

prior years have not been adjustec

un

=}

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
Some of the information in this document may contain pro][ectlons or other forward-looking statements regarding future events
or the future financial performance of McCarthy & Stone plc and its subsidianes (the Group). You canidentify forward-tooking

statements by terms such as 'expect’, ‘believe’, ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘intend’, 'wilf’, ‘could’, 'may’ or ‘might’, the negatrve of such

F¥15 and FY14 financial statements were produced prior to our Stock Exchange hsung which took place on 11 Navember 2015

The dividends i respect of any finangial year are the intenm dividend whuch bas Been paid and the final dvidend which has been proposed

The number of shareholders pror te our isuing an 11 November 2015 has not been disckosed on the grounds of irrelevance

The figure for the FY15 EPS was recalculated in the FY16 Annual Report and adusted o refllect the 4 1 consolidation of our share capital that took place in FY16,

The Company’s share capital ac 31 August 2015 and 31 August 2014 was 1905,549,751 ordinary shares of 20p =ach As part of the preparauon for hsting, the norminal
value of the snares was reduced to 2p, additional shares were allotited and the shares were consolidated on a 4 1 basis becoming ordinary shares of Bp nominal value

terms or other similar expressions McCarthy & Stone plc (the Company) wishes (o caution you that these statements are only

predictions and that actual events or results may differ matenally The Company does not intend to update these statements

to reflect evenits and circumstances occurring after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events Many
factors could cause the actua! results to differ matenaily from those contained i projections or forward-looking statements of

the Group, including among others, general economuc conditions, the compettive environment as well as many other risks
specifically related {o the Group and its operations Past performance of the Group cannot be relied on as a guide to future

performance
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McCarthy & Stone plc1s a public Company imited by shares and
registered in England and Wales, registered number 06622195

Our registered and head office is situated at:

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road

Bournemouth

Dorset

BH8 8AQ

Telephone: 01202 292480

Corporate website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
Consumer website. www.mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Email: investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Our ordinary shares are histed an the London Stock Exchange
{premium listing) and we are in the FTSE 250 Index

Legal Entity Identfier (LEI):
213800CEJ40QS5YPURBZAT

Imternational Securities Identification Number (ISIN},
GBOOBYNVDOB2

Ticker Symbo! MCS

Advisers
Legal adviser Registrar
Allen & Overy LLP Link Assel Services
The Registry
Financial adviser 34 Beckenham Road
Rothschild Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU
Financial and corporate
communications Statutary auditor
Powerscourt Deloitte LLP
Banker
HSBC Bank plc

Joint corporate brokers
Deutsche Bank
Peel Hunt

Contact details for our registrars, Link Asset Services

Calls from the UK. 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10p per
minute, plus any network extras,
lines are open Monday to Friday
from 9am to 5.30pm, excluding
UK public hohdays),

Calls from outside the UK- +44 208 639 3399

Email enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk
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3 Divisions & 9 Regions

-

Scotland

Unit 11000, Academy Park
Gower Street

Glasgow

G51 1PR

Tel 0141 4208300

Graphic removed

North West

Unit 3, Edward Court
Altrincham Business Park
Altrincham

WAT14 5GL

Tel: 0161 941 6255

West Midlands
Ross House

Harry Weston Road
Binley Business Park
Coventry

CV3 2TR

Tel 02476 441199

South West

First Floor, Blackbrook Gate 1
Blackbrook Park Avenue
Taunicn

TA1 2PX

Tel 01823 200500

L

Head Office

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road
Bournemouth, Dorset
BH8 8AQ

Tel. 01202 292480

North East

Aspen House

Wykeham Road
Northminster Business Park
Upper Poppleton

York

Y026 6QW

Te! 01904 444200

East Midlands
Orion House
Orion Way
Keitering

NN15 6PE

Tel: 01536 220 700

North London
Prospect Place

85 Great North Road
Hatfield

ALS 5DA

Tel: 01707 446000

South East
2 Genesis Business Park
_J Albert Drive
Woking
GU21 5RW
Southern Tel 01483 908600
Southern House
1 Embankment way
Ringwood
BHZ4 1EU

Tel: 01425 322000
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Glossary

‘ASP’

‘BSG’

‘Capital turn’

geclty
'Cic

‘Company’
cQcC’

‘DCLG’

‘EPS’

‘FRI’

‘FTSE’

‘Gearing’
‘Group’
PO’

‘Land bank’

‘LIBOR’

average selling price - the average
price agreed for sales of apartments
in the year after deducung list price
discounts and part-exchange top-ups

the Bulding Safety Group is @ not-for-
profit oa(fjganisa[lon which specialises
in providing Health, Safety and
Environmental advice for the
canstruction industry

calculated by dividing revenue by
the average opening and closing
tangible gross asset value in the year

cash generating unit

the Community Infrastructure Levy
of the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010

McCarthy & Stone plc

the Care Quality Commission is an
executive non-departmental pubhc
body of the Department of Health
which regulates and inspects health
and social care services n England

the Department for Commurities
and Local Government

profit attributable to ordmary
shareholders (excluding exceptional
items) divided by the weighted average
number of orchinary shares in 1ssue
durning the financial year

freehold reversionary interest -

the freehold of each of the Group's
developments in England and Wales
which include the future ncome
stream of ground rents which can
be scld to third parties

the Finanaal Times Stock Exchange

gearing 15 calculated by dividing
net debt by net assets

the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries and subsidiary
undertakings

Initial Public Offering

includes owned sites and
exchanged sites

the London interbank offered rate

158 McCarthy & Stane pic

‘MSMS’

‘Net assets’

‘Net debt/cash’

‘NHBC
‘PRS’
‘ROCE’

‘Section 106’

TGAV’

TNAV'

‘TSR’

‘Underlying

profit before tax’

‘YLMS'

McCarthy & Stone Management
Services Limited - 3 wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company that
provides managernent services

to homeowners in the Group’s
Retirement Living and Lifestyle
tiving developments

net assets is calculated as total assets
less total habilities

cash and cash equrvalents less
long-term and short-term borrowings
{(excluding unamortised debt

ISSUE COSLS)

National House Building Council
Private Rented Sector

return on capital employed - calculated
by dwiding underlying operating profit
by the average opening and closing
tangible grass asset value in the year

the legally-binding agreements or
planning obhgations entered Nto
between a landowner and a local
planming authority, under section
106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990

tangble gross asset value - calculated
as TNAV [ess net debt/cash

tangibie net asset value - calculated
as net assets excluding goodwill and
intangible assets

total shareholder return -15 a
measurement of the performance
of the Group’s share price since the
IPO. It combines the share price
appreciauon and dividends paid

to show the total return to the
shareholders expressed as a
percentage

calculated by adding amortisation
of brand and exceptional
administrative expenses to profit
before tax

YourLife Management Services
Limited - a subsidiary of MSMS
owned 50/50 by MSMS and Scmerset
Care Group Limited, that provides
management services, domestic
assistance, personal care and
addiional support to homeowners

N the Group's Retirement Living Plus
developments
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McCarthy & Stone

—— Retirermnent living to the full —

4th Floor

100 Holdenhurst Road
Bournemcouth

Dorset

B8 8AQ

Tel: 01202 292 480

Website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co uk Twitter. twitter com/mccarthystone
Email. investor-relatons@mccarthyandstone ce uk Facebook facebook com/mecarthystone
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